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VISION

Expanding the world’s
knowledge of magnesium
and ecological fertilisers
markets in the 21st green
era.

POSITIONING
STATEMENT

One of the leading and
largest vertically integrated
businesses covering
magnesium and ecological
fertilisers to achieve green
technological innovations
and operational efficiencies
and effectiveness in Asia.
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The directors (the “Directors” and individually a “Director”) of Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) up to the date of
this report are as follow:

Board of Directors
Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Chi Bi Fen

Yang Yuchuan

Non-executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

Company Secretary
Luk Sai Wai, Simon

Committees

Audit Committee

Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

Nomination Committee
Chi Wen Fu (Committee Chairman)
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Remuneration Committee
Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

Head Office
Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2802 2165

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

E-mail: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk
Website: www.centurysunshine.com.hk
Auditors

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Information for Investors

EmER
kb Eh BEBARGIAR AT ([BFT])
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EEZEAH

20153 A 18 H NE2014 F2FELE

20155 A26HE =R mEe =R
201545 A28 H (BRRKRAFRE)
(BEEEMA)

201545 A28 H BEBEFRS

20156 A15HE T RmiBEER
20156 A17H (GE M 2014 R HA
(BEEEMA) BB MEEITALR)

20156 A29H EE T 2014 FEREARR B

N BATHIRR
B ER
AAREFREEC02E L 2,905,638,537 %

BETIRAD (TR B 1)
(2014412 A31H)

ME(2014F12 431 8) 2,121,116,132/8 7T

BFEEEN 5,000 A&
2014 FBRER

HAR 10.24 %41

B 9.96 7811l
2014 FBRKE

R HA A
REP(BR) 0.50 71l
BEITHIRR (BER) 20 % 3% 1 BR AT A%
BB ERRE

BB FEETERE :

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

EERPBEERDE :
BEFRHFELERAA
BB

ERRER 1835
a2

AfMHEER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Listing Information

Listing Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”)

Stock code 509

Key Dates
18 March 2015 Announcement of 2014 annual results
26 May 2015 to Closure of register of members
28 May 2015 (for annual general meeting)
(both days inclusive)
28 May 2015 Annual general meeting
15 June 2015 to Closure of register of members
17 June 2015 (for 2014 final dividend and bonus
(both days inclusive) issue)
29 June 2015 Proposed payments of 2014 final

dividend and issue of bonus shares

Share Information
Company’s shares of HK$0.02 each
(the “Shares”) in issue
(81 December 2014)
Market capitalisation (31 December 2014)

2,905,638,537
Shares

HK$2,121,116,132

Board lot size 5,000 Shares

Earnings Per Share for 2014

Basic HK10.24 cents

Diluted HK9.96 cents

Dividend Per Share for 2014

Interim Nil HK cents

Final (proposed) HKO0.50 cents

Bonus issue (proposed) 1 bonus share
for every 20
Shares

Share Registrar and Transfer Offices
Principal:
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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LFEHBHE
Five Year Financial Summary

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
TExT THAT TAET FAT FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EZE12H31 HIFF/E  Forthe year ended
31 December
A Revenue 2,072,519 1,640,291 1,242,930 736,790 493,771
SHEM A Cost of sales (1,412,575) (1,132,526) (910,734) (604,555) (403,956)
e Gross profit 659,944 507,765 332,196 132,235 89,815
HAp A Rz Other income and gains 15,055 11,782 13,472 79,341 68,057
HERTSEEER Selling and marketing
costs (103,116) (69,437) (48,948) (35,242) (12,882)
THRY Administrative expenses (60,011) (57,080) (48,084) (41,687) (64,462)
B E Finance costs (44,186) (21,441) (20,363) (16,413) (9,289
B TS 55 A A Profit before income tax 467,686 371,589 228,273 118,234 81,239
FTefmAx Income tax expense (128,045) (94,456) (47,984) (14,098) (17,416)
BRI Discontinued operation - - (11,705) (3,018) -
FRER] Profit for the year 339,641 277,133 168,584 101,118 63,823
THALEEFA Profit/(loss) for the year
wAL(E18) attributable to:
AREHERA Owners of the
Company 287,910 230,215 130,312 96,541 72,669
FEPE IR Non-controling
interests 51,731 46,918 38,272 4,577 (8,846)
BREF Earnings per share:
— ER — basic 10.24flicents  8.961llicents 508fllcents  3.741licents  3.17{licents
—#E — diluted 9.961lcents  8.691lcents 508flicents  3.74fllicents  3.17{llicents
K12H31H As at 31 December
BEEE Total assets 3,796,956 2,840,222 2,363,438 2,070,412 2,061,130
BEHBE Total liabilities (1,430,315) (687,260) (593,924) (588,387) (725,692)
B Total equity 2,366,641 2,152,962 1,769,514 1,482,025 1,335,438
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Five Year Financial Summary

=12 H31 HIFF/E For the year ended 31 December

notes

B aE

2014

% B A %5 [ 3 R Return on shareholders’ equity 1 13.0% 11.6% 8.0% 6.9% 5.8%
42 = Ol R Return on total assets 2 8.9% 9.8% 7.1% 4.9% 3.1%
BF R ez Interest coverage 3 11x 13 18x i 12x fi& 8xf& 10x i
R12H31H As at 31 December
BELE Gearing ratio 4 23.4% 10.6% 13.4% 13.7% 8.4%
MBI L= Liquidity 5 2xf& 2x fi& 2x fi& 3x f& 2xf&
MisE notes:
1. RANTIER ANERERGRN AR EER 1. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company/Shareholders’ equity
2. FRmfl BERE 2. Profit for the year/Total assets
3. =S R I v P U= 5d 3. Profit before income tax and interest expense/Interest expense
4. BEs BERE 4. Total borrowings/Total assets
5. REBE/TBAaf 5. Current assets/Current liabilities
WA FE=R
Revenue Margins
BEET B
HK$'000,000 %
31.8
2014 2,073 2014 16.4
+26%
31.0
2013 1,640 2013 169
+32% 6.7
2012 1,243 2012 136
+69%
T— 179
20M 737 20Mm 137
+49%
18.2
2010 494 2010 129
== ) Gross profit
T FWiEF Profit for the year
ROFREE ABIEFRER REEAE
Profit for the Year Attributable to Total Equity
Owners of the Company BEAT
BEET HK$'000,000
HK$'000,000
2014 288 2014 2,367
+25% +10%
2013 230 2013 2,153
+77% +22%
A0 —— 130 2012 1,770
+35% +19%
PZACN  E S — 97 201 1,482
+33% +11%
2010 73 2010 1,335
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RAERRARREFZTEMAREARAIMEMBE AR (SR LE K ANEEDEE2014F12 A3 BEFRE(FAL
ZEEREBEAHBRREE -

20145 S AMBTEEBTEE TBENSERDEE  BARKETREENEERESE - TR AEERHRIMER
TEECEEET S - BRENEERS  FEECERES  E—TRATEEETENZOLEF S -

TEBEERER

EHBEEREETERPBRAER I - i8 i BEECSBTEOHERERER - KRRLKABRESEZME -
ERFHRACSBERFENNLGEBIME B IRERKEN ARKE(  HEET  BFIRE MZEMRNU
MEFETHFEREEERNER  OIFK - RR - 6 - BREBSEERTEHNER Rt ERAEE  FRENTEN
FHERBRAZIRAR - AARE  fift RRTENSEXRNERZ=RASELER - PEBRFAET T -1 BREBEHER
MEDF - ABRETERADREL BAA  ERMt] RRAMBREENEZAF - EREBRERE - SEREEOH
RABANREMBEEER - FREZHREER - £ETEEAR - BEXSEMNFERESSHME - LROANERE
2o

RIBEBERARTZERBY  AEE/BEZNELANFEMBREE  E-—SHRSBENKEREBEEXREASE
ENERETE Rt ZEReBEEXET AR AEBEL HRNENEMERRE  MBEEFAORBERSY - 2R
NHEEEEXBETNGEABFES -

BREERER

2015 FARR—FEXM — (AR MARERF NENREXRARCERNETER)EES 12FBE[=Z8] & - ZXita
FRFERLE RARRAMLETE AN HEEGEERER  USBER (LI RECEFERMAR - FAEHR
FIEHEBHR RS DILRT - FEER] AU RBEIBNME S SENEZERESR  ARIESRZEE
EREARR 6 - £REFE  T2HEFREBBENR  $RAZEREROIE -
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EEEBNWR DN

EFAE)

NEBEBR 2014 FHB LR - FREEIA2,072,519,00087C * L2013 FIERL26.4% @ HAMEBETLELE — &
[BEEMEBMBREIEH X GIRBEERE - S BEEMER 2014 F H A 696,904,000% 7T (2013 4 : 547,366,000
FETT) I AEE AU AX33.6%(20134F : 33.3%) ' FALL 2013 F IR AE R 27.3% « B E2014F U A 1,277,282,000
87T (2013 4F : 1,028,068,000/7T) * (h A= E4RUIA 61.6% (20134 : 62.7%) * FILL 2013 F WAL K 24.2% © KA RIHEA
A% R 287,910,000 78 7T (2013 4F : 230,215,000 7T ) * [EEL 201834 L F#725.1% ©

cEEERER

CEFEREBEE TRBERMBE  BERHSERRAYREBLHENRE - HE2014F 12 A3 HLEFE  BEEMRE
1 BN £ @ & B U A 696,904,000 7% 7T (2013 4F : 547,366,000/87T) * IRFRESE27.3% - X EKERTEOEEREE
mAwTEE S - FHIEMNEI2.1% (2013 4F : 32.7%) °

FEERRANSBHETETRETZHN B EAERSME DB T ERBRIBIIIAPBE G [BEERES T
RREBEM] 22— ANEER2013FXINSIARLER SEBREN — PEMNBRERFEACSMFTAETRARRX
REERR - E—FRARKERFKF - AREEBRAEHLESSFEMNARRNBREOERHERERRE - FETERE
HEEY  BERS TETERFTRRA MM

FESRESEIRERATEENSBAEMEZ — AEEEE  SRESHY  WHERIMNEE B8  JENIE
ML HEA 21 ELAKARBEERENNGEEIEME] - BAIWEZRARRE 3CETF - MEMK (L THEITHET -
ERRKNEEEERENAEET  MBHBEESNTRBERZA - REFERHOPRSETE =1 Z#EREVL
EEBEER PEREESHEN2014FMN80EME - BMEI[+=F] RKEI2020 F ML 130 EBME » FE R K ARIFE
8.4% * mPATERIFR [+ =AM [+ =5 ] REEIF 7% 72 A RS FEILIR ©

BEIE2016FK - =X —HERRBERARESBEFEL KA ZE 7580 - AREBAMERE - REERNTEF R - &
BRASECBEEREBNRES RIERETREAR
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EEE W R D
LESLRTER

ERAEEDIRR  H#6  FEREGNEBER  UBRNERERARONERER NEREECBRERFHNZES
R EIEMTTISERER —ROEET  ASENERHEERBAEEELER - BHE014F12 A BIEFE - 2%
FER T A AL E B BULA1,277,282,0007 7T (2013 4F : 1,028,068,000/87T) @ IHFIEESE24.2% » ZEBKEREZVIE
e OR)EIEH RAEMBREERMA R -

BRIPEQEERENY REGEABKEERERE K6  RENFLRERREAEE - FEERERERER
RO IEEEREBNEEDHEBRBENCERE  MEIERR K6 LREGNDERRTERNOT
SR AREEREREBSUASERERR  LEXSNTUEREREN  bREELEFHOLARER -

AEERERHEBSENEZER — BEE  AUGAREDRAKEZEMIENED  HRHPE46EBRKFELIRY
50% A LEEEE  M19%TEESEENTERY  AF —EREXRRLEER RERFEVREENTM BERR
012 HEHARERTHEL - BEAN  AREHRANSRURIOBEBAESERERT ARNRHMERIKAES @ 12
T REMMERNEK o

RTIERR £REHTSREZROBE  AEEBREEEAEELAS - RN IHEIEENE - HIEEZFEL0E
M AEERR 2015 FEFTEEARE ARBEREEHEBFELRBES 758 - AEBEEFLESIERBERTS -2
AIEINRIE B - TEHRETHHFRK -

Hih K

AEENEMERARMBEER - AEBRENEERYUOBELS RERHEEERNEZELEERE - LA EME 7]
HRAEEIM A - MAEEERRESEEEERMEERE BEMAMRT - BEHEBMHKECA FTRRARRMEZE - 1
MESHERTENWA - FR - RIEH 2 A 98,333,000 7T (2013 4F : 64,857,000/87C) * 1HEEFEURA 4.8% (2013 4F :
4.0%) °
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BEERENWR D

3]

AEBEMBETIEERERERNCERANUNEREZERCNTSRBHBER/LIED TR EBEE - ARZBENEREE
REBBEERDBEEELAERAXNENMEERMUAREERERFEFENES - RATHAFNERERED B
MBEEZFHE  SAE  EXANZRCER  /AKERERRTSNE RN BEERRSSENEREERSS
hEhLE - EMIRT AR ERERFES -

RE2016F  BEEHFEEFREIERTHED - ETFEBNMNEFNEZRREKSE T - AEEHEBRELENRE T
EogceBEEE  REAREETENRTLN  BNHRBREERFOER

FTEZEEHE
HE2014F 12 A B FEZAKERTIELBEHFE2013FRAMEELENT - TRAVNEIEEREAERHE
2014F 12 A1 HILFEMBEETHBRBY ©

(a) FTEEmZHEER:

EBEEMER 22,783 16,898 34.8

BEER R 544,356 419,244 29.8

b) ETEERZFHIEE:

eREEMES 29,322 31,077 (5.6)
BRI 2,343 2,446 4.2)

12
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(c) EEEMmZERR:

20,/
(B A)
=R
TEBEEMER 32.1 32.7 (0.6)
REER R 27.1 26.3 0.8
REE 2 BEBEFIE 31.8 31.0 0.8

LN
REE 2014 F U A42,072,519,00078 7T (20134 = £91,640,291,000/8 7T ) @ HIREL)26.4% ° 5T B2 KB HSRIE M -
FR - 2BEEREBNEEREHERZHE D R IN34.8% & 29.8% °

HER A

2014 FE B E R AN A1,412,575,00078 7T (2013 4F : 1,132,526,000/8 70 ) » MEFILANLI24.7% ° $HER AT - SBEE
PREETS  BREERES L ERINEE S D MR 4)32.5% * 65.9% & 1.6% (20134 : D RIME#131.5% » 66.9% N 1.6%) ° tHE
RAFEARHERANERERE  (FAMEXAL88.0% °

EX
2014 F 47 A FF 49 5659,944,00078 7T (2013 4F : 507,765,000 70 ) » B11E 4930.0% ° 474 EF R JFH31.0%EMEL
31.8% ° TERAEBERIINEZERERE  BLERES R TOEMRERNBEELE  RMEA T REEREERE -

HERTSHEEER
HERTIGHES A 4/5103,116,0008 7T (2013 4F : 69,437,000/87T) * TR EINERENECTI%METLER  BEE LM
£#241% (2013 F : 5 HI#169.2% TN 22.7%)  $HE K hism#EE B L5 BUA5.0% (2013 4F : #94.2%) ©

TERAX

TR KEBEMITE X %) /563,302,000/87C (20134 : 55,767,000/ 7C) SR TEREETIER - wE LB  BRL
HEBHMBEEE  HDRERNFEEITH X B 435.5%  15.4% » 9.5% F14.3% (20134F : £939.6% ~ 24.4% ~ 6.1% F
41%) o

TERRASENTEREEAESER  EAEENEREHITERASY  KAFEEZITHASEEBIALS.1% (20134 : 4
3.4%) °
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HaW AR WS
H AU A R U254 515,055,000 78 7T (2013 4F = 11,782,000 70) * T B BEFRFEMB LA - 5 5414 8,544,000 % 7T
1 4,766,00078 7T (2013 4F : 495,157,000 7T % 5,241,000 7T °

@
F N i@ F %) /339,641,000 7L (20134 : 277,133,000/8 7t ) * R b1 K 4922.6% - AR Al A A B F Rm 7 =
287,910,000 7T (2013 4F : 230,215,000;87C) » AL EFH4925.1% °

RBES  BBERMEER
AREBR0UAENRPDESCTEXRARKEESTELNIRS - N2014F 128318 AEB RS NFETERAHEY
828,782,000 7 (2013 4F : 422,901,000/ 7T) °

R2014F12 A31H » AEB 2 EEEEH2013F LI T £9195.7% @ RN EE FEEK2013F N T 4952.3% ° AEEB R
2014F 2 BB R (REEKREELE)423.4% (20134F : 10.6%) °

AEBRAEZREBERERAKEIPELAVETR S RERABNEEBEE - KL EFHEERNIRSIFE5322,910,000
7T (2013 4F : 301,371,000/ 7T) °

EXEREE

AEETBAEPEARANE ([HE]) REBLEER  BUILARSBINERR - TEFRBT - AR - RITTRRT © 4h
ERBBENAREERS  CHEIEERAE  UARINBEKEZNREFE - AKEEEERPZEFEBNIINE AL FEL T
Ko Bt - REBERBSLEEIPINERR - AEBEE BRI NBTAINZ EBRFHE 2 RMEE E K B & PARF il INE [ B 3272 44
EREREMETTA -

FERRERE

AEE-BEURTHEREMTFLPHNEERR - AEEBRREEN2004F2YHN [FREFERIZN ] - ZERAERIHER
REF-FFPENNIHTEMEERTE  EHFERERAETFNERS - AEEREREPNEENEGRAR T — &
SMEESE - flan - FEELLE - FEHR - FEFE  EEGREER FPEFEERREANERENAREZEFERE
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BEAXRS
() F2014F2H24H + ARFHEESEARTKEORERE - HBRORERZ  BEESRABNUSR.75F LY
EH% - RIBA $£155,077,000 R E R T IRA 2 A ARG - EEFELA116,308,000/8 7T * FIER M IEMEM 34455 -

MN2014FE6 A27H - RRATDRIZETT T A4 4% /4115,000,000 7% 7T &% 180,000,000 78 7t 2 AT A ML (E % - =FIE 8175
HARMFEITIHE -

HAEE B R4 411,308,000 8 7T FIEB AR S I FRERE -

(i)  F2014F12 8198 » AEBE2EHE 2 5 Ming Xin Developments Limited 5132 7 — 1 B E i k. — 0 RE W - A
Yohs R iE i (BURR) BRR AR (B R5E - 601) ([# % 1) 500,000,000 A& 3R B i 15 K& 239,532,000 BTl fn - R(EH
Bl 229,600,000 7 7t & 76,650,000/8 7T ° :ZERX HEN 201562 A26 A% c IR AEBN XL H R BHESRE Z
51.46% =tz - MUK ER2015F 3 A5 BEH @ IE 2 EURE - TEEIR2015F 3 A26 HFEMK - BT IEHLH
REBMPBERFT RAREE TS Z BAAS KRB

iy M2015F2F4H  ARRHE—BYE=HF(EFEEERREEFHE2EHEEEAR([BEEAF])Z2100%
At - ST NESERORNZERBZE((EHKE]D - BEAREECLSBHUREZBRENESE  MREER -
ARRZWHE S S28AQ0N2015F2 4B 2 A% o

AEEBIERTEZBLBZAFER  NETESBLIR - tIEHEZREYR - @FETRNRITER - &
FRBEARES - BRBWBETET  ARFSEEEREELTRR RBBRARKERAG TR ZREER
R -

BEEEHA
R2014512 A31 A AREREREEE  FHIENPHMERMEB0HE -

BAAEE
R2014F 12 31 B - AEEL BAEMEREARFS - RHBHREM 38 IEBERI -

HARKE
201412 31 B - AEEL BEMEARAEE - WRMBRAM 42 FIEBERI -
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Ko #r

BAREERE
MR2014FE12 A31 H » "R RIB BT A58,112,771 7870 * 7 £2,905,638,537 1% + BAXEE0.02/8 7T °

ADER

M2014F12 A31H  AEEMEACETHE#A1,2904 (20134 : 1,250%) - AEBIREBEE T 2 X - TIELBTR
BMSERTEREZHH - ETEFSEERERRE - THEFABEE - MIBICANESBIRETE - AEETERE
AMER EFEREEIFE L EAUN S EEREEANE - EERANEELEESHERLY -

HERE

AERR

AEEZBAEQRE  URTEEMEB LD - KBSEABRFARDNRE  TEROIFEEINGRTE  RBEEBHES R
BARRENEZEZTE  WRAESREMB TEZURGEETRE CHEZAZSA/AKELESBEEMZ R
TSR BMOAEEEESN - REEHKATEHRE -

IR R EIR2010F FHAER - AR AEAENRPEER HEHHE ﬁimmimﬁmamﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ;v
REMAREZFHR  SHABRERERFE - ASEEIABFRHERIALBEREE - ZERERFERAEEAZA
%mggﬁiﬁoﬁéanﬁzﬂmamﬁg'E%Eﬁﬁ%%mamm@@msﬁ:mamwmﬁﬁwmsﬁmﬂmE
Mt BEEBENEREMEAREVESKES -
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am delighted to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Century Sunshine” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”)
for shareholders’ review.

In 2014, Century Sunshine’s two principal business arms maintained their previous strong growth momentum and once
again achieved birilliant operating results for the Group. During the Year, the Group carried out ongoing technological
innovations to improve production technology, implemented stringent controls over production costs and continuously
optimised its product mix, further enhancing the Group’s core competitiveness in the industry.

Magnesium Product Business

Global mined resource supplies are expected to see shortfalls over the long term, with non-ferrous metals including copper,
aluminium, lead and nickel to encounter numerous problems including scarcity of resources and difficulties in large-scale
recycling. As a new structural material with outstanding features of non-ferrous metals, magnesium alloys will play an
increasingly significant role in lightweight transportation, consumer electronics, maritime engineering, aerospace and defence
industries in the coming future with abundant strategic opportunities. In recent years, as a result of the widespread and
intensified concept of eco-friendly, green and low-carbon campaigns around the globe, the world tends to prefer lighter and
more eco-friendly engineering materials, thus broadening potential for development of the lightweight, energy-saving and
eco-friendly magnesium industry. In the “Circular Economy Development Objective for the Twelfth Five-year Plan,” the
Chinese Government defined main objectives, key tasks and safeguards for the circular economy development as adhering
to the principles of “reduce, reuse and resourcefulisation,” which greatly facilitate and guide the development of the circular
economy. For the sake of ecology, China — a country with enormous magnesium resources, production and consumption
— certainly prefers to encourage and support the development of new materials such as magnesium alloys.

Keeping pace with domestic policies and market development trends, the Group will seize opportunities for development a
such opportune times to further expand the magnesium industry, circular economic industry of magnesium and the related
industries of magnesium alloy production, as well as grasp other key segments which create synergies with existing business
arms within the magnesium industry chain so as to explore new business growth and enhance the integrated competitiveness
of the entire Group.

Fertiliser Business

The Central Government’s Number One Document in 2015 — “Certain Comments Relating to Strengthening the Reform and
Innovation on Accelerating Modern Construction of Agriculture” has focused on “three agricultural issues” for 12 years in a
row, emphasising agro-ecological governance, in-depth development of soil testing and formulated fertilisation and intensive
promotion of ecological fertilisers as well as encouraging ongoing technological innovation of agricultural machinery, fertilisers
and pesticide enterprises. For its fertiliser business, the Group adheres to the concept of “soil testing and formulated
fertilisation” and employs an approach of striving for perfection in terms of research and development. The Group’s
competitive products such as compound Silicon Magnesium (“Si-Mg”) fertilisers and organic fertilisers are more eco-friendly,
green and ecologically sustainable than general fertilisers, which perfectly conform to the orientation of the Central
Government’s macroeconomic policies, and will benefit from the support of domestic policies over the long term.



Chairman’s Statement

In order to advance the sustainable development of modern agriculture, the Chinese Government promotes refined scientific
fertilisation which encourages soil testing and formulated fertilisation based on “high yield and quality; efficient and eco-
friendly; farming and protecting the land.” Its fertiliser fall under two categories, namely, organic fertilisers and compound
fertilisers, and are speciality products which modulate and facilitate the imbalance between nutrition requirements of crops
and soil-bound nutrients. While providing necessary nutrients for specific crops, these fertilisers also improve sail fertility and
crop quality, hence achieving enhanced quality and higher yields. In pace with the ongoing significant increase in the market
share of ecological fertilisers in the entire fertiliser market, the Group distinguishes itself from its peers in a fiercely competitive
market and achieved outstanding results by utilising its advantage of product differentiation and seizing initiatives. In order to
reinforce its leading market position, the Group will continue to utilise its ascendant technologies and resources, focus on
research and development as well as innovation to proactively develop differentiated high-performance products, further
carving out a bigger space in the high-end fertiliser market.

Outlook

Both of the Group’s principal business arms — magnesium products and fertilisers — are based on “eco-friendly, green and
sustainability” principles, fitting in with the trend of economic transformation in China and in full compliance with the domestic
policy orientation of sustainable development. Looking forward, in view of the increasing global emphasis on a low-carbon
ecological economy, the Group has every confidence in the prospects of magnesium alloys and the ecological fertiliser
market. With continuous investment in technological research, development and innovation, the Group take a prudent
approach in implementing its production expansion plan to enhance operating efficiency, so as to achieve greater returns for
its shareholders.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude to our management team and staff
for their efforts and contribution to the Group’s expeditious business growth. Meanwhile, | would like to thank our
shareholders, business partners and all our customers for their unremitting confidence in and support for the Group. Looking
forward, we will progressively exert our best efforts to building a better future, perhaps even a better century, for Century
Sunshine.

Chi Wen Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group maintained high growth in its business in 2014. Total revenue for the year amounted to HK$2,072,519,000,
representing an increase of approximately 26.4% as compared to 2013, among which magnesium products and fertilisers,
the two principal business undertakings, recorded satisfactory performance. Revenue from the magnesium product business
reached HK$696,904,000 for 2014 (2013: HK$547,366,000), accounting for approximately 33.6% (2013: 33.3%) of the
Group’s total revenue and representing an increase of 27.3% as compared to 2013, while revenue from the fertiliser business
stood at HK$1,277,282,000 for 2014 (2013: HK$1,028,068,000), accounting for 61.6% (2013: 62.7%) of the Group's total
revenue and representing an increase of 24.2% as compared to 2013. Profit attributable to owners of the Company in 2014
was HK$287,910,000 (2013: HK$230,215,000), representing an increase of approximately 25.1% as compared to 2013.

Magnesium Product Business

The magnesium product business continued a rapid growth momentum marked by excellent results whether in terms of
sales or revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the magnesium product business contributed HK$696,904,000
(2018: HK547,366,000) to Group revenue, an increase of 27.3% year-on-year. The business products included basic
magnesium products and rare earth magnesium alloys, carrying an average gross margin of 32.1% (2013: 32.7%).

The Group is one of the few integrated enterprises in the PRC’s magnesium industry. Its production base has been
designated as a Demonstration Base for Comprehensive Applications of Mining Resources in the PRC by the Ministry of
Land and Resources and the Ministry of Finance of the PRC. In 2013, a subsidiary of the Changchun Institute of Applied
Chemistry under the Chinese Academy of Sciences — an authoritative institution engaged in researching rare earth
magnesium alloys — was successfully introduced into the Group as a strategic shareholder. The move has further bolstered
the Group’s science research standards. Given the possession of patents regarding rare earth magnesium alloys and the full
expansion of the advantages in transportation alongside state-of-the-art production technology for its own raw material
resources, the Group continued to be well positioned competitively in the industry.

Magnesium alloys are currently one of the lightest structural metals in engineering applications. They boast various features
such as low density and high strength, and have attractive industrial properties such as desirable casting, welding and
machining functionality, and are hailed as “a green engineering material with the most potential for development and
application in the 21st century.” They are currently widely used in various industrial areas such as transportation, 3C products,
aerospace and chemicals. Against the backdrop of China’s strong push for energy conservation and emissions reduction,
market demand for magnesium alloys continued to climb. According to the initial output target under the “13th Five-year”
development plan for the PRC’s magnesium industry currently under preparation, raw magnesium output in the PRC wiil
increase from approximately 800,000 tonnes in 2014 to approximately 1.3 million tonnes at the end of the “13th Five-year”
development plan in 2020, with an average annual growth rate maintained at 8.4%, higher than the average economic
growth rate of around 7% expected during the period of the “Twelfth Five-year Plan” or the “Thirteenth Five-year Plan”.

The Group’s annual production capacity of magnesium is anticipated to reach 75,000 tonnes upon completion of the second

phase expansion as at the end of 2016. The rapid expansion of capacity and the rapid growth in industry demand will lay a
solid foundation for sustainable, high growth in the Group’s magnesium products business.
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Fertiliser Business

Against the backdrop of the general performance in the fertiliser market as a whole, the Group posted steady growth in both
product sales and revenue by basing operations on an environmental-friendly, green and eco business-oriented approach as
its mission; using a product mix comprising exclusive and superior products at the core, and employing a competitive
strategy for product differentiation as a feature. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fertiliser business contributed
HK$1,277,282,000 (2013: HK$1,028,068,000) to the Group in revenue, an increase of up to 24.2% year-on-year. The
fertiliser business mainly covers two product categories — compound fertilisers and organic fertilisers.

China’s economy is currently in a transitional period, while agriculture is also switching from an extensive operational model to
an ecological, green and sustainable new agricultural development model. As a result, while the same products are being
made and similar business models are being adopted by those enterprises engaged only in the single fertiliser business, they
are encountering a difficult business environment. Meanwhile, greater market space is being ceded to those enterprises
engaged in producing environmental-friendly, green and eco products. The organic fertiliser business of the Group is growing
rapidly and continuously because of the new agricultural development model, which is an inevitable result of the survival of
the fittest.

Silicon Magnesium (“Si-Mg”) fertiliser, a high-margin superior product of the Group’s fertiliser business, can provide crops
with more comprehensive and balanced nutrition. In the PRC, where more than about 50% of 450 million mu of paddy rice
soils contain low silicon content, and 19% of the soils contain low magnesium content, Si-Mg fertiliser is effective in improving
soil structure and increasing crop resistance to pests and disease. This product has been well-received by the market since
its launch in 2012. Moreover, the Group’s high-grade serpentine reserves provide ample raw material resources and cost
advantages for Si-Mg fertilisers, having improved the gross margin of the product.

To seize opportunities arising from the rapid development of the market for ecological fertilisers, the Group is aggressively
implementing a plan to expand production capacity. The annual capacity of the Group’s fertiliser business reached 750,000
tonnes at its production base located in Jiangsu by the first quarter of 2015. This additional 300,000 tonnes annual capacity
is the first phase of the expansion project. The Group will continue its expansion to further enhance its product line to meet
market demand.

Other Businesses

The metallurgical flux business is the Group’s secondary business. The abundant, superb quality serpentine reserves not only
provide a key raw material to produce Si-Mg fertilisers, but also an indispensable source of auxiliary material for iron and steel
smelting. On the premise that an adequate and steady source of raw material is secured for the production of Si-Mg
fertilisers, the Group will sell a manageable amount of serpentine reserves to major domestic steel enterprises for stable
revenue generation. During the year, revenue from the metallurgical flux business amounted to HK$98,333,000 (2013:
HK$64,857,000), representing 4.8% (2013: 4.0%) of the total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Outlook

The Group’s dual business model on parallel development and product differentiation continued to generate encouraging
results for the Group. Riding on the growth momentum over the past years, the Group will further expand full advantages in
patents and proprietary technologies ahead of its counterparts, and given its abundant reserves of quality raw materials, it will
uphold the continuously innovative concept of corporate development and aims to develop substantial shares of high-
performance, high-profit yet low-cost highly heterogeneous products to secure the first tier market position for the Group.
Moreover, its increasing proportion of high-margin products will be vital in enhancing its overall profitability.

Looking forward to 2015, management has full confidence in sustaining its rapid growth. With the support of the Chinese
government’s favourable industrial policies, the Group will expand its production capacity — continue to strengthen
operational management, consolidate its leading position in the industry and strive to create better returns for shareholders.

Key Operational Data

Unaudited key operational data for the year ended 31 December 2014, together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2013, is as follows. Main businesses listed below contributed over 95% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

(a) Sales volume of major products:

Year
2014 2013 Increased
Tonnes Tonnes %
Magnesium product business 22,783 16,898 34.8
Fertiliser business 544,356 419,244 29.8

(b) Average selling prices of major products:

Year
2014 2013 Decreased
per tonne per tonne
HK$ HK$
Magnesium product business 29,322 31,077 (5.6)
Fertiliser business 2,343 2,446 4.2)
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(c) Gross profit margins of major products:

Increased/

(Decreased)

Percentage

points

Magnesium product business 32.1 32.7 0.6)

Fertiliser business 27.1 26.3 0.8

The Group’s gross profit margin 31.8 31.0 0.8
Revenue

Total revenue of the Group in 2014 amounted to approximately HK$2,072,519,000 (2013: approximately
HK$1,640,291,000), representing a growth of about 26.4%. This is mainly due to increase in sale volume. During the year,
sale quantities for magnesium products business and fertilisers business have increased by 34.8% and 29.8% respectively.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for 2014 amounted to approximately HK$1,412,575,000 (2013: HK$1,132,526,000), an increase of around
24.7% over last year. Among which, approximately 32.5%, 65.9% and 1.6% are attributable to magnesium product
business, fertiliser business and metallurgical flux business respectively (2013: approximately 31.5%, 66.9% and 1.6%
respectively). Cost of sales mainly comprised of material cost and utilities cost, that accounted for approximately 88.0% of
total cost of sales.

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit for 2014 was approximately HK$659,944,000 (2013: HK$507,765,000), surged by approximately
30.0%. The consolidated gross profit margin raised from 31.0% to approximately 31.8%. This is mainly due to the change
and improvement in product mix, thereby enhancing the Group’s overall gross profit ratio.

Selling and Marketing Costs

Selling and marketing costs were approximately HK$103,116,000 (2013: HK$69,437,000), which mainly comprised of
transportation costs of approximately 67.7% and staff costs, entertainment and commission of approximately 24.1% (2013:
approximately 69.2% and 22.7% respectively). Selling and marketing costs accounted for approximately 5.0% (2013:
approximately 4.2%) of total revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$63,302,000 (2013: HK$55,767,000), which mainly comprised of staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, audit and professional fees and occupancy costs, accounting for approximately
35.5%, 15.4%, 9.5% and 4.3% (2013: approximately 39.6%, 24.4%, 6.1% and 4.1%) respectively of the total administrative
expenses for the year.

Increase in administrative expenses was mainly resulted from expenses incurred for coping with expansion of our businesses,
yet, the Group was still able to minimise such expenses as it only represented approximately 3.1% (2013: approximately
3.4%) of total revenue.

27



HABLEEERERA A

Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains amounted to approximately HK$15,055,000 (2013: HK$11,782,000), mainly comprised of interest
income and rental income accounting to approximately HK$8,544,000 and HK$4,766,000 (2013: approximately
HK$5,157,000 and HK$5,241,000) respectively.

Margin

Profit for the year amounted to approximately HK$339,641,000 (2013: HK$277,133,000), leaped by approximately 22.6%.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year amounted to HK$287,910,000 (2013: HK$230,215,000), increased
by approximately 25.1%.

Liquidity, Liabilities and Financial Resources
The Group’s liquidity in 2014 was mainly derived from cash generated from business operations. As at 31 December 2014,
total amount of cash and bank balances of the Group was approximately HK$828,782,000 (2013: HK$422,901,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total borrowings increased by approximately 195.7% as compared to 2013, while net
current assets increased by approximately 52.3% as compared to 2013. The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total
borrowings over total assets) was approximately 23.4% in 2014 (2013: 10.6%).

The Group’s existing cash resources together with the steady cash flows generated from business activities are sufficient to
meet its business needs. Net cash generated from operating activities amounted to HK$322,910,000 (2013:
HK$301,371,000).

Exchange Rate Risk Management

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from primarily with respect to HK$, Renminbi, US$ and Australian dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group’s
management does not expect the net foreign currency risk from these activities to be significant and hence, the Group does
not presently hedge the foreign exchange risks. The Group periodically reviews liquid assets and liabilities held in currencies
other than HK$ to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and consider the usage of hedging instruments when
necessary.

Credit Risk Management

The Group has always been aware of the credit risk exposure of our customers. The Group strictly followed the “client
account management procedures” established in 2004. The procedures required and ensured that all clients were regularly
assessed and be kept track of their transaction records and credit history. The Group specified and assigned to each
customer, as according to their operation and credit status, a series of credit measures such as credit ratio, credit period,
credit rating, credit terms and guarantee. The client account management procedures were effective to control the credit risk
of the Group.
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Significant Transactions

)

(i)

On 24 February 2014, the Company and International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) completed the Share Subscription
Agreement. Pursuant to which, IFC had subscribed for an aggregate of 155,077,000 fully paid subscription shares at
HK$0.75 each. The fund raised was approximately HK$116,308,000. Details of which are disclosed in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

On 27 June 2014, the Company had issued convertible bonds with the principal amount of HK$115,000,000 and
HK$180,000,000. Details of which are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.

The aggregate proceeds raised of approximately HK$4 11,308,000 was used for capital expenditure and expansion of
production capacity.

On 19 December 2014, Ming Xin Developments Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement and a subscription agreement, for the acquisition of 500,000,000 existing shares and the
subscription of 239,532,000 new shares of Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601) (“Group Senses”) at
the consideration of HK$229,600,000 and HK$76,650,000 respectively. The transactions were completed on 26
February 2015. As the Group gained 51.46% controlling interest in Group Senses after the completion, mandatory
general offer were made by the Group on 5 March 2015 and expected to complete on 26 March 2015. For details,
please refer to the relevant announcements and circulars published by the Group on the HKEx and the Company’s
websites.

On 4 February 2015, the Company entered into a non-legally binding framework agreement with an independent third
party (the “Vendor”) in relation to the proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in operating project companies (the
“Subject Companies”) as owned by the Vendor (the “Proposed Acquisition”). The Subject Companies mainly engage in
magnesium business and its ancillary businesses including power generation and semi-coke. For more details in
relation to the Proposed Acquisition, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 4 February 2015.

In relation to the Proposed Acquisition, the Group will review the negotiation progress from time to time, so as to
access the funding requirement and position; and, to tailor appropriate funding policies, including but not limiting to
bank borrowings, debt and equity financing, etc. In the event that the Proposed Acquisition proceeds, the Company
will comply with the relevant disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and/or the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers as and when appropriate.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had pledge of its assets, details of which are disclosed in Note 30 to the financial

statements.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2014, other than those disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements, the Group did not have any
material capital commitments.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2014, other than those disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2014, the issued share capital of the Company were HK$58,112,771, divided into 2,905,638,537 shares
of HK$0.02 each.

Human Resources

The number of employees of the Group was approximately 1,290 (2013: 1,250) as at 31 December 2014. The remuneration
of employees was determined by the Group with reference to their performance, work experience and current market
conditions. Employee benefits include medical insurance, defined provident fund scheme, discretionary bonus and employee
share option scheme. There has been no labour dispute or significant change in the number of employees that affect the
normal operations of the Group. The Directors believe that the Group maintains admirable relations with its employees.

Project Overview

Dolomite Mine

The Group’s dolomite mine is situated in Baishan City, Jilin Province, the PRC. The mine is operated by open-pit method,
and therefore no additional exploration works are involved or required. Only simple infrastructure works for open-pit mining
are involved in the development activities, and no underground drilling or structural works are involved. The dolomite mined is
raw material for producing magnesium products of the Group. The transportation cost for raw material is relatively low due to
the close proximity of the mine to the production base of the Group.

As disclosed in the 2010 annual report, the dolomite mine of the Group was reported under the Chinese resource/reserve
categories. As at 31 December 2014, the anticipated resource and reserve volumes were determined based on the yearly
reduction of quantity mined to calculate the remaining resource and reserve volumes. There is no material change in the
assumptions of estimation by the Group as compared with those previously disclosed. The resource and reserve volumes
was reviewed by the Group’s internal geological experts. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group completed a
dolomite output of 414,722 tonnes (2013: 315,236 tonnes). As compared with the state as at 31 December 2013, there was
no material change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of the dolomite mine.

During 2014, the expenditures incurred in development activities were mainly for infrastructure construction such as roads
and sewage disposal systems, and environmental protection, etc. Such expenditures have been capitalised and included in
the consolidated statement of financial position for 2014. The expenditures incurred in mining activities were mainly for direct
wages, materials, energy, transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc. Such expenditures have been included in cost
of sales and charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income for 2014.

The expenditure incurred in development and mining production activities of dolomite for the year ended 31 December 2014

were approximately HK$92,402,000 and HK$17,074,000 respectively while the expenditure incurred in exploration was
HK$NIl.
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Serpentine Mine

The Group’s serpentine mine is situated in Donghai County, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The mine is operated by open-pit
method, and therefore no additional exploration works are involved or required. Only simple infrastructure works for open-pit
mining are involved in the development activities, and no underground drilling or structural works are involved. The serpentine
mined is sold directly as metallurgical flux for iron and steel smelting and is raw material for producing silicon magnesium
fertilisers of the Group. The transportation cost for raw material is relatively low due to the close proximity of the mine to the
production base of the Group.

As disclosed in the 2010 annual report, the resource/reserve of the Serpentine Mine was reported under the JORC system
when it was acquired in 2010. As at 31 December 2014, the anticipated resource and reserve volumes were determined
based on the volume at the time of acquisition with the yearly reduction of quantity mined to calculate the remaining resource
and reserve volumes. There is no material change in the assumptions of estimation by the Group as compared with those
previously disclosed. The resource and reserve volumes was reviewed by the Group’s internal geological experts. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, the Group completed a serpentine output of 539,823 tonnes (2013: 543,526 tonnes). As
compared with the state as at 31 December 2013, there was no material change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of
the serpentine mine.

The expenditures incurred for 2014 in development activities were mainly for infrastructure construction such as roads and
sewage disposal systems, and environmental protection, etc. Such expenditures have been capitalised and included in the
consolidated statement of financial position for 2014. The expenditures incurred in mining activities were mainly for direct
wages, materials, energy, transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc. Such expenditures have been included in cost
of sales and charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income for 2014.

The expenditure incurred in development and mining production activities of serpentine for the year ended 31 December

2014 was approximately HK$51,225,000 and HK$51,806,000 respectively while the expenditure incurred in exploration was
HK$NIL.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Executive Directors

CHI Wen Fu, aged 52, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group who is responsible for overall strategic planning
and key operating decisions. Mr. Chi started his law firm in Fuzhou in 1995, in which he was the Managing Partner. Prior to
that, Mr. Chi joined Fuzhou Justice Bureau Commerce Law Office after qualifying as a lawyer in the PRC in 1989. In early
1998, Mr. Chi originated an initial research on organic agricultural production and funded a R&D project on microbial
compound fertilisers. Mr. Chi is a graduate of Chemical Analysis and Law. Mr. Chi established the Group in 2000.

SHUM Sai Chit, aged 57, Chief Operation Officer of the Group who is responsible for business operations. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director of Go Modern Limited which was principally engaged in manufacturing of
textile products and trading activities. In 1984, Mr. Shum joined Fuijian Textiles Import and Export Corporation as a Manager
to oversee importing and exporting of textile products. Mr. Shum is a graduate of Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics.
Mr. Shum has joined the Group since January 2002. Mr. Shum is currently an executive director of Group Sense
(International) Limited (stock code: 601).

CHI Bi Fen, aged 56, Vice-President of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy General Manager of
an electronics equipment company over 17 years. She has an extensive experience in accounting, taxation and finance in the
PRC for more than 15 years. She is a graduate of Accounting and Finance. Ms. Chi has joined the Group since March 2000.
Ms. Chi is currently an executive director of Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601).

YANG Yuchuan, aged 50, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in the People’s Republic of China with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1985. In 1993, Mr. Yang obtained a master’s degree of business administration from
McLaren School of Business, University of San Francisco in the United States of America. Mr. Yang used to manage and
operate former subsidiaries of the Group, Partners Capital Securities Limited and Sunshine Asset Management (HK) Limited,
and is very experienced in financial industry. Mr. Yang has been a non-executive director of TTG Fintech Limited, a company
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (stock code: TUP) since December 2011.

Non-Executive Director

GUO Mengyong, aged 56, is a Deputy General Manager of Fujian Changsheng Wireless Technology Development
Company Limited. He is responsible for electronic engineering technical management. Fujian Changsheng Wireless
Technology Development Company Limited is principally engaged in production of electronic products and communication
devices. Mr. Guo joined Fuzhou Capacitors Factory as a Technician in 1976. From 1993 onwards, Mr. Guo worked at
Fuzhou Meters Group Company as an Engineer and later promoted to the Deputy Factory Manager in 1996, in charging of
technical quality control. In 2000, Mr. Guo joined Fujian Wireless Group Company as Deputy General Manager and was
responsible for quality management. He is a graduate of Industrial Enterprise Management. Mr. Guo has joined the Group
since February 2011.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

KWONG Ping Man, aged 50, Director of O’Park Corporate Services Limited which provides corporate advisory services.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwong served as the Chief Financial Officer of various companies for aimost 7 years. Mr.
Kwong has over 15 years of experience in accounting, finance and administration. He obtained a Master’s Degree in
Professional Accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of CPA Australia, fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Mr.
Kwong is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1181),
Elegance Optical International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 907), Yat Sing Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 3708) and Group Sense
(International) Limited (stock code: 601).

SHENG Hong, aged 52, Director of Hadrian Manufacturing (Asia) Limited and Director of Operations and General Manager
of Hadrian (Shanghai) Trading Limited. The Hadrian Group is principally engaged in production and sales of metal partitions
and lockers. Mr. Sheng has over 20 years of experience in management of corporation and investment. He was employed by
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited from 1986 to 1996. Mr. Sheng holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering
Mechanics from Tongji University, Shanghai.

Lau Chi Kit, aged 70, an executive director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997). He retired from The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) in December 2000 after more than 35 years of service.
Among the major positions in HSBC, he was the assistant general manager and head of Personal Banking Hong Kong and
assistant general manager and head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-Pacific Region. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000). He is currently the honorary advisor of the Institute’s Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number of
committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, including the Advisory Council on
the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development in the
Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May 2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (from January 2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee
(from August 2000 to October 2006), the Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting Committee (from
January 2000 to December 2004) and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee (from February 1990 to March
2006). He also served as chairman of the Business Environment Council Limited (from September 1998 to December 2001).
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Highlight China loT International Limited (formerly known as
Ford Glory Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1682), Royale Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198) and Leoch
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 842).

Company Secretary

LUK Sai Wai, Simon, aged 51, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Luk is responsible for
financial, management accounting and secretarial affairs of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luk was appointed as
financial controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of experience in finance and
management. Mr. Luk holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University and a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Strathclyde. He is an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and a member of Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong. Mr. Luk joined the Group in May 2010.
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Panel of Senior Consultants

Panel of Senior Consultants (the “Panel”) of the Group has strong technical background and expertise in magnesium alloy
smelting and research and development in new materials. The appointment of the Panel is to provide the Group with solid
technical and resources measure for the development of Magnesium Product Business. Members’ remunerations of the
Panel are based on the nature and scope of consultancy services provided. There is no fixed remuneration arrangement
between the Group and the Panel.

ZHANG Hongjie, aged 61, Scientific Technology Consultant of the Group. He is a Researcher of Changchun Institute of
Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences and a tutor of PhD students. He was honoured the Outstanding Young
Scholar Award of National Outstanding Youth Fund and Hong Kong Qiu Shi Fund. He was also awarded as the Expert with
Outstanding Contributions in Jilin Province. Mr. Zhang has been engaging in research and development for rare earth alloys
and new materials. He is the Deputy Chief Scientist of National Rare Earth Fundamental Research. He is also Officers of State
Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, and Rare Earth Luminescent Professional Committee of Rare Earth
Society. He holds a Master’s Degree in Science from Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of
Sciences. He is undertaking a PhD at National Scientific Research Centre, University of Bordeaux, France.

MENG Jian, aged 58, Rare Earth Magnesium Alloy Consultant of the Group. He has been appointed as the Professor and
the Deputy Officer of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of
Chinese Academy of Science. He is the Deputy Officer of Professional Committee of Solid Science and New Materials of
Chinese Society of Rare Earth. He is also a director of Chinese Society of Rare Earth and Nonferrous Metals Society of China.
Mr. Meng is an expert of the Association of China Rare Earth Industry and China Magnesium Association. Mr. Meng has
been engaging in research and development of rare earth magnesium alloys and new materials. He has contributed
substantially to the development and application of rare earth magnesium alloys in China. Mr. Meng majored in
semiconducting from Jilin University, and holds a Master’s Degree from the chemistry department of Chinese Academy of
Science. He holds a degree of doctor of Engineering from Toyohashi University of Technology, Japan. Mr. Meng is currently
an non-executive director of Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601).
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Senior Management

CHENG King Sang, aged 62, is responsible for the Magnesium Product Business of the Group. Mr. Cheng was appointed
as the Representative of the Municipal People Congress of Baishan City in Jilin Province for a period of five years, between
2007 and 2012. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years of experience in corporate management. Mr. Cheng joined Top Eminent
Industrial Limited as a Director in Hong Kong from 1989 to 1993. He was the Chairman of Fujian Top Eminent General
Electrical Company Limited since 1999. He is a graduate of Corporate Management. Mr. Cheng has joined the Group since
2008.

DU Qingzhi, aged 52, is responsible for the Magnesium Product Business of the Group. Mr. Du majored in metal metallurgy
with over 30 years of experience in metallurgy and magnesium industries. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Supervisor of
a magnesium factory in Hau Shan, the Factory-in-Charge of Lin Jiang Magnesium Holdings Limited, and the Production
Manager of German Stolfig Group — Automobile Parts and Components. Mr. Du joined the Group in 2008.

ZHOU Jianhui, aged 42, is responsible for the Fertiliser Business of the Group. Mr. Zhou majored in agriculture with over
20 years of experience in mining and agricultural fertilisers industries. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Technician at
Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, the Deputy Manager of Jiangsu Le He He Fertiliser Company Limited, and the
Factory-in-Charge of Fertiliser of Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 2007.

WANG Yongxiang, aged 46, Senior Engineer of the Group. Mr. Wang majored in planning and surveying of mining industry
with over 20 years of experience in planning and mining. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Production Technician and
Engineer at Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, and the Factory-in-Charge of Sulfuric Acid of Jiangsu Longteng
Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2007.

HON Sze Wan, Noelle, aged 42, Vice-President — Investor Relations of the Group who is responsible for financial
communications and investor relations strategy. Miss Hon has over 10 years of experience in marketing, corporate
development and communications, investor relations, media management, event coordination and online development. Prior
1o joining the Group, she held various senior management positions with listed companies in Hong Kong and the United
States. She holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Australian Graduate School of Management, University
of New South Whales. Miss Hon joined the Group in December 2011.

ZHANG Ren Sheng, aged 45, Director of Corporation Management of the Group who is responsible for corporate
management and planning. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in corporate management and business planning. He
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from School of Business of Wuhan University. Mr. Zhang joined the
Group in July 2008.

CHI Jing Chao, aged 32, Chief Corporate Affairs Officer of the Group who is responsible for the overall corporate activities.
Mr. Chi worked in various subsidiaries of the Group and has 10 years of experience in corporate affairs. Mr. Chi is a graduate
of Administrative Management from College of Adult Education, Xiamen University. Mr. Chi joined the Group in August 2004.

LEE Man Ching, age 35, Assistant to Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Ms. Lee has over 10 years of experience in
human resources and administrative management. Ms. Lee holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy and a Master’s
Degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Ms. Lee joined
the Group in August 2004.
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The Company is committed to achieve and maintain high standards
of corporate governance and business integrity. The Board believes
that good corporate governance will not only improve management
accountability and investors confidence, but will lay a good
foundation for the long-term development of the Company.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices
Throughout the year of 2014, the Company has complied with the
code provision as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report under Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), with the following deviations:

(@  Under code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (the “CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, there is no
separation between the roles of chairman and CEO under the
current corporate structure of the Company, details of which
have been disclosed in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
CEQ” below.

(o)  Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should also attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Mr. Guo Mengyong (being a non-
executive Director), Mr. Sheng Hong (being an independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. Liu Hoi Keung (being an
independent non-executive Director who has retired from the
Board on 28 April 2014) were unable to attend the annual
general meeting held on 28 April 2014 as they were obliged to
be away for business trips.
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The Board

The Group is governed by the Board which is responsible for
strategic leadership and overall supervision of the Group. The Board
exercises a number of authorities which include:

—  Formulating the Group’s overall strategies

—  Monitoring and controlling operational and financial
performance

—  Formulating strategies for risk management

—  Reviewing effectiveness of internal control system

—  Approving financial results and public announcements

—  Approving annual operating budgets

—  Approving major acquisitions or disposals and capital projects

— Authorising major investments and material borrowings

—  Setting dividend policy

—  Approving appointment of Directors

—  Setting the Group’s remuneration policies

The Board is also responsible for performing the functions set out in
code provision D.3.1. The Board will meet to develop, review and
monitor the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, to review and monitor training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, to
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors and to review the compliance
of the Company with the CG Code and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

During the year of 2014, in relation to the corporate governance
functions, the Board has reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and the regulatory and statutory requirements, and
the disclosure in the corporate governance report.

37



HEBKEBZRERAD A

TEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

FRERITHAR Chairman and CEO
AEBMAIM A ZTRERFTEFEITHRESE - Chi Wen Fu, founder of the Group, currently holds a dual role as the
b — R TANEXEA2. 11§ - A » B Chairman and the CEO. This structure does not comply with code
ERE HRMEETETFEMSEREELHREA  provision A.2.1. However, the Board is of the view that it is in the
B WHESIEAREEREERREEERSHEE  best interests of the Group to adopt a single leadership structure, as
EETAG ROE—BEEBHALAEENRE M. Chi possesses extensive experience and knowledge in the PRC
i - SARRAIEMIRR SR HIF] RAEHIARSE o b market and he is playing a significant role in establishing strategic
Sy EERSHBBRHUAEME LESEFEEAER  decisions and overall management of the Group. It enables the
REEFEMATETTREH B - EAME  Company to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.
—EEBEREME  AEEDERMAORERSE - #IR  Further, it is difficult for the Board to find a candidate with suitable
EHEENEETAE - I THESRRFESEE  qualiication and expertise in the market to fill the position of CEO at
TEHENEEREBREE - £F THEHRFES  this stage. With the single leadership structure, sufficient safeguards
SHEEAERMTE TR EBEMEEMNER - are established to ensure the management is accountable to the
URRESREANDERAEENER - £/ 1THAE  Board. The Chairman/CEO ensures Board meetings are held
HRBEMEESHIRETEHETZREMETRA  regularly and when necessary. The Chairman/ CEO ensures that
EERTFHXHIERAREERE - Board members are provided with complete, adequate, accurate
and timely information on a regular basis to enable them to be fully
cognisant of the affairs of the Group. The Chairman/CEQ ensures all
Directors have unrestricted access to document or information kept
by the Group and professional advice when necessary.

R20145F - EEE DR RERIME B IEHTTES  During 2014, the Chairman had met the non-executive Director and
MBI ERTES  EPISEHMHAITESHFE ©  the independent non-executive Directors respectively and individually
without the presence of other executive Directors.

EEEHRE Board Composition

EECHSZESMAN EP4ELAHTESE 14 The Board comprises 8 Directors in which 4 are executive Directors;

BIENITEE RSB ABIIENTES - AL - B 1 is non-executive Director and 3 are independent non-executive

FRTEZSHEMEESRBBE=ZN2— - IWAMRE  Directors. The number of independent non-executive Directors

HE  #2@7RERBES RSN EAFHREISE  constitutes more than one-third of the Board. The composition of

NE19E - the Board as at the date of this report and their profiles are set out
on page 32 and page 33 of this annual report respectively.

EZeRTHTEFTEEASEAEEERHNITE  The Board delegates powers to executive Directors for the day-to-

EERMZETERBERATRENEN  MMITESEA  day management of the Group and the implementation of major

HRENESSRHEEEHPLER  UHESEE  strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board whereas executive

REBE KRR - Directors should provide such explanations and information to the
Board in a timely manner to enable the Board to monitor the
performance of management.

FNTEFEBTRES  AEAARTREEMNSE  Non-executive Directors from diverse backgrounds bring in valuable

FENHECH  VESSSRHA  REEBMEERT  expertise and experience to the Company and serve important
BIRE - functions as well as provide strategic advices to the management.
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Independent non-executive Directors ensure that the Board is

accountable for the interest of all shareholders and handles matters

in an objective manner. The 3 independent non-executive Directors

have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,

knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and

effective delivery of the Board functions. The Board has received

from each independent non-executive Director an annual

confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the independent non-

executive Directors to be independent.

Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Ms. Chi Bi Fen have a family relationship of

brother and sister. Mr. Guo Mengyong is a brother-in-law of Mr. Chi

Wen Fu. Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship among

members of the Board.

Upon reviewing (i) the directorships and major commitments of each

Director; and (i) the attendance rate of each Director at the meetings

of the Board and its committees, the Board is satisfied that all

Directors have spent sufficient time in performing their

responsibilities during 2014.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect

of legal action against Directors.

Appointment and Re-election

Any potential new Directors, being individuals who are suitably

qualified and expected to make a positive contribution to the

performance of the Board, will be identified by the existing Directors

and the Nomination Committee and submitted to the Board for

approval.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at

each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the

Directors shall retire from office by rotation and every Director shall

be subject to retirement at least once every 3 years. Mr. Chi Wen

Fu, Mr. Guo Mengyong, Mr. Sheng Hong and Mr. Lau Chi Kit (being

a Director appointed by the Board after the preceding general

meeting of the Company) shall retire at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company, but being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.
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BIENTEERIBYIENITES (AISFZERL - B Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-
XA - B A M RIRH A A) D EARRRRIN executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo Mengyong, Mr. Kwong Ping
ZEZ - FHHRIHR2015%F2 818 201541 A1 Man, Mr. Sheng Hong and Mr. Lau Chi Kit, has entered into a letter
H - 2014F 98240 K2014%4 429 B AEAMF - of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of 2 years
HEEBERBEAQNR ZABSRMAZHETHIEE  commencing from 1 February 2015, 1 January 2015, 24 September
T EA—FAXARAFTHUEBELEL=(AE 2014 and 29 April 2014 respectively, subject to the provisions of
AEEBME TS - BUIEMITEENIEHITE  retirement and rotation of Directors under the articles of association
EEBFMEERERSTEHNAQRER L®A of the Company and save that either party or the Company may
ZEERFEELR - terminate the appointment by giving at least 3 months’ prior written
notice. Annual emoluments to independent non-executive Directors
and non-executive Director will be reviewed according to their
estimated time to be spent on the Company’s matters and their
working experience with the Company.

BRIFTBEATEESEFHISEEBSETFE - tb Al existing executive Directors are entitled to a fixed salary per
Gh - BIUBMITE S MBERESIZARQTES A annum respectively. In addition, each executive Director is also
ANEBRBERGAEMA(CHBRTE - JEEFR#ZEZ K entitled to a discretionary management bonus calculated as a
BIEEIRIEA I FE - BARINBIELEH MIEFKIE  percentage of the audited consolidated net profit of the Group
B)NE—BOLTENBBEIEMLLA - ZAN#E  attributable to the owners of the Company (after tax and non-
hMEFeBE T MARRES —HHREEEMFAESH  controling interests and the payment of such management bonuses
TEENEA BB SHBBZAN 5% - §IETT  but before extraordinary and exceptional items), which percentage
EENFHEFERESSKSEEMBEMAERE - shall be determined by the Board provided that the aggregate
BN R E B EITIRA - amount of the bonuses payable to all executive Directors in respect
of each financial year of the Company shall not exceed 5% of such
net profit. The remuneration of each executive Director is subject to
the annual review of the Board with reference to his/her contribution
in terms of time, effort and his/her expertise.

RER BERSRESEBESZEBEHMEE - ®  Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors and senior
BTSRRI s 131K FE © management during the year are disclosed in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

TEREFEVERNBITAXTBEHMELAIEH Al Directors are entitied to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses

Y MESHERFALRIBEARATEMESTE]  incurred during the performance of their duties to the Company and

BRERE - are eligible for share options under the share option scheme of the
Company.
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Meetings

Board Processes

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and leads the Group
in an ethical, responsible and effective manner. The Board meets on
a regular basis and arranges ad-hoc meetings for any specific
matters that may arise.

The Board met 4 times in 2014. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board, its committees and members
general meeting is set out in the following table:

i/ BT
Attended/held
BLEEe
i g BRAR
Nomination  Remuneration oo

Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings

YITES Executive Directors

HBXE Chi Wen Fu 4/4 - 11 - il
P RLE Shum Sai Chit 4/4 - - 1/1 1/1
B Chi Bi Fen 4/4 - - . 0
BE Yang Yuchuan 4/4 - - _ 11
FHITES Non-Executive Director

HaB Guo Mengyong 3/4 - - oA

VHFHTES Independent Non-Executive
Directors
B Kwong Ping Man 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
2958 Sheng Hong 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 01
2 pEn Lau Chi Kit™" 3/3 3/3 - - -
Bige Liu Hoi Keung? 11 11 - 11 0/1
! 201454 420 HEEE(E ! Appointed on 29 April 2014

2 K 2014F 4 B 28 HR(E

HIELENEEFEXHBREEERZBEEERE
ﬁmx%£m§$ Vi THRIIREREER - &
ERAREFEER LURERRTAHAZTER
L%ﬁﬁ%m°ﬁi£%%ﬁ§$%%$@%%ﬂ
ERRBEAZEETANDER  EREEHMA
BERTEFS %Zﬁiﬁﬁuiﬁﬁ ERZTT
AEHE -

2 Retired on 28 April 2014

Agendas and the accompanying board papers are circulated in full
to all Directors at least 3 days before the Board or committee
meeting. Board decisions will then be resolved either by vote at
Board meetings or by written resolutions. If a substantial shareholder
or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a
written resolution.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of the Board
committees taken by the company secretary of the Company and,
together with any supporting papers, are available for inspection to
all Directors. The minutes record the matters discussed by the
Board or its committees, the decisions made and any concerns or
dissenting views raised by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interests in relation to a transaction or
proposal to be considered by the Board, such Director is required to
declare his/her interest and abstain from voting. Such matter shall
be considered at a Board meeting by Directors who have no
material interest in the transaction or proposal.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director would receive an
induction package covering the Group’s business and the statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Group also regularly updates Directors on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and regulatory
requirements regarding subjects necessary in the discharge of their
duties. In addition, the Company has been encouraging Directors to
attend seminars on the latest development of applicable laws, rules
and regulations so that they can continuously update and further
improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, the training
received by each of the Directors during the period from 1 January
2014 up to 31 December 2014 is summarised as follows:

Type of
continuous
professional
development
Directors training notes
Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu B
Shum Sai Chit B
Chi Bi Fen Aand B
Yang Yuchuan B
Non-Executive Director
Guo Mengyong Aand B
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man AandB
Sheng Hong AandB
Lau Chi Kit B

notes:

A Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the Company’s
business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements etc.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategies and management of the daily
operations of the Group to the senior management who is required
to report back to the Board. Functions reserved to the Board and
the management are reviewed periodically. The Board and each
individual Director is empowered to access any Company’s
information from senior management and the company secretary at
all times. The Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including
amendments on relevant rules and regulations. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Directors are
allowed to seek independent professional advice in performing their
Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense, but no request was
made by any Director for such independent professional advice in
2014.

The Board monitors and reviews performance of the management
based on several key performance indicators such as financial
figures, investor relations, corporate governance and internal control.
The principal measures include review of management accounts,
review of internal or external auditor reports and feedbacks from
stakeholders.

Board Diversity Policy

During the year, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
effective on 1 September 2013. The Company seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 8 Directors.
Among which, one of them is a woman, one of them is non-
executive Director and three of them are independent non-executive
Directors. The Directors are of diverse educational background and
possess a wide spectrum of professional qualifications and business
experience. The Board is of significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, professional and educational background and
skills.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as the code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. The Company
made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors have
confirmed in writing that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the year.

Board’s Committees

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), and nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”). These committees
function within clearly defined terms of reference. Independent non-
executive Directors play a significant role in these committees to
ensure that independent and objective views are taken.

The terms of reference of these committees are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

All the members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. All committee members possess appropriate
qualifications such as accounting and financial management. The
Audit Committee members are set out in page 4 of the annual
report.
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ERLTEEN014FBMAREHE  NESHEE  The Audit Committee met 4 times in 2014 to review with the senior
B R AMNEAZ B AT T AN EE 2 E AN EIEH MBS management and external auditors the Group’s significant internal
EH(MEZZES 2 BESGERE) - E%ZE9E  controls and financial matters as set out in the Audit Committee’s
ZBEEBIETYEIE terms of reference. The functions of the Audit Committee included

the following matters:

— BHARECZYBHRERTAEESREHEEE — Reviewing the Group’s financial statements with
RAEH recommendation to the Board for approval

—  BEAEEETEMNEERENBR —  Reviewing the Group’s compliance of the regulatory and
statutory requirements

-  BEREEZNHEERERERE —  Reviewing the Group’s internal control and risk management

- BHERSHMEITZEA —  Reviewing significant accounting and audit issues

- BEAEBZEERS —  Reviewing the Group’s connected transactions

— ERLEREIMNEZHANMEER —  Overseeing and managing the relationship with external
auditors

ERZECEREHBESNEANSTMWETETHA  The Audit Committee has power to conduct investigations into any
B WEBTEBRSENRAANBAERESIIE  matter within the scope of responsibility of the Audit Committee. The
VEESR - REMBZRAAREZ2014F12 A31  Audit Committee is authorised to obtain independent professional
BItFEZMEHERA  BEREESCEEZHEA  advice if it deems necessary in the discharge of its responsibilities.
BEFBETMASEH 2 EESHAMIZETHESE  The Audit Committee has obtained a written confirmation from the
2001 (IEFTAR) 2T » SRS 2B MR EEMEM  auditors on their independence and objectivity as required under the
B2 EMEER - Section 290 (revised) of the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants prior to the commencement of the audit of the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014.

RER BZREZE8eDNERZERZEEg%A  During the year, the Audit Committee has carried out the above

BT bt B AE & O YA AR 2 B8 E - B2 - functions in the respective Audit Committee meetings and also has

ERMANBIMRREN - BXEZESEEKE been satisfied with the review of the audit scope, process,

Moo4 BN FEMBRE WHESEe@EEEm  effectiveness and independence of the auditors. The Audit

BEBAVBHRE EETCHEERZESWEREZE Committee has reviewed and recommended to the Board for

RSB ERDE - approval of the interim and annual financial statements for 2014.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the re-appointment of the auditors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4 members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee members are set out in page 4 of the
annual report.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to formulate
transparent procedures for setting remuneration policies and
packages for Directors and the senior management of the Group.
[ts duties include:

—  Reviewing and recommending to the Board the remuneration
packages of individual executive and non-executive Directors
and the senior management of the Group

—  Reviewing the administration of the share option scheme of
the Company

—  Reviewing the appropriateness of compensation for Directors
and the senior management of the Group

No Director is involved in determining his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee met 1 time in 2014 to review the existing
remuneration policies of the Directors and senior management and
consider the remuneration package of Mr. Lau Chi Kit as an
independent non-executive Director.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 3 members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee members are out in page 4 of the annual
report.

[ts duties include:

—  Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board

— Recommending any proposed change to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategies

—  |dentifying capable and qualified individuals to become Board
members

— Assessing independence of independent non-executive
Directors

—  Recommending appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors

The Nomination Committee met 1 time in 2014 for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendation to the Board in the re-appointment of retiring
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
considering nomination of Mr. Lau Chi Kit as a candidate for
directorship.

In carrying out the responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will give adequate consideration to the board diversity
policy.
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Auditors’ Remuneration
The Company had appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the auditors of the Group. The Board was also authorised in the
annual general meeting to determine the remuneration of the
auditors. During the year, the auditors performed the work of
statutory audit for the year of 2014.

The following principles are considered when determining the
appointment of the auditors in non-audit services:

—  No management decision made by the auditors
—  Independence of the auditors not to be impaired
—  Quality of service

—  Cost of service

The remuneration of the auditors for the year of 2014 and 2013 are
as follows:

EESTTMEERERAR HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
FENZIRTS Audit services

1,028,000 1,024,000

AEEZREMBERESAMEEMERARER
HERGRABRTZRFBFRE LEW - B
ZEGCMEFSEZ  RABRTZRRESFK
ELBRZEEEEIMEBRERARBARF
2 1% EED o

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be reappointed
as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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Respective Responsibilities of Directors and
Auditors

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparation of
the financial statements for each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries and in compliance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules.

The auditors acknowledge their responsibilities in the auditors’
report as set out on pages 65 and 66 of this annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls
with a view to ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the
Group’s assets are safeguarded. This responsibility is primarily
fulfilled on its behalf by the Audit Committee. In the year under
review, the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board, has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Group, covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions.

The foundation of a strong system of internal control is a solid
control environment. This is dependent on the following
components:

—  Business ethics and culture of the organisation
—  Quality and competence of its personnel

—  Direction provided by the Board, and

—  Effectiveness of the management

Risk Management

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The management of the Company reviews all significant control
policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the
Board and Audit Committee.
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Communication with Shareholders and
Investor Relations

The Company recognises the importance of open communication
and fair disclosure. It is the Company’s policy to ensure that all
shareholders are equally informed of all major corporate
developments.

All shareholders have proper notice of any general meeting of the
Company at which the Directors and the committees’ members are
available to give explanation on any query raised by the
shareholders. Major information of the Company could be obtained
from the Company’s website or financial reports and circulars sent
to the shareholders. Any enquiries by the shareholders requiring the
Board'’s attention can also be sent in writing to the Vice-President-
Investor Relations of the Company whose contact details are set out
in the paragraph headed “Shareholders’ rights — (c) Right to put
enquiries to the Board” below.

Resolutions put to the vote at the general meetings of the Company
shall be decided on a poll, save that the chairman of the meeting
may in good faith allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of
hands. Procedures for conducting a poll will be explained to the
shareholders at each general meeting and questions from
shareholders regarding the voting procedures will be answered. The
poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

As part of a regular program of investor relations, senior executives
may hold briefings or road shows after the results announcement
and attend conferences with institutional investors and analysts to
engage in two-way communications on Company’s performance,
objectives and developments. Company visits can be arranged
upon specific request.
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Shareholders’ Rights
(a) Right to Convene Extraordinary General

Meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit it to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, and such request may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the requisitionist(s).

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon the confirmation of the
branch share registrar that the request is in order, the
company secretary of the Company will ask the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with all relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements to all registered members. On the contrary, if the
request is verified as not in order, the requisitionist(s) will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, an extraordinary
general meeting will not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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(b)

(c)

Right to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the articles of association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution may request
the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regard the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on
the website of the Company at www.centurysunshine.com.hk.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing for the attention of the Vice-
President — Investor Relations of the Company whose contact
details are as follows:

Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

Email: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk

The Vice-President — Investor Relations of the Company shall
forward the shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to the
Board and/or relevant committees of the Board to answer the
shareholders’ questions where appropriate.

Company Secretary
Mr. Luk Sai Wai, Simon is an employee of the Company and has

been appointed as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from 1 May 2010. The biographical details of Mr. Luk are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management

Profile”.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Luk has taken no

less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
financial year ended 31 December 2014.

53



HABLEEERERA A

EEERE
Directors’ Report

EEENMAREARE ERAELEEZ2014F
12 A31 BILFE 2 EEZMTE®RE - BRARKTIR
REETET2H

ETREBREBBE D

ARBZEBEBHIREER - EXEMBRAAZ
EBREMFBRENMBRRME21 -

AEBRFEREEDBHNRRADMERV HIRE
i3t o B = 20144 K 2013512 31 A L FE
AEEFERPELERAEBMABRAEREF
i 201412 31 B &2013F 12 A31 8 -
REBRIBHIERBDEEIMNAPE - FEHER
EERESIDMEBEREEDN -

EEBERDIK
AREEHE2014F1I2A3MHIEFEZEEHNE
67 B iR B REMEERERA -

EEeREINEE2014F12A31BIEEEZR
HARS B &A% 0.50 11 ©

BITAR

BEOEERITART2015F6 B17BELERQA
REEMAZARARGE » EEAEGHA20KINE
IR R E 1 RAT AR © BHITARZARIE S ST LK
HZBANTE G R B E T EMETT -

54

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014, which are set out on pages 67 to 172.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are shown
under Note 21 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 8 to the financial statements. During the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group mainly
operated in the PRC and all of the Group’s revenue are derived from
the PRC and most of non-current assets of the Group are located in
the PRC as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. No
analysis of the Group’s result and assets by geographical area is
disclosed.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 67.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 of 0.50 HK cents per Share.

Bonus Issue of Shares

The Board recommends a bonus issue of shares on the basis of 1
bonus share for every 20 existing shares held by the shareholders of
the Company whose names are on the register of members on 17
June 2015. The bonus issue is subject to the conditions and trading
arrangements set out in the circular to be despatched to the
shareholders in due course.



EEERE
Directors’ Report

T EMBEHE Five Year Financial Summary
AEBRNBESEMMFE 2 ¥4E - BERBERE A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
HRAFHRECHE - last 5 financial years is set out on page 6 of the annual report.

¥ - BERRZE Property, Plant and Equipment

KEBZYE BELREEHFSHNYEHRRKR  Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
MIE17 o Group are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

BEWE Investment Properties

NEEZIREMEL BB RN M B RERME18 - Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

B 2 Share Capital
RARZBRAZEFIEEH N IEREM T34 Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

& Reserves
NEFERANTERNZ HESHFBHENYH/EK  Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of the
MI5ES5 © Company during the year are set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

Al it 2 e 1 Distributable Reserves
KRB R2014F12A31B 2 Al o Ik % & A&  Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2014
939,205,00078 7T (20134 : 787,737,000/ 7T) ° amounted to HK$939,205,000 (2013: HK$787,737,000).
BEBERE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

AATIZEBELMBIBESHEEMYEELE  There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

BRGT  HERQAT AR OIMREREIRZREE  articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which

EHAR - would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
1o existing shareholders.

BE - HESERAQAT LEHES Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

RER  RATKEEMMBATNEEES - HEsk  During the year, there was no purchase, sale and redemption of any

BRIARD B EfR EHES ° listed securities of the Company by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Chi Bi Fen

Yang Yuchuan

Non-Executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit (Appointed on 29 April 2014)

Liu Hoi Keung (Retired on 28 April 2014)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chi Wen Fu, Mr. Guo Mengyong and Mr. Sheng
Hong will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Mr. Lau Chi Kit, being the Director appointed by the Board after the
preceding general meeting of the Company, shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, would offer
himself for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
During the year, none of the Directors or the management
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 32 to 35 of the annual report.

Share Option Scheme

In order to attract and retain the best quality employees for the
development of the Group’s businesses and to provide additional
incentives or rewards to selected qualifying participants, the
Company adopted a share option scheme on 3 December 2008 (the
“Scheme”). The qualifying participants mainly include employees of
the Group, Directors and contractors, suppliers or service providers
of the Group who have contribution to the Group. The Scheme,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years.

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
the date of offer of the option; (i) the average closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share of HK$0.02. The
maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. Upon
acceptance of the offer for the grant of option, an amount of
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company.

The Company can issue options so that the total number of shares
that may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme does not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue on the date of approval of the Scheme. The Company may
refresh this 10% limit at any time, subject to shareholders’ approval
and the issue of a circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules
provided that the number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes does not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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BiEsTEIN20145F 128318551 Share Options Held at 31 December 2014

IR under the Scheme
H2014F
R2014F FREL FRTRE FRENK 12A31H TEE
1818%58 ZERE ZiERE ZERE B8 BT
Options Options Options
Held at granted exercised lapsed Held at Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December price
2014 the year the year the year 2014 HK$
() &S
Employees 135,445,000 - (67,745,000 - 67,700,000 0.5
40,000,000 - (12,600,000) - 27,400,000 0.8
(B) E=
Directors
BNE 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 05
ChiWen Fu
Lt 12,000,000 - (3,000,000) - 9,000,000 05
Shum Sai Chit
MBI 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 0.5
Chi Bi Fen
BHEE 5,000,000 - (2,000,000) - 3,000,000 0.5
Guo Mengyong
BRI 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 05
Kwong Ping Man
B 5,000,000 - (1,000,000) - 4,000,000 05
Sheng Hong
BRE 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) - 0.5
Liu Hoi Keung'
200,445,000 - (73,745,000) (3,000,000) 123,700,000 05
40,000,000 - (12,600,000) - 27,400,000 0.8
MiE note:
1. R2014F 4 A28 HRE © 1. Retired on 28 April 2014.
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EERIFETHAERAQATAREMNIEE Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in

FEERD - HERORES 2 #ES

the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and Any
Associated Corporation

R2014F12 A31H » AR AIZEEHRETETHA  Asat 31 December 2014, the relevant interests and short positions
BRARTISHEREEREZE(FTERESREEE  of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
B ([B5 RESEM ) EXVER) 2% - A%  underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
HNEHTATHENARATRIEZS NS EHIZEXY  associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
HEIB2MEFE 2 ERMA RS REAMT © Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), as recorded in the

() ESRAQAzEHR

RORE

EEHR

Name of Director

X E
ChiWen Fu

WOt R
Shum Sai Chit

NTEC DA
NUE=P2N

Chi Bi Fen

BENTHEED
Yang Yuchuan
(“Mr. Yang”)

HEHE

Guo Mengyong

B
Kwong Ping Man

o

/7N

Sheng Hong

BARER
Personal
interests

173,562,427

10,311,940

7,842,857

2,000,000

1,000,000

register to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of
the SFO were as follows:

(i) Directors’ Interests in the Company
Long Positions in Shares

PN
R2014F

BEBRE 12/31H
2 BRITRAE

(MiEE3) ZEDH
Percentage
of issued
share capital
BRRKRGOEE of the
Number of Shares held Company
(e 5 AR &% Number of Bt
Spouse Corporate options held 34 pecember
interests interests Total (note 3) 2014
- 960,472,728 1,134,035,155 39.08%
GERD) 20,000,000 0.69%
(note 1)
- - 10,311,940 0.35%
9,000,000 0.31%
- - 7,842,857 0.27%
15,000,000 0.52%
23,447,261 236,157,141 259,604,402 8.93%
GED)
(note 2)
- - 2,000,000 0.07%
3,000,000 0.10%
- - - 5,000,000 0.17%
- - 1,000,000 - 0.03%
- - - 4,000,000 0.14%
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notes:

1. These Shares are held by Alpha Sino International Limited
(“Alpha Sino”) and are deemed corporate interests by virtue of
Mr. Chi’s holding of 83.74% of the issued share capital of
Alpha Sino which entitled him to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Alpha Sino.

2. These Shares are held by Best Equity Holdings Limited (“Best
Equity”) and are deemed corporate interests by virtue of Mr.
Yang’s holding of 47.17% of the issued share capital of Best
Equity which entitled him to exercise or control the exercise of
one-third or more of the voting power at general meeting of
Best Equity.

3. Details of options held are set out in the above section headed
“Share Options Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of SFO.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2014, persons who had interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of equity
derivatives of the Company as recorded in the register required to

Name of
shareholder

X E
Chi Wen Fu

HE
Alpha Sino

el NG
International Finance
Corporation

EEI
Yang Yuchuan

BE ([ F2L 1)
Zou Li (“Ms. Zou”)

Best Equity

Greenhouse Century
Limited

Nature

RE
Long position

~BE
Long position

k&
Long position

®E
Long position

~BE
Long position

k&
Long position

®E
Long position

~BE
Long position

be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

R F]

2014 F

12A31H

ARRES 2 ERITRAE

BREHE BREROEE ZESHK

Percentage of

issued share

Number of capital of

conversion the Company

share of as at

Number Number Convertible 31 December

of Shares of options Bonds 2014

1,134,035,155 39.03%
(KM¥sE1)
(note 1)

20,000,000 0.69%

(MisE2)
(note 2)

960,472,728 33.06%
(BizE3D)
(note 3b)

499,945,000 17.21%
(M¥5E3)
(note 3)

259,604,402 8.93%
(MisE4)
(note 4)

236,157,141 8.13%
(M¥sE5)
(note 5)

236,157,141 8.13%
(KM¥sE5)
(note 5)

150,000,000 5.16%

(MizEe)
(note 6)
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notes:

Mr. Chi has interest in an aggregate of 1,134,035,155 Shares of
which (a) 173,562,427 Shares are beneficially owned by him and
registered in his name; and (b) 960,472,728 Shares are deemed
corporate interests by virtue of his holding of 83.74% of the issued
share capital of Alpha Sino which entitled him to exercise or control
the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Alpha Sino.

Details of options held are set out in the above section headed “Share
Options Scheme”.

IFC has interest in an aggregate of 499,945,000 Shares of which (a)
155,077,000 Shares are beneficially owned by it and registered in its
name; and (b) Pursuant to a share mortgage dated 10 July 2014,
Alpha Sino, being the substantial shareholder of the Company, had
mortgaged 344,868,000 Shares (representing approximately 12% of
the then issued share capital of the Company as at 10 July 2014) to
International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) to secure repayment of the
IFC Loan under a loan agreement dated 30 May 2014 entered into
between IFC and Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources Co. Ltd.

Mr. Yang has interest in an aggregate of 259,604,402 Shares of
which (a) 23,447,261 Shares are beneficially owned by his spouse,
Ms. Lao Min, and registered in her name; and (b) 236,157,141 Shares
are deemed corporate interests by virtue of his holding of 47.17% of
the issued share capital of Best Equity which entitled him to exercise
or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
general meeting of Best Equity (note 5).

These Shares are held by Best Equity and are deemed corporate
interests by virtue of Ms. Zou’s or Mr. Yang'’s holding of 52.83% and
47.17% respectively of the issued share capital of Best Equity which
entitled her or him to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or
more of the voting power at general meeting of Best Equity.

Greenhouse Company Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of China
Everbrights Assets Management Holdings Limited (“CEAMHL”).
CEAMHL is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Everbright Limited
(“CEL”, stock code: 165.HK).
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers
The percentage of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 11.3%
— 5 largest suppliers in aggregate 36.7%
Sales
— the largest customer 2.2%
— 5 largest customers in aggregate 10.0%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Connected Transaction
There was no connected transaction during the year and in last
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2014.
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Auditors

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2014 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as
the auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Shum Sai Chit
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015



B M B

2014 FF |

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

B 31/F., Gloucester Tower
iR The Landmark
EITH115% 11 Pedder Street
BHES Central
HERTITAES1E Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
67 to 172, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HZE2014F 12 A1 ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 FF |

2014 2013
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
A Revenue 7 2,072,519 1,640,291
HERAR Cost of sales (1,412,575) (1,132,526)
EF Gross profit 659,944 507,765
E M Rk e Other income and gains 9 15,055 11,782
HERMIGHEER Selling and marketing costs (103,116) (69,437)
THAX Administrative expenses (63,302) (65,767)
FEEERENDSE#E R Realised and unrealised gain/(loss)

REE W (EE) on investments held for trading 3,291 (1,313)
MBER Finance costs 10 (44,186) (21,441)
& BT 1S 55 AT s A Profit before income tax 467,686 371,589
FrsHif = Income tax expense 11 (128,045) (94,456)
FERRF Profit for the year 12 339,641 277,133
Efpzm (FIs), WA » #1k  Other comprehensive (expenses)/

FTiSHL income, net of income tax
HiE gt E D EE B Items that may be reclassified

ZIHE - subsequently to profit or loss:

FREG[AHEERE Net (loss)/gain arising on revaluation

B4z (B8), Ik of available-for-sale investment
FEE during the year (112,062) 18,867
REBINEBRIEEZ Exchange differences arising from
[ =58 translation of foreign operations (54,770) 54,953
FREMEE(BX) KA > Other comprehensive (expenses)/
HIBFTEH income for the year, net of
income tax (166,832) 73,820
FREEBALLE Total comprehensive income
for the year 172,809 350,953
TH AL EEFERER Profit for the year attributable to:
ZiN/NETEZZ =N Owners of the Company 287,910 230,215
FEIE R Non-controlling interests 51,731 46,918
339,641 277,133
THALTEEFRZEKRA Total comprehensive income

gaxE for the year attributable to:

KABER A Owners of the Company 153,187 295,930

SRR Non-controlling interests 19,622 55,023

172,809 350,953

BRER : Earnings per share:
— B — basic 15@ 10.241l cents 8.961lli cents
— — diluted 15(b) 9.96 1l cents 8.691lll cents

TSR B ANAR S IR A — &P -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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#2014 12 A31 A
As at 31 December 2014

2014

FHET
HK$’000

2013
FET
HK$'000

FRBEE Non-current assets
i A Land use rights 16 140,986 148,003
ME - BE K&EE Property, plant and equipment 17(a) 1,442,559 936,047
LB Investment properties 18 134,612 141,323
EEEE Intangible assets 19 80 80
PR Mining rights 20 549,498 576,278
S EFEERIE Payment for acquisition of patents 56,237 57,645
EBEWE  BEMEHED Deposits for acquisition of property,
b plant and equipment 35,089 8,538
2,359,061 1,867,914
RENEE Current assets
AHEERE Available-for-sale investment 22 30,391 142,453
FE Inventories 23 181,400 93,167
+ i {5 A Land use rights 16 3,400 3,485
B NEMERTZIE - FER Trade and other receivables,

R R prepayments and deposits 24 383,779 302,915
RIEEERE Investments held for trading 25 9,900 7,387
TESMEE Derivative financial assets 26 243 -
RITIFIK Deposits with banks 27 86,351 40,992
ReMkERBEEE Cash and cash equivalents 27 742,431 381,909

1,437,895 972,308

W REBAE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 R E AR FRIE Trade and other payables 28 311,465 209,782
FERTFT1SH4 Income tax payable 33,186 19,970
gE Borrowings 30 303,696 301,076
Al PR E & Convertible bonds 31 117,193 -
765,540 530,828
REBEETFE Net current assets 672,355 441,480

EERERRBEE Total assets less

current liabilities 3,031,416 2,309,394
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2014412 A31 A
As at 31 December 2014

HERBEE

Less: Non-current liabilities

2014

FET
HK$’000

2013
FHT
HK$'000

AR E 5 Convertible bonds 31 177,687 -

R A Deferred revenue 32 70,333 24,980

B8 Borrowings 30 291,718 -

EERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 33 125,037 131,452

664,775 156,432

EEFE Net assets 2,366,641 2,152,962
RATEAANELMBRAEARFE Capital and reserves attributable

to owners of the Company

&N Share capital 34 67,910 61,810

B Reserves 35 2,142,863 1,927,679

2,210,773 1,989,489

FERER Non-controlling interests 155,868 163,473

RS Total equity 2,366,641 2,152,962

FESH2015F 3 A 18 Bt/ MR EH R E 67
BB A HRE  YATHEZRKREE

M E
Chi Wen Fu
E=a

Director

BTSRRI B AN AR S R IR ey — BB -

March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

financial statements.

itiE

Shum Sai Chit

EF

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 172 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
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Statement of Financial Position
R2014E 12 31 BIEEE

As at 31 December 2014

2014

FHET
HK$’000

2013
FET
HK$'000

ERBEE Non-current assets
Y~ BB NS Property, plant and equipment 17(b) 1,142 807
BB RRZKE Investments in subsidiaries 21(a) 2,108 2,108
3,250 2,915
REEE Current assets
B 5 ME b EKFIE - Trade and other receivables,

ERFERES prepayments and deposits 24 1,172 855
PTESRMERE Derivative financial assets 26 243 -
FEWHI B A T 58 Amounts due from subsidiaries 21(b) 1,300,601 852,866
BeMERIBSHEE Cash and cash equivalents 27 21,288 613

1,323,304 854,334
B RBAE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 REMERK Trade and other payables 28 2,047 1,481
BIRSIER A4 Financial guarantee contracts 29 81 85
AR B Convertible bonds 31 117,193 -
119,321 1,566
REEERE Net current assets 1,203,983 852,768
EEHAERARBES Total assets less current
liabilities 1,207,233 855,683
B ERBEE Less: Non-current liabilities
Al PR E & Convertible bonds 31 177,687 -
EEFE Net assets 1,029,546 855,683

70



2014 FF |
ANNUAL REPORT 2014

B RSN &

Statement of Financial Position
R20145 12 B31 BILEFE
As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013

B aE FEx FHETT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000

AATEEAEGRRRHE Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company

[N Share capital 34 67,910 61,810
E= Reserves 35 961,636 793,873
R Total equity 1,029,546 855,683

BEEER2015F3 A 18 B ERIRIETIEEH N E67
BB 2B ®RE YA THESREES

MW E
Chi Wen Fu
BE
Director

FATEIR M B AR B AR A — B 1D ©

The financial statements on pages 67 to 172 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2015
and are signed on its behalf by:

Tt
Shum Sai Chit
=
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.

71



HEBKXEBZRERAD A

mERREER
;%“fgqugﬂtﬁd Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2014

LN IV
Attributable to owners of the Company

RABE  AEBRE  BRE  AWRE  THRES

BE  RORE  (EG)  EERE  (WRG) (KRG i BE  BERE REEH
Capital Convertible
redemption Capital ~ Statutory Share bonds
Share Share  reserve Revaluation  reserve  reserve option Translation equity Retained controlling
capital  premium  (note (i) i)) (note (i)  reserve  reserve reserve eamings  Sub-total interests
Th ThL ThL ; ThT Thn Th i} Th ThT T
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000 (9000 HK$000  HK§OOO  HK$O000
R018E1 1A Asat 1 January 2013 00683 733752 3499 9,668 13,666 35,500 1819 97,13 - (105 50578 162928 140262 1769514
g Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - - 3025 280216 6918 277133
EREHBZERA Other comprehensive income
(BHER) for the year (net of income tax)
ERBHEAREERE Nt gan arising on revaluation of
EEIEEE avalble-for-sale imvestment
during the year - - - 14150 - - - - - - - 14,150 4anr 18867
AEENERTES  Exchange dferences arsing from
JEREE translation of foreign operations - - - - - - - 51,565 - - - 51,565 3,388 54,953

FRAENAEE Total comprehensive income

forthe year - - - 14,150 - - - 51,665 - - 20215 296930 508 30993
BRASRE Finel dhidend paid 72 (4589 - - - - - - - - - (3863 - (3863
ERBRRE Transfer to reserve - - - - - 32262 - - - - B3 - - -
WHEAFZEAERS  Change i ownership nterest
in subsiclaries - - - - - - - - - 53,383 - 53,383 (31812 2151
ERESET,  Issueofordnay shares upon
Ll exercise of share options 401 10,069 - - - - (443 - - - - 10,027 - 10027
TREEERM322%  Equiy setfed shere-based
transactions - - - - - - 4760 - - - - 4760 - 4760
H13E12A3IBR  Asat31 December 2013
N14F1A1E and 1 January 2014 61810 739282 349 106818 13,666 67,812 6136 148697 - 53218 788541 1989480 163473 2152962
Ehgl Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 287,910 287,910 51,731 339,641
ERfh2ERL Other comprehensive
(NBAFER) expenses for the year,
(net of income tax)

EREMHTMAERE  Netloss arising on revaluation
ELERRE of available-for-sale

investment during the year - - - (84,047) - - - - - - - (84,047)  (28,015) (112,062
RERNEEKFEL  Exchange differences arising
EREE from translation of

foreign operations - - - - - - - (50,676) - - - (50,676)  (4,094) (54,770

FR2ANAEE Total comprehensive income

for the year 5 . - (40T . 5 . (BogTe) . - 287910 153,187 19622 172809
BEER Allotment of ordinary shares 3,02 113,206 - : - - - - - - - 116,308 - 116308
BlixaRe Final dividend paid 1211 (12990) 5 . - - : - 5 5 - (11,719 - (19
BANERE Share option lapsed - - - o = = (50) . - . 50 . . .
BRZRE Transfer o reserve - - - - - 39,87 - - - - (39,187) - - -
WE-BHEAR2  Acquisition of additional
EE interest of a subsidiary 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 c - (102,305) - (102305 [21.221) (1295%2)
FEBRELRTZ  Issue of ordinary shares upon
£aR exercise of share options 1,727 47,744 . . o - 2518 c . . - 46952 - 46952
RELERAAFZLS  Equity settled share-based

transactions - - - - - - 2,082 - - - - 2,082 - 2,082
BOERES Issue of convertible bonds - - - - - - - - 16719 - - 16719 - 16,779

H2014E123318  As at31 December 2014 67010 887,180 3499 22771 13,666 106990 5652 98021 16779  (49,027) 1,037,314 2210773 155868 2,366,641
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HZE2014F 12 A1 ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

fE

)

(i)

AR C R E AN R B E K AR B AR R
REBFEREZ AABRMZEE

EXEHEREEEEAEREBRENME B AR
B EE - EREBRERBRNMETZARBEN
MEE - W& Z5E o

FEEREETERMBRARREPEARAME([H
Bl REMBMRAMINANE10% R RETLZE2E
EEPRENES -

RIEPEKIZ B AR AEERA AR H
BUERIROER - 25 M B A B R 10% < kR T
BRREHN (ETREREER B RRCHRE) E
REERE  BEZAESEREENBARTME
K50% - ZABEEAANEHEMBARBEFE
ZEE  BRMBARZEEXBSIEMMBRRZ
AR o

RETERRLZ2AEEEERARLEMEREE
BEEANE TR AEEFTZRRELISAER
RIS AREESREES - RFESHAREE
R/ SNE DR EE - TMEAKRRSIK

MIERERMEBAGZ A M BEWRRO—EP0

notes:

(i)

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the Shares
of the Company which was transferred from the Company’s retained
earnings upon repurchase and cancellation of Shares by the
Company.

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries that have been acquired and
capitalised pursuant to a group reorganisation over the nominal value
of the Company’s Shares issued in exchange therefore.

Statutory reserve mainly represents the fund set aside by the
subsidiaries based on 10% of their net profit of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) statutory financial statements and that for the
purpose of certain safety production activities.

In accordance with the articles of association of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC and the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
these subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their profit after
income tax as recorded in the PRC statutory financial statements as
statutory reserve, except where the reserve fund balance has reached
50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The reserve fund can only
be used to make good the subsidiaries’ previous years’ losses, to
expand the subsidiaries’ production operations or to increase the
capital of the subsidiaries.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State Administration of
Work Safety of the PRC and other relevant regulatory bodies, the
Group is required to set aside funds mainly for mining of dolomite and
serpentine at prescribed rates. These funds can be used for
maintenance and/or improvements of safety of these activities, and is
not available for distribution to shareholders.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2014F 12831 AILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014

FTHET
HK$’000

2013
THETT
HK$'000

KEES Operating activities

Rk FT1S 51 A g 7 Profit before income tax 467,686 371,589
MTHEEEHFAE - Adjustments for:

PTE Ry Depreciation and amortisation 77,985 75,346

BB R Finance costs 44,186 21,441

HEWE - B &K Net loss on disposal of property,

BB 18 558 plant and equipment 76 254

RIEEEREMNEEHE Realised and unrealised (gain)/loss on

RABIE (k) Hi18 investments held for trading (3,291) 1,313

& S A Dividend income (292) @417

FEWA Interest income (8,544) (5,157)

RIEEERG R RS Equity settled share-based payments 2,082 4,760

MESMEEATEE Fair value change on derivative financial assets 61 -
LEESEEFINLE Operating cash flows before movements

ReEmE in working capital 579,949 469,129
HEFHEEERERN Proceeds from disposal of investments

FriSE0A held for trading 651 3,466
BEREEERE Purchase of investments held for trading (79) -
FEI Increase in inventories (91,302) (20,617)
B hEMERE - Increase in trade and other receivables,

AR FIBERIES LM prepayments and deposits (88,146) (131,638
B 5 K& E b pE A ZRIB 1 0 Increase in trade and other payables 39,289 75,168
REEBRESXNERE Cash generated from operations 440,362 395,508
BRFTSH Income tax paid (117,452) (94,137)
RETEEFTEEN Net cash generated from operating

REFHE activities 322,910 301,371
RETEH Investing activities

SRITERCEM) R (Increase)/decrease in deposits with banks (45,359) 72,734

HBEWME BERERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (584,609) (348,865)

SN EREERIA Payment for acquisition of patents - (57,645)

BEYE - BFENMEE Deposits for acquisition of property,

Wi plant and equipment (35,386) (8,538)

BHLEEHNBERATNIRS Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal

MAHFER of subsidiaries = 7,536

EUHE Interest received 7,691 7,395

[EA S Dividend received 202 417

HEWME  BEMRE Proceeds from disposal of property,

R FTIS R plant and equipment 249 199
RETBFTANREFEE Net cash used in investing activities (657,122) (326,767)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
mMEEE Financing activities
TS ESRMFTEHRIE Proceeds from new borrowings 745,414 295,451
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (444,941) (321,215)
ERFE Interest paid (27,602) (20,428)
2 R EARS B Final dividend paid (11,719) (3,863)
TR EREERITZ Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of
TEEA% share options 46,952 10,027
BATARRE S Issue of convertible bond 295,000 —
RSB RR 2 A RS Net cash (outflow)/inflow in respect of change in
28 (R, mAFEE ownership interest of subsidiaries (64,767) 21,571
MEIEU AL AN Increase in deferred revenue 46,387 24,420
fic 2% I 3 A Allotment of ordinary share 116,308 —
BEEEFEEN Net cash generated from
BERE financing activities 701,032 5,963
ReERERBREER Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
#h, Chd) FE cash equivalents 366,820 (19,433)
FINEEeRERAESER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 381,909 391,151
MEEZFBNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (6,298) 10,191
FRNALSRERRSELER Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 742,431 381,909
SRR B AR A BTSRRI — 2B © The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2014FE12 A1 BILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1.

76

—RER

AR MR AR ([ AR R ) RAM
BRA (5 [AEE) TEHECBRERE
% BRI R AR RE £75 -

KRAETIFR2003F 1 A21 BRIEFAE#HE R
AEE228 (1961 F )5 =E3 456 RIERT)
FHEHSEMAIHERRERAE - AR
AIMBRMHR2004F2 A17TAREEB AR S
FTAEBR AR ([BAAT]) Bl R (T8I ZER]) £
M I A 20084 7 A 31 B HUsH H 7 Al E iR &
AL - B2008F8 A1 HR - AARMEK
MERBRXMERLT - EFRE - ARAEIZ
BEERRB ABERBERAR - ZAFA
REBRZABS MKz AR -

ARG AET(BIT)) REM - BA
RAIMINEEESIER - BRIES BN - BRI
BE2EHE TR (TETEHE -

R REETEEMBREER
(TERMBREER )

AEE  AEECDEHERXERATHEESEE
DNE([BEGAE]) WM ZIERT AR
2E(HEEVHREEL]) - HR20145F1
A1BRRZASBEBREERLES -

BRAMBMEEANE0% - REER
BRMBRERANE12HER
BRI ERE 27 5% (BFTA)

BREHEASERF(BILX) 2RIE: 2)
-~ HHEMEE
LkEBAR
BAG LSRR (EIL) FEBEETRE
SREE
BREMERSER(BAILX) (TATAEER
gtz itE
EE(ERMBHREREZEE) HE

—BREE21

General Information

Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in magnesium product business, fertiliser
business, metallurgical flux business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
January 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 17
February 2004, the Company’s shares were listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and were
withdrawn from the GEM Board on 31 July 2008. Since 1
August 2008, the Company’s shares have been listing on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the
directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Alpha Sino International Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$’000) except when otherwise indicated.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time, the
following amendments and new interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning on 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

Investment Entities

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting

Levies

HKAS 36 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(FRIC)-Int 21
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2014FE12 A1 HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

EBUBRELEDNE10 - EBHE
WEEAF12FEREBG T ER 5 27
(2011 F) (B5TR) — REHE

BB RELRIE 1058 (IBETA) BT 8
BEEBYRENAREEBEE Y MBS
TEAMBRARGAAR  ME2RERBRE
R ATEEABRZ F R EEBAF o

i

RUBERIESREER WMSERA:

\r

. BE-RASEREERTED  ARK
FRHEXREEERS

s MEREFEAFEXBEEREESD
ERATHRENREREBOR BERE
WALBTMERS &

o  BAVEEEFERFEEBRINK
BHRIR

BEVBHREENF12FRBEGELS
TR RBIERT R OAFL - UBIREBRSIA
HIWBERE ©

EREENEI2R (BTN HHE
MEERTHEME
FREEREREIRK(ETA) BEREHEE
REERSBAGRTAMNARRAME -
LER - BREARS [RERANERZL
ARBIATTROIEIEE | R (R Z2RREE] &
e

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment
Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of an
investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead
to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required
to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose
of providing them with professional investment
management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of
its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.
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Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
(*CGU”) to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has been
no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related CGU.
Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional disclosure
requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined
based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change
to the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument arising
from the novation should be included in the assessment of
hedge effectiveness.

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies addresses the issue of when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy. The interpretation defines a
levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise to
the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy,
as identified by legislation. The interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be
accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial
statements preparation implies that an entity has a present
obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in a
future period.

Save as described above, the application of the above new
and revised HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results
and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustment has been required.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 20122014 Cycle*

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosure®

Financial Instruments®
Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Accounting for Acquisition of Interests
in Joint Operation*
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from contracts with customers®

Disclosure Initiative*

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation*

Agriculture: Bearer Plants*

Defined benefit plans: Employee
Contribution’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements*
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! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions

8 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or 1 January 2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have an impact on the amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011) — Investment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The narrow-scope amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 introduce clarifications to the requirements
when accounting for investment entities. The amendments
also provide relief in particular circumstances, which will
reduce the costs of applying the Standards.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

Amendments to HKAS 28:

—  The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets that
do not constitute a business.
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— A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets
that constitute a business between an entity and its
associate or joint venture must be recognised in full in
the investor’s financial statements.

— A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should
be accounted for as a single transaction.

Amendments to HKFRS 10:

—  An exception from the general requirement of full gain or
loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS 10 for
the loss control of a subsidiary that does not contain a
business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method.

—  New guidance has been introduced requiring that gains
or losses resulting from those transactions are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement at fair value of
investments retained in any former subsidiary that has
become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method are recognised
in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.

—  The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 wiill
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Accounting
for Acquisition of Interests in Joint
Operation

HKFRS 11 addresses the accounting for interests in joint
ventures and joint operations. The amendments add new
guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest
in a joint operation that constitutes a business. The
amendments specify the appropriate accounting treatment for
such acquisitions.

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
HKFRS 14 permits first-time adopters to continue to recognise
amounts related to rate regulation in accordance with their
previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”)
requirements when they adopt HKFRS. However, to enhance
comparability with entities that already apply HKFRS and do
not recognise such amounts, the standard requires that the
effect of rate regulation must be presented separately from
other items. An entity that already presents HKFRS financial
statements is not eligible to apply the standard.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016 with earlier application permitted.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is for companies to recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that is,
payment) to which the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The new standard will
also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide
guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed
comprehensively and improve guidance for multiple-element
arrangements.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted.
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Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further
encourage companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements. For example, the amendments make clear that
materiality applies to the whole of financial statements and
that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the
usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining where and in what order information
is presented in the financial disclosures.

The amendments can be applied immediately and become
mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 both establish the principle for the
basis of depreciation and amortisation as being the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an
asset. The amendments clarify that the use of revenue-based
methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not
appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other
than the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in
the asset.

The amendments also clarify that revenue is generally
presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an
intangible asset. This presumption, however, can be rebutted
in certain limited circumstances.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016 with earlier application permitted.
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Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011)
Employee Benefits

The issuance of HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits
completes improvements to the accounting requirements for
pensions and other post-employment benefits and HKAS 19
(2011) makes important improvements by:

° Eliminating an option to defer the recognition of gains
and losses, known as the ‘corridor method’, improving
comparability and faithfulness of presentation.

o Streamlining the presentation of changes in assets and
liabilities arising from defined benefit plans, including
requiring remeasurements to be presented in other
comprehensive income, thereby separating those
changes from changes that many perceive to be the
result of an entity’s day-to-day operations.

o Enhancing the disclosure requirements for defined
benefit plans, providing better information about the
characteristics of defined benefit plans and the risks that
entities are exposed to through participation in those
plans.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method
in Separate Financial Statements

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial statements. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016 with earlier application permitted.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not
yet in a position to state whether the above new HKFRSs will
have a significant impact on the Group’s and the Company’s
results of operations and financial position.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”), and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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o BB BHREME - AFETEREATF In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
B2 ASBREREEREASIBEER measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
FEFEZERSENSEAF 1 F288 the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
NEE3ME - T - are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:
. F1EHABRBEEEBRTEH T o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
BISHMEREES B ERN GRS 28| markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
B (CRERAE) can access at the measurement date;
. FolEM A ABEREREERBBEAEE N o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
Mg SR s ABR(F1EABE included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
B BRRIN) 0 R or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
. FEIHBAHBREEELBENTAR . Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
=g ABIE - liability.
mER%E Basis of Consolidation
GRAEMBHRERBEARARTIRARRFEGNE The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
B(EERRENER) (HMBAR) B KR statements of the Company and entities (including special
KoEHIRIEAATIBHEEZEENMBER purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
BEHR  EMXBERELEEY - Control is achieved where the Company has the power to

govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

REBmMEMEMKEREBRANFEERE Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
Ak &R B AR AU - BB RUEE A A during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
BEAMLEAB(WEA) AL - BFEEFIE profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
s DR EA - —HRBARNEEmKE effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
MAZRREDNEARN A ARIEERERFT disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income and
B expenses of a subsidiary are attributed to the owners of the

Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

MBEFRE eHMBARNPBRERELA When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
B DEEESTT R EAREE MK S QTR statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
FAMEETER—5 - line with those used by other members of the Group.
FIEEBARRS - &%  WEkAXZERE All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
BUTE AR B RS o are eliminated in full on consolidation.
MEARRFFEREREAEEN I FE Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
3| o separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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Changes in the Group’s Ownership
Interests in Existing Subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

(i) deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

(i) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by another
standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period does
not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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R EERERTERHNABRZXARER The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
FEES - HEMSFEETERTFZIAR contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
ENHBEFRME - BRAESERNHARE period adjustments depends on how the contingent
TEREENREAMENTE  HENEH consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
AR iEZS R - BREEXBEENIAR classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
BIRBREEGTERE R AE LG T ER dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
EITHEBE IABBERIAREE(NEA) equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
REZNREDPETTE - HENKREHIE or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
EREEER - accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit

or loss.
HMEBAHPBEER TR  AEEUTHANE When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
WETREDEFFTERKIBERH(AIRER Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
TGRS H)MATE fTEENKEGESK remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
BE(E) IR E=ER - EREREMEE when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
W R 2 Wi B HR AT A IR BB 5 2 E s EE A loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
ZHBENEEER(WEEFNEARZ from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
HEREDER) o have previously been recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

EAr] 7AW B B A1 18 L A 2 T U 2 B SR 0 0 A Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
W RAFTHBTEREEEES - KNAEEE recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
SR R EN R e - in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or

loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

WREHEEZREARDARTHREBEHZ If the initial accounting for a business combination is
MEestRE  AEERRDRTXNSHEE incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
ZEHERETEEE ZSEE2HENTEN combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
(R EX)RIEL AR - ERBEINEENE for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
& URBESEERNKEANEFESER provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
BRZIER - MWMEZEER  Bage period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
REBRRZERE - recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts

and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of
that date.
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Acquisition of Additional Interest in a
Subsidiary

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is
already controlled by the Group, goodwill arising on such
acquisition represents the difference between the cost of
additional interest acquired and the increase in the Group’s
share of the net carrying amount of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. The difference
between the cost of additional interest acquired and the book
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities attributable to the additional interest acquired is
recognised as a reserve movement (other reserve). The
difference represents the difference that arose since the
original acquisition date that is attributable to the Group’s
increased interest in the subsidiary. On the subsequent
disposal of the subsidiary, the reserve is transferred to retained
earnings.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash
generating units, or groups of CGU, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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REERBRcELESENN BETHEERS On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
BN ABEERNMEB &8 - goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.

ON Revenue Recognition

WATHRE WK ERRE 2 A FEE - 1R Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
—MEBB/IEPEEE M2 BUFUIEIRR T received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
NIHEMANIE - goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts

and sales related taxes.

ERHEWRARZNER REB M ARIERR o Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed.

KEeMEE(TBEEERABRARNTEE Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
MEBERE) ZFBRALRAREEARDE N assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time
RAEBRMEARFELOIRETE - ZANE R basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
B EMEE B AERFHAZGHER effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
KB WABRR EZEEVIRHERR 2 REF discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
BEZARE - expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

KEKRE (BESRBEUNATEFEZ SR Dividend income from investment including financial assets at

BE) 2 BB WA AR B WK IE 2 R I R fair value through profit or loss is recognised when the

SLAETER o shareholders’ right to receive payment have been established.

HERARBERNIZEREER - Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Ll RBREZEREAMUA - RURER SR UK Any other income not mentioned above is recognised

iR whenever it is received or receivable.

BT Government Grants

BRBHRTTHER  EEBAERE  ~5H Government grants are not recognised until there is

HE7F & BT 8 SRR R 89 61 - DA R i WO RS 5k reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the

& HEmR e conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

IR T EE SR B IEMGIE - fEREEARMX Government grants that become receivable as compensation

SEEREE - RREHTAERMSERARBA for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of

A AN B B 78 S 155 - RIURAAK 72 FE W K18 2 B giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future

HRERER related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including freehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress), are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided to
write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line methods.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over the lease term and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method.
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KREMEREEXEREWE KA TBERR An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
NEHTEEEREMEE R R E IR when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
BIER IR o #R L TR B EFTE E R 18 use or no future economic benefits are expected from its
m(RHEMSHEFEEEERTENET disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
FTE)EAZIEE KR IEERN AR ABRRKIE asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
o proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
T b fE R Land Use Rights
RS T RS R RIBE R AR E Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as prepaid
MERIE - T AEEKAR RIEE i & T operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at cost
M RFHREEERZSR - MEHAEFERE less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
FIEEAME s & E AL JER T+ b A REAY EARRE (LA impairment losses, amortisation is charged to profit or loss
R ERE)NBRP IR o over the period of the rights or the term of the respective

enterprise to which the land use rights are granted, whichever
is the shorter, using the straight-line method.

REESEmMS HELWREFH T RIE The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
FHOIAFFE - BRIEES I L EER it are considered separately for the purpose of lease
ErREFEH 2EIEE A - AELIER classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
T BEOEE—RIESMBHEERIERERD reliably between the land and building elements, in which
¥ HEERZEANRE- MRS ERES - case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease
AltrHEREREREEHEAR  WiRE and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the
BOER T E BB - extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made

reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

HE Leasing

PATE B GRS =R R A0 Bk I W = 8 15 4R Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
ABEA AZSEHERRAVBKHEE - EE the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
I SRR R EEE - ownerships to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

KEBERHAEAA The Group as Lessor

KEHENHSWADNREEHEFHNER Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
VEL 1B TERR o loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
KEBERAHEA The Group as Lessee

LERERIBIRESEZNEEHER®ER AR Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
¥ o BRI BT E RENN B U K B &= straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
BlelEF N EREERAMBHES Y - received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an

operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets Acquired in a Business
Combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets
is recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Technical Know-how

Expenditure on acquired technical know-how is capitalised
and amortised using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life of 5 years, from the date when the
technical know-how is available for use.

Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

—  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

— theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

—  how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;
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—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and other

resources to complete the development and to use or

sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

attributable to the intangible asset during the

development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated

intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from

the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition

criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible

asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged

to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated

intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on

the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Mining Rights

Mining rights, including transferred exploration and evaluation

assets, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and

any impairment losses. The mining rights are amortised on the

production quantities over the total estimated mineral reserve.

Mining rights are written off to the profit or loss if the mining

property is abandoned.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group

entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional

currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the

functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of

exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the

end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in

foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at

that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates

prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

97



HEBXREEZRERAA
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

B TS R R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2014FE12 A1 BILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

98

REERHERGREEEHERELNELE
BREEPREERER - EMREIEEKE
AELMNELEZRE A EMABRBARMIE

HEEMBRREBHAME - AREEINE
BHEERAERBEHRNERSRE SRS
BH2WEE (AET)  MEKRARFXANZ
FRAFHEXRBE - RIFEXRIAHBRAE
KB ERERT - BIRAR S B M E Xk
B oo PREARE R ERE (WA N ARk EE
RIR(AER - BB R EL 2 ) BA(E
SR REt e

RHEESIER (L EARBEREINEBH
EEER SO RREH KR FBIIERBFOM
BARMZEHIROLE BRAEH-FTUF
BN ETS Y B R I R e KRR B
ERREE KR FBINEBNBELED
ERFENNLE)E AR BHEE ARNE
SEBEEMRF ZAEELZREND

=185 -

20054 1 A1 B3k 2 1% W g /g HN E 765 1 22 A
ZHBEATBEECHERATFERAEDR
ERZBINEBNEERAGBERRE - WS
HARERSHHRE  FEEMNERLZENE M
EHEIREP AL SR Rt o

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value, are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKS) at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (i.e.
the translation reserve) (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over
jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Share-based Payment Transactions
Share Options Granted to Employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (employee compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to employee compensation
reserve.



HEBXREEZRERAA
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

B TS R R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2014FE12 A1 BILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

RRLAHE S RENBRENS - 2R
AR AT EREIRES S -

FBRERTTRE - STATME B BN A R
ZHERASEBRERMEE - WMBRERFE A
RO ERN BB B RETR - EATNE
BMMFETRRCBESERERE AT -

BiE
S MR s 5 B AT E N IR RIRE IR RV AR EE -

2 HIE A BB IR T IR AN F 2 RO B AR A g M /T
B o MR ERTUEN T BRERN H s F E R
HAMBAH WAL - T BEHRERBK
TR IR R - SULERBUG M B A B
K E 2 U a3 P 8 A I AR o AR
MERNRBREDENRERRESERNEEL
FEAEBMBEE -

BEERBEARPBRRAEE A EREER
SAERRBGENATAAERENERZE - B
ERTARE —RBLPTA R 5 = RER -
EETE IR A A — AR TP T B H 3R E SR Bl A
SHATAMATA AT E R E R ER - HEY
BEBAAEX T ERRPEN R EFHEF
MR SRR (KB HHRINMEMLEE
REEMREL  AITERAZSTEERARE -

For share options that are vested immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in employee
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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H B A Bl B FTE A ) R s Z R TR Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
RARERIBAE  WERAEEEHERE differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
FE A [0 1 8 R = R0 R RS AR e N g R Bl A where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
BRI BRIERIBEER GREZSBHAR temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
ERMEMEAZAHNRNERZSE  TFR difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
S FEER T 5 A1) AT B 3R A B B E EE A B 2 tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
WHRIA - B IREATE AT AR KA AT 45 8 (O] P R associated with such investments and interests are only

recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

RERSHAROEHETEHIBEE 2 REE - The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
WAE )2 P 86 B S0 FE SR L & AR 2] 2 EP sk 56 1 end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
BERVEAR is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

EERBAGBREENIZREHREEEEEN Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
EEEZEHRERORE(URERARE £ rates that are expected to apply in the period in which liability
MKEE FRAEMNBE(RBUE) RE%E) & is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
- BELEHEEEREENTERMALER laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
WEMR  EHEENONEEEEEREE end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
REREEMTBER - A REERIERER liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
PR - MENAR 2 FEAR MR D follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
HEAERPEERZELT  EERIETE end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
RE M 2 e S BB & B IR o amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is

recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

"8 Inventories

FE R 7R B A IR FE R A KB JIER o Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
BOARADNRE T AR B - IR BRFEEFEZ value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
HET EER T Z BT AN R LSRR Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
AR o inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make sale.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sales financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of financial assets and is
determined at time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

— it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, deposits
with banks, cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from
subsidiaries and dividend receivable) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest

rate, except for short-term receivables when the effect of
discontinuing is immaterial.
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Held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of revaluation reserve until the financial
asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For all of the Group’s financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

—  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

— the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial Liabilities and Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Other Financial Liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into
other financial liabilities, including trade and other payables
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that from an
integral part of effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Convertible Bonds

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities, equity and derivatives in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability, an equity instrument and
derivative financial instruments. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar
nonconvertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects,
and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

—  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.
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Derecognition

The Group are derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire
or, when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety
(e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a
transferred asset or retains a residual interest that does not
result in the retention of substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and the Group retains control), the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.
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Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specific in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment Losses on Tangible and
Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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WMFEIEREBELEREE - AZEEENKRR Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
BREZHAWESFENEIES AT MtBGE - amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
NG R BRENE NS R AE F /2 & 2 0 A recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
RBEBEMETENRAE - BERHAERBER amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
BBz R 1R o been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for

the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as immediately in profit or loss.

B’ Provision

EAREEEBRTEHEMAERAERR AT IME A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal
FERME WHRTZAFUEZRKERALE R or constructive obligation, as a result of a past event, it is
ERET B AR AeRR probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
HoWMEKKREABEZZEEXN  ABRESSE the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
BIEFTERITEAMBE LR ERARZIFE - amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value

money is material, the amount of a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

BEALRS Related Parties Transactions
ETHNERT  BAALBHEEAREAEES A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
B
(1) MWEBUATAL BIZATSHZALTZE (1) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
FEEEAEEGHE related to the Group if that person:
0] TRl R RIAEE ()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) HAEEEETATE (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) RBRAEERREEHFRANEEE (i) is a member of the key management personnel of
BEKE - the Group or of a parent of the Group.
2) A TIMEA R - BB e AL E (2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
BRAE conditions applies:
() ZEBEARGBR-SEZKE ()  The entity and the Group are members of the
NR(BIBER/LAA - B AFKE same group (which means that each parent,
R B AR UL HE BRIE) - subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).
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)

i)

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1) () has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

MEALTZHBRERIBEENR S HERR
BBALRS -

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.
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Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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At FHAARENEERR Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

NTRRIEARBA SR AEEEERE The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
BEREERT —MBEFEFEELEAFAEZ and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
RRBBEEBRZ LGB THAMEZNE the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
HEZRIR - material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) REY*  FEE Y% BEER (a) Estimated Impairment of Investment
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Properties, Mining Rights, Property,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets

The Group evaluates whether investment properties,
mining rights, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets have suffered any impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units represent the higher of the asset’s fair
value less costs to sell or its value-in-use. The
calculations of fair value less costs to sell or value-in-use
require the use of estimates. During the year, the Group
did not provide any impairment for investment
properties, mining rights, property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (2013: HK$NIl).
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(b) Estimated Useful Lives of Investment

(c)

Properties, Property, Plant and
Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Mining Rights

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation/amortisation
charges for its investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of investment properties, property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions and the mineral reserve determined by
independent technical adviser. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to market conditions.
Management will increase the depreciation/amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
the Group did not change the estimated useful lives of
investment properties, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and mining rights.

Estimated Impairment of Inventories
The management of the Group reviews the inventories
listing on a product-by-product basis at the end of the
reporting period. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
During the year, the Group did not provide any
allowance for inventories (2013: HK$NIl).
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(d) Income Tax

(e)

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
may be uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Impairment of Trade and Other
Receivables

The impairment of trade and other receivables are
based on the ongoing evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgment. From time to time, the Group
may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade and other receivables are called
into doubts, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, provision may be required. Certain
receivables may be initially identified as collectable, yet
subsequently become uncollectable and result in a
subsequent write-off of the related receivables to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Changes in the collectability of
trade and other receivables for which provisions are not
made could affect our results of operations. During the
year, the Group did not make any provision for
impairment on trade and other receivables (2013:
HK$SNIl).
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5. €¢mITA
(a) €MIEER

5. Financial instruments

(a)

(b) VHEBREEBEFEREEK

Categories of Financial Instruments

REH
The Group

b N
The Company
2014 2013
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000

2014
TR
HK$’000

2013
F
HK$'000

cRMEE Financial assets
EHRENZIE(@1E  Loans and receivables
RITEFARIRSE (including deposits with
rZERREER) banks and cash and
cash equivalents) 1,181,942 697,864 1,321,970 853,535
AHEERE Available-for-sale investment 30,391 142,453 - -
TEEREE Derivative financial assets 243 - 243 -
RAFEFF AEZEHR  Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 9,900 7,387 - -
1,222,476 847,704 1,322,213 853,535
cEas Financial liabilities
B AN Amortised cost 1,156,391 431,371 296,927 1,481
HEEREL Financial guarantee contracts - - 81 85
1,156,391 431,371 297,008 1,566

(b)

AEERARRNIESRTABER
EEERE B5 REMBRTIR - R
TEF ReRFRREEB -BHR
HENRBARER - €@ TAFE
RERIMFRE RZEFERTAEH
M E R B IEIMNER R - FRE R - Hi
ERER EERRERBDERRE
AT HEIIMAEMZERBOBEK - K
SERARANEERRERFEESE
KA EAN SR TSN REKREE
WREAEBRARARPBRAMER
BT AR -

Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
instruments include investments held for trading, trade
and other receivables, deposits with banks, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables and
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, other price risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The Group’s and the Company’s
overall risk management programme focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s and
the Company’s financial performance.
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(i)

(ii)

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has minimal exposures to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency
hedging significant foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to deposits with banks and
borrowings (see Notes 27 and 30 respectively for
details).

The Company has no significant interest rate risk.

Sensitivity Analysis

If interest rates on deposits with banks and cash
and cash equivalents and borrowings as at 31
December 2014 had been 10 basis points (0.1%
per annum) (2013: 10 basis points) higher/lower
than the actual effective interest rate, the Group’s
profit for the year would have been approximately
HK$233,000 (2013: HK$122,000) higher/lower as
a result of a increase/decrease in fair value of
deposits with banks and borrowings.

As management considers the Group’s exposure
to the above fair value interest rate risk is not
significant, no interest-rate swaps or other
hedging activities are undertaken by management
during the year.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances carried at
prevailing market rate. However, such exposure is
minimal to the Group as the bank balances are all
short-term in nature.
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(iii) EME#%ERE

(iv)

REBEFEBEN EHARAE S RIE
EHIREES 2 REAZRAER
Rk - R EEBERTRERK
BHANEEILRRE - NEBEA
EfEREBERETRERE M2
BATAREHEEREZESR

BREDF
AT BRESTIRERS BAES
Z A ERE R EEE o

WEBRANTAZER LA TR
10% (20134 : 10%) * A EEH ~
F [ M 08 4> £9.990,000
#7T (2013 4F 1 739,000 7T) * X
BISIEBESIRE 2 A FEZEE -

HEBRANTAZER LA TR
10% (20134 : 10%) * A& B 2
H 2 AU LIRS, F A4
3,089,000% L (20134 :
14,245,000 70 ) + REAIHEE

=EmEAR
ZARZH T REBITRMEDR
ERECHRATHEENELT K
KEEAZNEREERR BN
BHBINRKRINEZ ZFEEMR
HEfE °

AEEEERA REERER IR
F=TTHETRS - AEENEERE
FIESNEERERZNEFAS
HEERERSF - W AEET
SRR WA o

(iii) Other Price Risk

(iv)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and
unlisted investments in funds. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. The Group’s
other price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments listed in the PRC and on fund
investment quoted by the financial institutions.

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
has been 10% (2013: 10%) higher/lower, the
Group’s profit for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$990,000 (2013:
HK$739,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of investments held for trading.

If the prices of respective equity instruments has
been 10% (2013: 10%) higher/lower, the Group’s
other comprehensive income would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$3,039,000 (2013:
HK$14,245,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investment.

Credit Risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis.
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()

With respect to credit risk arising from the other
financial assets of the Group which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from default of the
counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit standing and the Group does
not expect to incur significant loss for unallocated
advances/deposits from these entities.

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that
sales of goods are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group’s deposits
with bank and deposits placed with financial
institutions are placed in high quality financial
institutions without significant exposure to credit
risk.

The directors consider that there is no significant
credit risk in respect of the Group’s deposits with
banks and deposits placed with financial
institutions as the financial institutions have no
record of default payment.

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping adequate facilities available.
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TRETAEERARRFLFE The table below analyses the Group’s and the
EELENSREE  WIIERA Company’s financial liabilities that will be settled
R TR - BIBERmERARE on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings
BRENE BRI AR EETHN based on the remaining period at the end of the
KB BRHEBAEOMERTTE reporting period to the contractual maturity date.
BEERE - BRITIRHTZEL T The amounts disclosed in the table are the
EA HE121E A RE B 4 contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
FREEREE N AMREE - due within 12 months upon recognition equal their

carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is

not significant.

NEH The Group
2014 2014
mETH St
BBz RenBaE
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
TER TiEn TER TiER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZHREMENTIE  Trade and other payables - 266,097 - 266,097 266,097
B8 Borrowings 5.32 303,696 291,718 595,414 595,414
AR ES Convertible bonds 15.70 115,000 180,000 295,000 294,880
684,793 471,718 1,156,511 1,156,391
2013 20183

Weighted

average Total
effective Less than undiscounted Camying
interest rate 1 year cash flows amount
T 77 TR TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZSREMENTIE  Trade and other payables - 130,295 - 130,295 130,295
&8 Borrowings 6.26 301,076 - 301,076 301,076
431,371 - 431,31 431,311
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ARATE The Company
2014 2014
mELH FRRERE
kS —EHT —EhE &g REE
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
TAn TAn TAn TAn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BHREMENTIE  Trade and other payables - 2,047 - 2,047 2,047
BIFERAN (M)  Financial quarantee contracts
(note) - 297,097 - 297,097 81
hRES Convertiole Bonds 15.70 115,000 180,000 295,000 294,880
414,144 180,000 594,144 297,008
2013 20183

T T EEE

Weighted
average Total
effective Less than Over undiscounted Carying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
TET TAL T TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B5REMENTIE  Trade and other payables - 1,481 - 1,481 1,481
BERAL (M) Financil guarantes contracts
(note) - 114,050 - 114,050 85
115,531 - 115,531 1,566
B E note:

LM BRERENESNEBAEER
HEREBERT  AABREL I
BRNEEERSENRSEHE - RIE
BEPRNES  AREARBBARER
BE RV IRS o AT - ZAFHEAR
FEAORBEEREDREOAEERE
PR - MR R E AT AL 1 B EURR
87 EERISEAERARBRER
EEE TN -

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Company
could be forced to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Company
considers that it is more likely than not that such an
amount will not be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.



ANNUAL REPORT 2014

B TS R R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2014FE12 A1 HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

(c) DFERE (c) Fair Value Measurements
AWFREEHTPALAEBLASTESR This note provides information about how the Group
BEERSHEBEEERATFENTE - determines fair values of various financial assets and

financial liabilities.

(i) RiFREMHEERZ LN FE (i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
ENFEEHEEREH assets and financial liabilities that
BEENLFE are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis
rEBSHEHEERSHAER Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
BEMEPRIZAFENE - TR liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of
HEMGANAEEZSeREE each reporting period. The following table gives
kemaBnATE(LEEMA information about how the fair values of these
HERM R ABIR) o financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

RUAT BN ATE
Fair value as at

tREE 2014512831A 2013£12A31H AFERN  REFERTERANE
Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
Financial assets 31 December 2014 31 December 2013 hierarchy  and key inputs

1) BERENFILEREE RERIN LA - RERMS ERAES -

(HizE25) 9900,000;7 7,387, 000757 218 EETAMAEAE
Held for trading non-derivative Listed equity securities outside  Listed equity securities outside Quoted bid prices in
financial assets (Note 25) Hong Kong: HK$9,900,000 Hong Kong: HK$7,387,000  Level 1 an active market

2) LMEHERE () REBMI LRRAES - RERS ETBRAZS :

30,391,000 142,453,000 7T F18 EETBMREAE
Listed available-for-sale investment  Listed equity securities outside  Listed equity securities outside Quoted bid prices in
(Note 22) Hong Kong: HK$30,391,000  Hong Kong: HK$142,453,000 Level 1 an active market
3) (iIESEEE (M) BE : 430008 - 528 ZHEA BT ERA
Derivative financial assets (Note 26) Asset: HK$243,000 - Level 2 Binomial Option Pricing Model
MEFERTEEE AR E 258 2 B0 There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in both
% o years.
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(ii) WHRBLAEMEEZLNF (i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
EBitEWFEELHEER assets and financial liabilities that
2R EEN A FE are not measured at fair value on

recurring basis
EERE  REAMBERRERL Except the Group’s convertible bonds with carrying
cREERSHAENRRERL amount of approximately HK$294,880,000 which
ANERE  EASEREEENA have fair value of approximately HK$292,677,000,
294,880,000 7% 7T K A] #2 % & % &Y the directors consider that the carrying amounts of
NEH A292,677,008 TTERSN © financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in

the consolidated financial statements approximately
their fair values.

MH2014512H831H
B A F{E AR B
Fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2014

F18 FE28 %38 st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FERT FHExT FET FER
HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

ERMEE Financial assets
HEEERE Investments held for trading 9,900 - = 9,900
THEEREE Derivative financial assets - 243 - 243

AHHERE Available-for-sale

investment
TR ARRE Listed equity securities 30,391 - - 30,391
HEt Total 40,291 243 - 40,534
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72018412 A31 8
B A FERR
Fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2013

E1%8 Fo%8 F3%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T FHETT FHETT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

EREE Financial assets

HIEEBERE Investments held for trading 7,387 - - 7,387

AHEERE Available-for-sale

investment

ERARES Listed equity securities 142,453 - - 142,453

st Total 149,840 - - 149,840
BEELFE2ENEMEERSRA The fair values of the financial assets and financial
BERATFEEZBARAER LIZAR liabilities included in the level 2 above have been
EERAEE TEEANZEZEHA determined in accordance with generally
HEARE KRB ERkE - BRE accepted pricing models based on a Binominal
RRREE - Model, with the most significant inputs being the

6. EcEKRER

share price, volatility, time to maturity, conversion
price and dividend yield.

6. Capital Risk Management

REEHELESTERIE 2 RERE B el m The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
BHEE S  BELLAIEE M E 4 JE IR O] 1R safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn
ERS M 3 SE R BN GEE LRE B AN o in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for

other shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

BT @SS R AN o ANEE T fre R In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
T AR AR B EEE - AR E D IR E AR may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
B BTG SR B E ARE BT o return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets

to reduce debt.

AEBFFEAEBLRERIERN o I RIRER The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
HEBERIAEEAESE - BELEDYR This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total

RAMBIRARA -

assets as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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HZE2014F 12 A31 BILFE - RAEBERE
ABEABLERERFEL0NR - N2014F K
2013F 12 A31 HWA BRI T :

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s
strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within 50%. The gearing
ratios at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2014 2013
FTERT FHTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERE Total borrowings 890,294 301,076
BEERE Total assets 3,796,956 2,840,222
BELRE Gearing ratio 23.4% 10.6%

7. WA 7. Revenue

AEETENESBEEREY  BREEMZE
R IRM AT T - REBRFRZWADT

The Group is principally engaged in magnesium product
business, fertiliser business and metallurgical flux business. An

/N analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:
2014 2013
FTHET FiTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HESBHEERD Sales of magnesium products 696,904 547,366
HEREEMESR Sales of fertiliser products 1,277,282 1,028,068
S RN A B EE Sales of metallurgical flux products 98,333 64,857
2,072,519 1,640,291

8. Z7HEH
AR R D BRI B AR ATHRAR
(EBEERRE)REZERNAERELH
Bl e AEBIREEBMBRELIFEREL
R RN ST :

- TEBEEMES
- RERMEDR
- REEEIES

ERASEZAREDHBR TIXER
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8. Segment Information
Information reported to the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the operating divisions. The Group’s
operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are
therefore as follows:

—  Magnesium product business
—  Fertiliser business
—  Metallurgical flux business

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments is
presented below.
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PEBBAREE Segment Revenue and Results
REBZAIMED B IWAREEDIFTAT o The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments.

HE2014F 12 AT HILEE ¢ For the year ended 31 December 2014:

SREEM BRRER podifsl

Magnesium Metallurgical
product Fertiliser (114
business business business Total
TR TR T#x TEx
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
DEHA Segment revenue 696,904 1,277,282 113,766 2,087,952
SN Inter-segment revenue - - (15,433) (15,433)
REIMPEPHIUA Revenue from extemal
customers 696,904 1,277,282 98,333 2,072,519
DR Segment results 224,540 308,662 23,626 556,828
HAp WA R lhas Other income and gains 15,055
FRITHER Central administrative costs (60,011)
HHER Finance costs (44,186)
BRETERL AT & A Profit before income tax 467,686
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HE2013F 12 A1 HILEE :

For the year ended 31 December 2013:

£
Magnesium
product Fertiliser Metallurgical

business business flux business Total

THL o BIL BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

DEHA Segment revenue 547,366 1,028,068 76,149 1,651,583
DEEYA Inter-segment revenue - - (11,292) (11,292)
RENBEERMBA Revenue from external customers 547 366 1,028,068 64,857 1,640,291
D ELS Segment results 183,219 245,791 9,318 438,328
H A R Other income and gains 11,782
RRITHER Central administrative costs (57,080)
BB Finance costs (21,441)
GRS H AT G R Profit before income tax 371,589

EXZ25 25 8KRA - TIRERINBE P RESL
ZWN o BB B A FELERTIL ©

AHED L T ER BAKE 5 BRA
Rl DEEERNLEDEFTRITRER (B
FREEHH Bl ARk  BEERKRA
BRASBATENBIEE - WRAETE
BERARERENFERBEEREAED BER
WzT e

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into at arm’s length.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results
represent the results from each segment without allocation of
central administrative costs including directors’ emoluments,
other income and gains, finance costs and income tax
expense. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
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PTHMEERERE
R2014F12 A HZ o HMEEREBNESR
ZALFERARESB2EARIOT

EREER
%
Magnesium
product
business
Tén

Segment Assets and Liabilities

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014
and capital expenditure for the year then ended by reportable
segments are as follows:

% % Aas
Fertiliser  Metallurgical Total

business flux business segments  Unallocated Total
TER TER TER TER TEn

HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

NHEE Segment assets 1,243,504 753,405 744,287 2,741,196 1,055,760 3,796,956

PH8E Segment liabilties 514,503 236,303 175,960 927,266 503,049 1,430,315

REFRBEE Additions to non-current assets 350,695 220,655 55,891 627,241 1,143 628,384
R201IBF 12 A1 Az BEERBENEE The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013

ZALEFERAIREDB2ERANT

Magnesium
product
business

TEL

and capital expenditure for the year then ended by reportable
segments are as follows:

Fertiiser Metallurgical

business flux business segments Unallocated Totdl

TEL TEL Tin Tin Tin

HK§'000

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000

PH8E Segment assets 941,909 442,308 726,383 2,110,600 729622 2,840,222
PH8E Segment liabities 160,757 202,445 209,819 573,021 114,239 687,260
REFRYEE Additions to non-current assets 307,484 57,740 47,843 413,067 1,981 415,048
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RIEKER
=z

DEERB KRR BREFALE R B

- KBREEWE BRPEE RUOFH B
SRERREBEMEMEEEREE -
BIREME - BB N R E A B KR

S TBEEEBDDEEAREDE + &

- KBREXBRZBEREMEMNK
MAEBEANEKEAHRENE

B

BEARAXBREME  BEMRENRENE
BEME BMELRRENRZE(2013F : &Y
¥ HELEREORE  XHWRBEEFKIEM

BEWE BEMEENRS) BREETH
¥ BELREBERBITHERAIEN  FIEE
AEIHHEEDEL -

HihpHER

HZE2014F12 A31 HILFE -

1Z  BERHEER  Depreciation of property, plant and

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than investment properties, intangible assets, deposits
with banks, cash and cash equivalents and other assets
for corporate use which including property, plant and
equipment and other receivables; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than borrowings for corporate use and other payables.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant
and equipment and deposits for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment (2013: additions to property, plant and
equipment, payment for acquisition of patents and deposits
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment). Except for
the additions to certain property, plant and equipment for
administrative purposes, all the capital expenditure was
allocated to segments.

Other Segment Information
For the year ended 31 December 2014:

EREER

Magnesium

Fertiliser

product
business
TAR
HK$'000

Metallurgical
Unallocated Total
TRR ThR
HK$'000 HK$'000

flux business
THx
HK$'000

business
T#n
HK$'000

REMENE equipment and investment properties 10,306 35,950 10,434 5,046 61,736
TitERE - FEE  Amortisation of land use rights,
RENEERH mining rights and intangible assets 2,401 229 13,300 319 16,249
HENE BER  (Gan)loss on disposal of property,
&M (ki) /BB plantand equipment - (44) 320 (200) 76
REEEREN Realised and unrealised gain on
""""" BEBRAEBRNRE  investments held for trading - - - (3,291) (3,291)
FEHFYX Income tex expense 48,858 74,135 4,307 145 128,045
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HE2013F12 A31 BIFFE ¢ For the year ended 31 December 2013:

Em
1

Magnesium

product Fertiiser Metallurgical

business business flux business Unallocated
T THL BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W% FEMRER  Depreciation of property, plant and

RENMERE equipment and investment properties 9,183 36,960 9,484 3911 59,538
THnERAE - FEE  Amortisation of land use rights,
NEREESH mining rights and intangible assets 1,984 358 13,282 184 15,808
HENE BER  (Gain)loss on disposal of property,
SEH (W) /FE  plantand equipment (102) - 274 & 254
BIEEEREMN Redlised and unrealised loss on
BEBLAZEER  investments held for trading - - - 1,313 1,313
Frigfimx Income tax expense 37,931 55,870 542 13 94,456
hEE R Geographical Information
HE2014F R2013F 12 A31HIEFE & During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
SEFERTREEERAREEMERAHLRE Group mainly operated in the PRC and all of the Group’s
R R 2014912 A31 H K 20134F 12 A revenue are derived from the PRC and most of non-current
318 - REBKEDIERBEEEUNFRE o assets of the Group are located in the PRC as at 31
HEREAEERRE DN EEREEDN - December 2014 and 31 December 2013. No analysis of the

Group’s result and assets by geographical area is disclosed.

FEEFER Information about Major Customers

MR E E2014F K2013F 12 A1 H ILFE No information about major customers is presented as no

W ERE P 2 HERBREEBIHA single customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of

Z210%  BERTEEEEZEFFPHEARZ - the Group during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.
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9. HMWARKE 9. Other Income and Gains
2014 2013
FTHET FATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HE U A Rental income 4,766 5,241
BN Interest income 8,544 5,157
A% BUA Dividend income 202 417
IR Sundry income 1,453 967
15,055 11,782
10. MK &EH 10. Finance Costs

2014 2013
FTERT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR E SR 2 M SR Interest expenses on convertible bonds 23,157 -

HERSFAZEEEL Interest on borrowings wholly repayable
BENTE within 5 years 16,319 21,441

BN FREHERY Interest on borrowings wholly repayable
BEHF S after 5 years 6,729 -
BB ERE Total borrowing costs 46,205 21,441

B BB BB ERAK Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of

Bz &8 qualifying assets (2,019) -
44,186 21,441
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11. BB
RirgiEs R EMmE2EKSERAIR (GTA)
B PT1S T F Se BURE IS

11. Income Tax Expense
The amount of income tax expense charged/(credited) to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income represents:

2014 2013

FTERT FHTT

HK$’000 HK$'000

BNEATR 18 Current tax

— HAEMEH — Hong Kong Profits Tax = -
— PR EMEH — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 131,278 97,562
IR IR Deferred taxation (3,233) (3,106)
128,045 94,456

(a) BEBREHR
EBEFEF T IRE £2014F K 20134
12A31ALFE A ERTEF 2
16.5% 5 & - AR EBERF & B
BEFENRIEBEZEEN QI E
FEAF A B B A B I o

(b) FEEMREH
FR B FTIS B IR E E 2014 F ]2 2013
F12 A31 BIEFE ZEFTERBURR 2
25% T E °

(c) BINREHE
ARBIRBEASHERRERRAEE
SRAMRLRERRERAR] - WK
BHREBAREFREMEN - ARAR
RERZBEKILZWERETIRER
B X B S BRE X QAR ML
W R R BN R LB SIS

(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013. No tax is payable on the
profit for the year arising in Hong Kong since assessable
profit is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward.

(b) The PRC Enterprise Income Tax
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% on
the estimated assessable profits arising in the PRC for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

(c) Overseas Income Tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The
Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin
Islands were incorporated under the International
Business Companies Act of the British Virgin Islands
and, are exempted from British Virgin Islands income
tax.
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AEBEMBRATSH AR F BB R R
RIZER R 5% T E M EmEB RN =7
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T -

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using a tax
rate of 25%, the standard income tax rate of the PRC
enterprises, as follows:

2014 2013
TET THET
HK$000 % HK$'000
W S H A A Profit before income tax 467,686 371,589
RERAEHR % 25% Tax charge at applicable
(20134 : 25%) income tax rate of 25%
HEMNFBEST L (2013: 25%) 116,921 25.0 92,897 250
REMAZEREEH Effect of different tax rates
WBARMTRAREZ FE  of subsidiaries operating
in other jurisdictions (1,519) (0.3) (5,385) (1.4
BAIRMBAZTBEE  Taxeffect of income not
taxable for tax purpose (11,830) (2.5) (6,576) (1.8)
ARz FERS 2 Tax effect of expenses not
BB E deductible for tax purpose 20,742 4.4 15,001 40
LR EERARE Over-provision of tax in prior year (6) 0.0 (139) 0.0
FRERMARAZHBEERE  Utiisation of previous
unrecognised tax losses (3,149) (0.7) (6,104) (1.6)
BHERZ MATUEER Tax effect of estimated tax
oS losses not recognised 6,886 1.5 4,762 1.2
FIERES Income tax expense 128,045 27.4 94,456 254

MR2014F12 A31H - AEBE AR
1B B 18 #990,354,000/8 JT(20134F :
101,141,000 % 7T ) 7] 4% 43 LA K 85 5K SR f&
RFLHEF o 4972,710,000 7 7T (2013 4F ¢
76,772,000 7T) 2 B IEE1E P B B
FEMZTHFERTRFERIE M
#917,644,00078 7T (20134 : 24,369,000
L) 2 MIBER AR T AR A -

HARRARZERTUEN RL A RS

EARBANHBBBLEHE  WKEHE
18 2 T TR W S W R B

27

e ©

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$90,354,000 (2013:
HK$101,141,000), which can be carried forward to
offset future taxable profit. Tax losses of approximately
HK$72,710,000 (2013: HK$76,772,000) will expire after
five years from the year of assessment they relate to
while tax losses of approximately HK$17,644,000 (2013:
HK$24,369,000) can be carried forward indefinitely. The
deferred tax benefit of such tax losses has not been
recognised as it is not considered probable that future
taxable profit will be available to utilise the unused tax
losses.
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12. FAEF
EREFEMGR,(ER) THIEBM

12. Profit for the Year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2014 2013
THET BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ITERE® Wages and salaries 90,813 65,332
BYEENES ZERE Share options granted to directors
and employees 2,082 4,760
TE R FURIRGT &) Payment to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,887 1,749
@8 TIRA(BIEEFEH) Total staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) 94,782 71,841
1% R 5 M Auditors’ remuneration 1,028 1,024
e Mg Depreciation and amortisation 77,985 75,346
HEWE  MEMERFE2EE  Netloss on disposal of property,

FEE plant and equipment 76 254
FHEEERENE RS Realised gain on investments held for trading (166) @14)
FHIEEERERNARER Unrealised (gain)/loss on investments

(Mas), /18 held for trading (3,125) 1,527
FERAWRAZH Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 1,256,519 1,014,389
T REF 2 EERNES Operating lease rentals in respect of land

and buildings 2,614 2,458
MiEE - note:
(@) BRI REGIETRE  AEBAHTRESR (@  As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group

—IHABFERRRETEHR - ZetEER
ERMHETE - RIBEHBFORE - AEE
BIEBFH M 14% Mt IR L AKRSE
EHMZN AREREARERINEES
HRNRENZ BE - ZBEBBTE MR
AEEERRNEENENBEESEME -

AEBMEBAREARELHBRERSTE - 81
S EIBRNEREMAGTE - ABLETEAE
B o RIFRESE  AEBEREBEEE A
FERBERFIMAESKIIREERRAZ5%
AT Bt R - B2014F6 A1 B - A&
SEREEHRZ ERAE A 1,50087T °

HZE2014F 12 31 HILFE - AEBA it
EE L ENEL AU 4R 584 1,887,000 7T
(20134F : 1,749,000/ Jt ) » 2014 12 A
31H -+ ZRE B I 5 4E FI M 15 A DR U 3R BT
ARELAREERKRBHK(2013F : TH
TT) e

contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its
employees in the PRC, which is a defined contribution plan.
The Group contributes approximately 14% of the employees’
salary as specified by the local government, and the Group has
no future obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the entire
pension obligations to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the MPF Scheme, a defined contribution scheme managed by
an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its Hong Kong employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earmnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation.
Since 1 June 2014, both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate
amount of the Group’s contributions to the aforementioned
pension schemes was approximately HK$1,887,000 (2013:
HK$1,749,000). As at 31 December 2014, the Group was not
entitled to any forfeited contributions to reduce the Group’s
future contributions (2013: HK$NI).
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13. EE - FETHAEREEFMEFZ 13. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

SEMAL Employees’ Emoluments and Individuals
with Highest Emoluments
(a) EE=HM (a) Directors’ Emoluments
HE2014F12ANBEFESEEZ The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31
ST December 2014 is set below:

EIfEze

BRE T Bl
Employer’s
contribution

to pension

Name of director Fees Salaries Share options scheme Total
TAT TR TR TRT THERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HTEERTHES Executive director and CEQ

N E ChiWen Fu - 1,300 79 17 1,396
HiTES Executive directors
It Shum Sai Chit - 650 59 17 726
HEX ChiBiFen - 650 59 17 726
BEN Yang Yuchuan - 650 - 17 667
FHTES Non-executive director
PRE Guo Mengyong 35 = 20 - 55
BUkHTES Independent non-executive
directors
BAX Kwong Ping Man 75 - 20 o 95
2R Liu Hoi Keung 2 18 - 7 = 25
ik Sheng Hong 35 - 20 - 55
El g Lau ChiKit ' 161 = - - 161
324 3,250 264 68 3,906
1 R2014F 4 B29 HEZ (T 1 Appointed on 29 April 2014
2 M2014F 4 A28 HIRME 2 Retired on 28 April 2014
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HE2013F12A31HILELFERES Y The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31

NS T December 2013 is set below:

Employer's
contribution
to pension

Name of director Fees Salaries  Share options scheme Total

BT TEL TEL BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HTESRTHASR, Executive director and CEO

W E ChiWen Fu - 1,108 124 15 1,247
HiTES Executive directors

ntE Shum Sai Chit - 560 % 15 668
HES ChiBiFen - 560 % 15 668
BRI Yang Yuchuan' - 325 - 8 333
FHTES Non-executive director

PHE Guo Mengyong 33 - 30 _ 63

BuFHTES Independent non-executive

directors
BRAY Kwong Ping Man 73 - 30 - 103
BR% LiuHoi Keung 53 - 30 , 8
Bt Sheng Hong 33 - 30 - 63
192 2,553 430 93 3,228
! 201347 A1 BEZT 1 Appointed on 1 July 2013
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(b) 5UBSEFMAL
RER - REBESUZEFHMALTRIES
7 (20134 : L) ARFIEE BHE
EWEMAITE R EXHEE - FREN
T T 2240 (20134 « 262 ) A £ 2 B
ST

(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included 3 (2013: 3) directors
of the Company whose directors’ emoluments are
disclosed in the above analysis. The emoluments
payable to the rest 2 (2013: 2) individuals during the
year are as follows:

2014 2013

FH FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000

HEAX$re Bk -
HAh 2 RE R B8

RREEBRA—TER
kAT &

Basic salaries, share options,
other allowances and benefits in kind 1,844 1,762
Pension costs-defined contribution plan

33 30

1,877 1,792

Z2f(2013F 2L ) mEFMALTH

The emoluments of the 2 (2013: 2) individuals with the

BN R A T S highest emoluments are within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
2014 2013
£ %1,000,0008 7T Nil - HK$1,000,000 1 2
1,000,001 77T 2 2,000,000  HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 -
2 2

(c) HZ=E2014%R%2013%12 A1 B ILEE -
AREE I EAEAARFESE RS &
BHMATZ AR IEAIMARE Bk
IMAZRER BRSH) 5EE) - sSiF ARt E -
REE2014F K 2013512 A31 B IH4F
B BEARRES RS &S A
TRBMERD NEEREMBNS -
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(c) During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company and the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office. There was
no director of the Company and the five highest paid
individuals agreed to waive or waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.



ANNUAL REPORT 2014

B TS R R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2014FE12 A1 HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

14. BB

14. Dividend

2014 2013

FET THTT
HK$’000 HK$'000

R AR B B SRR T AR
0.50 71l (2013 4F :
2.007841l)

Proposed final dividend of 0.50 HK cents
(2013: 2.00 HK cents) per ordinary share

14,528 55,115

KRR EBFRENRARGIE2015F5 A
28 HERTT Z IREBF R EH#AE -

EESEBAARRZBBIRBITAR - B
REINARRRRAM 2 KR ERHAARE 20
BRI B B 31 BT A (AT R ]) ([3&AT4T
Bl) - BORALR S AR 7 R AR RIR BB
FRSMA - BITARAFRR R AR
EWBHLE o

The proposed final dividend is to be approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 28 May 2015.

The Board also proposed to make a bonus issue to all the
shareholders of the Company on the basis of 1 new share (the
“Bonus Share(s)”) for every 20 existing shares of the Company
held by the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company (the “Bonus Issue”). The
proposed Bonus Shares will rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares of the Company. The Bonus Issue is
subject to the approval of shareholders and relevant regulatory
authorities.

2013

THTT
HK$’000 HK$'000

FRNERBDIKELE Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
2013 F &Ik IR ITHY 2013 final dividend declared and
REP BB E B paid of 2.00 HK cents
2.008L (2012 % - (2012: 1.03 HK cents) per ordinary
1.03781l) share 56,201 26,280

R 201443 A18 B » 54,295,000 % ¥ i A%
TERAREMET W FEREE2013F12
A31BIEFE 2 AREMR S8 A8 (B2014 5
5A218) Bt RNz RKEAKREZREBZE
2013F 12 A1 BHILFEHEIRKE -

On 18 March 2014, 54,295,000 ordinary shares were issued
pursuant to the exercise of share options before the record
date of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2013, i.e. 21 May 2014. As such, final dividend paid was more
than the proposed dividend for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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15. SREF
(@ EX
FREABFZREARFHEE AR
FREF - B AFERNB BT LB N
FHEEE -

15. Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

2014 2013

RN TER AERERREF] Profit for the year attributable to
(F&7T) owners of the Company (HK$’000) 287,910 230,215
BT T mARINE T E Weighted average number of
(1) ordinary shares in issue ('000) 2,812,557 2,570,488
R E A2 F| (FREEL) Basic earnings per share
(HK cents per share) 10.24 8.96

(b) #§
BRESRNZHRRELAEHEILE
AR AEBEBITEBRINEF
VEGETE - ARBEMBEEEEEEE
R BERHE N AT UE 55 o

AEBBEMS - ARRHR R ARTTEBR
M 2 RBERERE  FEERAYF
BEARRBHA 2 By PO Ti5EERE
E)REBARBRMER - R EXPTLAE
M0 BB - ELRERTT 0 M B 1% P 2
TR BB fF—LL#R
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(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The Company has two categories of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options and
convertible bonds.

For the share options, a calculation is done to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at
fair value (determined as the average market price of the
Company’s shares during the period) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.



ANNUAL REPORT 2014

B TS R R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2014F 12 A1 ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HRARBNHRITEATRERES AR
BEAE - SRR R R R AT R AT AR
EHFWARET AGREERF N EF -

The Company’s outstanding convertible bonds were
not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share because the effect of which were anti-dilutive.

2014 2013

RARHEE AEEFEREF Profit for the year attributable to
(F#T) owners of the Company (HK$’000) 287,910 230,215
BEITEBRIEFIH Weighted average number of ordinary
(Fp%) shares in issue ('000) 2,812,557 2,570,488
PR E L AT (FR) Adjustment for share options (000) 78,427 78,849
GRS RN E@MARNE  Weighted average number of ordinary
I8 (FAR) shares for diluted earnings per share
('000) 2,890,984 2,649,337
FREEER (AW Diluted earnings per share
(HK cents per share) 9.96 8.69

16. T {F A

AR B L P AR 2 RS T

3 BRREFESNAT -

ERE - REEEFE

16. Land Use Rights
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net carrying values are
analysed as follows:

2013
FHT
HK$'000

HK$’000

In the PRC, held on:

FREATEAY Medium term leases 144,386 151,488
MEAE Current assets 3,400 3,485
IERBEE Non-current assets 140,986 148,003

144,386 151,488

H20145%12 A31 8 » BREIE A4 139,958,000
BT (2013 4F 1 146,815,000/8 70) 2 T i E

REERIRITEE ZHEIM (FEEI0)

As at 31 December 2014, land use rights with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$139,958,000 (2013:
HK$146,815,000) have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings (Note 30).
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17. V¥ - BERRE

(a) &=£E

17. Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) The Group

B2 FRE
(W) nERE BER#E BAERE RE
Furniture and

office
equipment

fRIR

(K (i)
Construction-
in-progress
(note (i

Plant and
machinery
i

Motor
vehicles

Buildings Leasehold

improvements
FATL T

7.8 cosT
Ro013E1B1A Asat 1 January 2013 153,626 2978 444236 8,029 7,631 868 203,733 841,101
AE Additions - 848 12,246 2651 3190 - 332,330 348,865
s Transfers 5,260 - 45,715 - - - (50975) -
e Disposdls - %) ) - o72) - - (1521
ERaAR Exchange alignment 4715 678 14,561 288 266 2 12,610 33,004
R013E12831 8 Asat 31 December 2013

R014E1A18 and 1 January 2014 163,601 24,181 516,532 8518 10,115 894 497,698 1,221,639
AE Addtions 611 - 5723 17 724 - 585,763 592,998
2 Transfers 4929 - 39,158 - - - (44,087) -
e Disposels - - (667) - (147 - - 0104
Erge Bxchenge algnment {4,048) 570 (13041 o) 20 o) (17,100 {3,201
R2014 512531 R As at 31 December 2014 165,093 23,611 541,705 8,494 9,182 813 1,022,274 1,171,232
ZEHTERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment

R013E1B1A Asat 1 January 2013 40,002 2978 147,030 6,070 5,634 U7 - 222,061
EiE Charge for the year 3,063 268 51,109 1,085 930 175 - 56,630
HERHE Eliminated on disposal - (329) @) - 724) - - 1,068)
Efag Exchange alignment 1,206 678 5,561 204 146 14 - 7869
R2013E12AS1AR Asat 31 December 2013 and

014E1518 1 January 2014 4331 23,601 203,679 7359 5986 536 - 28549
FRIE Charge for the year 323% 2% 53,339 430 73 176 - 58,448
HERHH Eliminated on disposal - - (546) - (1,283 - - (1,779
Ejigs Bxchengs algnment (111 570 5.404) (181) (118 (14 - 7469
R2014512531A As at 31 December 2014 46,455 23,326 250,978 1,608 5,608 698 - 334,673
EEFE Net carrying values
R2014512531A As at 31 December 2014 118,638 285 296,727 886 3,574 175 1,022,274 1,442,559
R013F12831R Asat 31 December 2013 119,270 580 312,863 1,159 4129 358 497,698 936,047

BT - notes:

0 ZEBFARPE -

(ii) R 2014128318 © 492,019,000/
JL(201834F : TA L) WE KN KFTA
IR - FRAEEIR ST ¢

0] The buildings are situated in the PRC.

(ii) As at 31 December 2014, approximately HK$2,019,000
(2013: HK$NIl) was capitalised and included in
construction-in-progress. An analysis of construction-in-
progress is as follows:

2014 2013

FExT FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

BF Buildings 99,501 137,447
R E M e Plant and machinery 922,773 360,251
1,022,274 497,698

iy H2014F12A31H " FE@EE
#)160,334,000/% 7Tt (20134
165,546,000 L) ZEF
EERREBEEARERITREEZK
(M3£30) -

I

)

BHH

142

(iif) As at 31 December 2014, buildings and plant and
machinery with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$160,334,000 (2013: HK$165,546,000) have been
pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note 30).
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(b) &AQFH (b) The Company
BRRBAZE
Furniture
Leasehold Motor and office
improvements vehicle equipment Total
T AL T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KA Cost
20135 1A 18 Asat 1 January 2013 323 927 125 1,375
NE Additions 848 - 181 1,029
HE Disposals (323) - - (323)
R2013%12 4318 As at 31 December 2013
R2014%1 718 and 1 January 2014 848 927 306 2,081
RE Additions - 724 75 79
HE Disposals - 927) - (927)
®2014%12531H As at 31 December 2014 848 724 381 1,953
2iiTE Accumulated depreciation
20135 1A1H Asat 1 January 2013 328 848 38 1,209
HERHE Eliminated on disposal (323 - - (323
ERHE Charge for the year 268 79 4 388
#2013F 12318 As at 31 December 2013
R20145171R and 1 January 2014 268 927 79 1,274
LB Eliminated on disposal - (927) - 927)
ERNE Charge for the year 295 100 69 464
120145125 31H As at 31 December 2014 563 100 148 811
REFE Net carrying values
#2014%125381H As at 31 December 2014 285 624 233 1,142
2013512 A31H As at 31 December 2013 580 - 21 807
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RAFEZME  BEARBZERFHM The useful lives of property, plant and equipment adopted for
N the current year are as follows:
—EF HEMRN - Buildings Over the lease terms
—MEEE 2E54F - Leasehold improvements 210 5 years
— B K tEs 5Z 254 — Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years
— R RPN E R 5% - Furniture and office equipment 5 years
—RE 5% — Motor vehicles 5 years
— AR 5% - Ship 5 years
18. REWHE 18. Investment Properties
FHT
HK$000
3% Cost
®2013F1A1H As at 1 January 2013 163,285
[& 5 A% Exchange alignment 4,884
M2013412 A31 B 201441 A1H  Asat 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 168,169
ME 5% Exchange alignment (4,109
R2014F12A31 1 As at 31 December 2014 164,060
2iinE Accumulated depreciation
7201341 A1H As at 1 January 2013 23,177
FERIE Charge for the year 2,908
[ 5% Exchange alignment 761
72013F 12 A31HK%2014%1 A1H  Asat 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 26,846
FRFE Charge for the year 3,288
IE 5% Exchange alignment (686)
#2014%12831H As at 31 December 2014 29,448
BRI FHE Net carrying values
"2014%12831H As at 31 December 2014 134,612
»2013F 12 A31H As at 31 December 2013 141,323
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REMEREEEMEE -  E-HRE= The investment properties represent the buildings related to

HEBRETF - phase one, phase two and phase three of the Yunxiao
properties.

LR EEREE AN B EETIE - The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight

line basis over the lease term.

H2014F 12 A31 B ' BREI{EAX) A 134,612,000 As at 31 December 2014, investment properties with a
770 (20134F © 141,323,00078 70) 2 I E W carrying amount of approximately HK$134,612,000 (2013:
BERIRITEE 2R - (FIFE30) HK$141,323,000) have been pledged to secure bank

borrowings. (Note 30)

MR20145F12A31 0 - REBKREMEZ AT The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
{B#9/3161,311,000 7 7T (2013 4F : 146,463,000 December 2014 was approximately HK$161,311,000 (2013:
B HEREASENEEEC B IEE HK$146,463,000). The valuation was performed by
BAGEAEL - RBEERELEZBILGERME independent qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
BRI 2 MEREEEE ZFHER K& Based on the result of management’s assessment by making
B2 ®EWER2014F K 2013F 12 431 H reference to the valuation report issued by the independent
ZEEREBERBRE - qualified valuers, there is no impairment on the carrying
amount of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2014 and 2013.
REZE2014F12 A1 BILFE - LEWERT During the year ended 31 December 2014, rental income of
E4 2z e WA 55,278,000 T (20134 HK$5,278,000 (2013: HK$5,241,000) and rental yield of 4.4%
5,241,000/ 7t ) © & [l W & /& 4.4% (2013 (2013: 3.7%) were generated from the investment properties.
F:3.7%) c WEMENHES WA KHNREE The rental income from investment properties less direct
T H#)512,00078 7T (20134 : THIL)) A outgoings of approximately HK$512,000 (2013: HK$ Nil)
4,766,0008 7T (2013 4 : 495,241,000/ 7L) ° amounted to approximately HK$4,766,000 (2013:

approximately HK$5,241,000).

LR EYEMNREERRE The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
comprise:
2014 2013
TR FHTT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERE - BELEEE In the PRC, held on:
FRERFR A Medium term lease 134,612 141,323
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19. B &EE 19. Intangible Assets

b3 pIE g% R

Technical Club Development
know-how membership costs Total
TAL T B T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KA COST
R013F1A1A Asat 1 January 2013,
2013%F12R31H 31 December 2013,
2014F181H 1 January 2014 and
R2014%12 4318 31 December 2014 3,687 80 9,092 12,859
ZHBELAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
R2013F1A1H Asat 1 January 2013,
2013127318 31 December 2013,
2014F1 518 1 January 2014 and
2014512 A318 31 December 2014 3,687 - 9,092 12,779
REFE Net carrying values
120145125 31A As at 31 December 2014 - 80 - 80
201312 B 31 A As at 31 December 2013 - 80 - 80
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20. REE 20. Mining Rights
FHT
HK$’000
R Cost
A20134F1A18 As at 1 January 2013 593,931
IE 5% Exchange alignment 17,763
M20134%12 A31 B 201441 A1H  Asat 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 611,694
I 5% Exchange alignment (14,946)
R2014F 12831 H As at 31 December 2014 596,748
Rt BHERAE Accumulated amortisation and impairment
»2013F1A1H As at 1 January 2013 22,072
FAME Charge for the year 12,401
M AR Exchange alignment 943
72013F 12 A31H K% 2014%1 A1H  Asat 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 35,416
ERITE Charge for the year 12,816
PE Exchange alignment (982)
R2014F12A31H As at 31 December 2014 47,250
FEFE Net carrying values
M2014%512831H As at 31 December 2014 549,498
201312 31 H As at 31 December 2013 576,278
MRERKXPBLEHE REGEH A TERF The balance represents two mining rights, the Serpentine
HEMEBIT B EREAMIBRERE - MW mine located in Donghai County of Jiangsu Province, the PRC
ERBEEHCREERBEARESEE - and the dolomite mine located in Baishan City of Jilin Province,
the PRC, which are amortised by the production quantity over
the ore reserve.
R201412 A31 A + Bk E B 49491,689,000 As at 31 December 2014, mining rights with a carrying
57T (20134F : 515,314,000/ 7T ) 2 HRIEELD amount of approximately HK$491,689,000 (2013:
ERIEITEE 2B o (KMi5E30) HK$515,314,000) have been pledged to secure bank

borrowings. (Note 30)

147



B TS R R Y

AR EEIERERA A
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2014F 12 A1 ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

21. RIBR R 2 RE K B E 2 TR
b2
(a) RMBARZRE

RE - EKAE
FEEMRRA

21.

Unlisted share capital

Investments in and Amounts due from
Subsidiaries
(@) Investments in Subsidiaries

¥iN/NE]

The Company

2014
TERT
HK$’000

2013
THET
HK$'000

Investments, at cost:

2,108 2,108

R2014F12 A31 H » KEBEH T EH
BREIZFBOT

FRAIHER
EARBER
Place of
incorporation
and kind of

IlEc
Principal
activities and
place of
operation

legal entity

ALTAREBHES hE - EREELT RPERERHE
BRAR The PRC, Iimted SBEENER
Baishan City Tianan Magnesium ~ liability company Manufacturing and sale
Resources Company Limited of magnesium-related

products in the PRC
ueilly e 2 BE BRRELT REBREER
BRAT Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in
Century Sunshine fiabilty company Hong Kong
Ecological Technology
Limited
% (2M) £2 TE - ERREAT RAERERR
PRERAF The PRC, limited Investment holding
Century Sunshine fiabilty company in the PRC
(Zhangzhou)
Ecological
Technology Limited
TEREURARERAT  BE ARELAA REEREER
China Rere Earth Magnesium ~ Hong Kong, imited Investment holding
Technology Holdings Limited ~ fiabilty company in Hong Kong
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Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2014 are as follow:

BRTRE
BRiRRA
Particulars of
issued share/
paid up
registered capital

FTARENERRIL RS HENREELA
Proportion of ownership
interest held
by the Company
Ef i
Directly Indirectly
2014 2013 2014 PARK]

Proportion of
voting power held

2014 PAIR}

R RS ERE - -
AR 180,332,000

Registered and
paid up capital of
RMB180,332,000

18.2% 782%  18.2% 78.2%

1000REER = - 100% 100%  100%
BREE1.0ET
1,000 ordinary shares

of HK$1.00 each

100%

SR RERRE = - 100%  100% ~ 100%  100%
30,000,000 7

Registered and

paid up capital

HK$30,000,000

10310 ERR - - 182%  782% 182%  782%

BREEET
10,310 ordlinary shares
of HKS1 each
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FRAIHER TTEE
EARRER MEEDY
Place of Principal Particulars of
incorporation activities and issued share/
and kind of place of paid up

operation registered capital

BRTRE
BRERRR 2 NGESZT LT i) HENREELA
Proportion of ownership
interest held
by the Company
Ef ]

Directly Indirectly

2014 2013 2014 PAIK] 2014

Proportion of
voting power held

legal entity

THREENRREERLE  PE ERERLT RAERERHE RS RRE - - 91.9%  832% 91.9%  832%
Jangsu Azureblue The PRC, mited A (R)EEHR ARH1000000007C
Technology Development liabilty company EMERERH Registered and
Company Limited Manufacturing and sale of ~ paid up capital of
compound and organic RMB100,000,000
fertlisers in the PRC
IEERIIERAA HE - AREFAT RPEETRIA R RS ERE - - o1.3%  913%  91.3%  91.3%
Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical - The PRC, limited NI RARHE ARE14,160,0007
Limited liabilty company Processing, exploration Registered and
and sales of paid up capital of
serpentine in the PRC RMB14,160,000
- RERAER RERRERR 100RE R - - 100% - 100% -
Ming Xin Developments Limited ~ ERETAA Investment holding BREEIET
(note 2) British Virgin Islandss, limited  in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares
liabilty company of US§1 each
fEE - notes:
1) REEER  BERB AR ST A% 1) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities issued
T MKREEZERES - outstanding at the end of the reporting period.
©) REZE2014F 12 A 31 B IFEE A 2 Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2014.

-~
VAR

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principal affected the
results for the year materially or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries, in the opinion of the directors, would result in
particulars of excessive length.

EREINEESRRYFEXAEEATELE
BRAKEFEESRHHNAARNLIEREA
B BEERRFNEMMBARNENGER
fEBmN IR

AN RAREBRER B XNEREBM GRS In addition, the directors of the Company made an assessment

(b)

HERE 1R BRI E BRI B
A LEHELNENNEEHAEEEE
REVIEFRIHERS + e + WA B IR AN
BARHBETES -

FE W B B8 X B RRIR
UM B A A RUE BB - 8
BRI -

(b)

as at the date of initial application of HKFRS 12 and at the end
of the reporting period. In the opinion of the directors, there is
no subsidiary that have non-controlling interests individually
that are material to the Group and therefore no information is
disclosed for these non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

Amounts due from Subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and recoverable on demand.
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22, JHEERE

23.
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22. Available-for-sale Investment

2014 2013

FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHRE Listed investments
—BMNz ETRAES — Equity securities listed in Australia,
RAEE (M 5F) at fair value (note) 30,391 142,453
FEAME MDA : Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MEVAE Current assets 30,391 142,453
ERBEE Non-current assets - _
30,391 142,453
BT note:
AHEERERANEENRN FMBEHFRE - A% Available-for-sale investment represents the Group’s investment in
E 4548 TTG Fintech Limited ([TTG) 14,744,000 A% % listed securities in Australia. The Group held 14,744,000 shares of
e RRBIESZHE/ISEB2011F12 ARRA/TIG TTG Fintech Limited (“TTG”). Mr. Yang Yuchuan, director of the
ZIEHITES - Company, is a non-executive director of TTG since December 2011,
THRABHERE L ATFENSEERMHZEANE Fair values of the investments in listed equity securities are determined
MEE ° by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.
HZE2014F12 A1 HLLEFE ERATHBEREY For the year ended 31 December 2014, the net loss arising on
B 18 F 58 47112,062,000 4 7T, (2013 4F « Y& F FE4Y revaluation of available-for-sale investment recognised in other
18,867,000/ 0) BN E A2 (FIZ) A RHER © comprehensive (expenses)/income amounted to approximately
HK$112,062,000 (2013: net gain of approximately HK$18,867,000).
7E 23. Inventories
2014 2013
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt Raw materials 95,391 50,173
E8m Work in progress 1,524 3,653
R o Finished goods 84,485 39,341
181,400 93,167
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24. ESRHMBEWFIE BARERKE 24. Trade and Other Receivables,
Prepayments and Deposits

=

rEE EAT
The Group The Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
FET TR FET THTT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FEUE 5 5/A Trade receivables 314,934 228,618 - -
FEWEIE Bills receivables 28,641 37,657 - -
TEFE LIRS Prepayments and deposits 30,619 27,952 1,091 799
H b e S Other receivables 7,310 7,223 37 -

TFEHUR B RS HHE 2 Deposits placed with
T financial institutions 2,275 1,465 44 56
383,779 302,915 1,172 855

FiEE - notes:

(@ 20144912 A31 8 - EUREE 428,641,000 (@  As at 31 December 2014, bills receivables of approximately
7 7L (2013 4F : 37,657,000 7T ) #8 1A = 25 HA HK$28,641,000 (2013: HK$37,657,000) will be matured within
KAEA (20134 - NEA) NEIHE - FiEfE six months (2013: six months) after the end of the reporting
WRBHAAREEHE period. All the bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

(o) M20145F12A31H » EfhERFBEZRIE (o) As at 31 December 2014, other receivables mainly comprised

R B A AT U RSB 7 49 4 1,448,00078 7.(2013
£ :1,509,000787T) °

MH2014F 12 A31H @ EAMEKRKIELE
BIHA K BRI © (20185 « T L)

of value-added tax recoverable in the PRC of approximately
HK$1,448,000 (2013: HK$1,509,000).

As at 31 December 2014, none of the other receivables are
past due and impaired. (2013: HK Nil)
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B 5 REMBYFR - BNFAERIZSIA TS

Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits were

BHEGHE - denominated in the following currencies:
AEE RAF
The Group The Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

TR FHIT FHET FHTT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AR RMB 377,749 301,476 - -
I HK$ 6,030 1,439 1,172 855
383,779 302,915 1,172 855

MR2014F12 A31 B » REBEWRE 5 FHIEH
BRI (RBZBAH27)) T ¢

As at 31 December 2014, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables of the Group presented based on the invoice date
was as follows:

2014 2013

FH FiET

HK$’000 HK$'000

30 HMAR Within 30 days 142,784 107,063
31Z60H 31 to 60 days 87,955 92,143
61£90H 61 to 90 days 64,703 22,546
iMoo H Over 90 days 19,492 6,866
314,934 228,618

AEBBLTESRFZEEH KR TEBIE180
H (20134 : 8@ 180H) °

I 8 78 A KR (B 0 B 5 FE MU IR S K B AT e
REFENTRBRIEF - CRHRERRENE
SRR T B — L AR BB R 4 X B ROk
MEREFPER AR EEERIBEAEY
REHRMARBSTURE2EM@  REBEBEL
B BEER/LBVERZFEMRIELRE
B - AEBRERZFERT B TR

RE E2014F K2013F 12 A1 B IEFE -
I 4 VR R E B o
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The Group allows a credit period normally not more than 180
days (2013: not more than 180 days) to its trade customers.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Trade receivables that were past due
but not impaired related to a number of customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balance are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
provision for impairment was made.



ANNUAL REPORT 2014

B TS R R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE2014FE12 A1 HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BEMERRE 2 B S REYGIBRED T T Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired:
Rl BHERRE
BXRFE 90AL"  91Z180H 181Z365H
Neither past
due nor Past due but not impaired
Total impaired <90 days 91-180 days 181-365 days
BT TET THET THT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2014 314,934 295,442 14,712 1,953 2,827
2013 228,618 221,752 - 5,434 1,432
NETESRINFTENNEIRER - K& In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the
EERBAEY EEREE R RERER I Group considers any change in credit quality of the trade
HE EH5EKZENEZEEEEZRTHIRE receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
B o MREPAEMEABRERE  HEER end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
MHETREEAR limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
25. FEEERE 25. Investments Held for Trading
2014 2013
THET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B FRAES Listed equity securities in the PRC,
BAFE at fair value 9,900 7,387
NEEDIZEMEMRKREABETE - Fair values are determined with reference to quoted market
bid price.
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26. FTESWMEE 26. Derivative Financial Assets
FHIT
HK$'000
#2013F1 A1H 20134 As at 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and

12431 B X&2014F1HA1H 1 January 2014 -
BT ARAE S (MTE31i) Issue of convertible bonds (Note 31(ii)) 304
N EEE) Fair value changes ®61)
"®2014512H31H As at 31 December 2014 243
PTHEERMEENEIBRRESAEATAEE Derivative financial assets represent the early redemption
TERAIERE  IRFREEEEEITETA - option derivatives embedded in convertible bonds which
N ERVIEHERERRAREIHRERA =X allows the Group exercise the early redemption rights. The fair
BIRAEE - value is measured using the binomial tree model at initial

recognition and at the end of the reporting period.

AR E S IERE A SRR M 31 W E - Details of the convertible bonds were disclosed in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

27. RITFERNBEEREFREEH 27. Deposits with Banks and Cash and Cash
Equivalents

MR2014F12A31H BB ABB=@EA/ED As at 31 December 2014, the fixed interest rate on deposits
W — F 7 iR 17 77 $86,351,000 7T (2013 £F : with banks of HK$86,351,000, (2013: HK$40,992,000), with
40,992,000/870) 2 BEEFFIE HB1.9EE276 maturity over three months but less than one year, was
B (2013F : 14BE31E) - RITFHUA ranging from 1.9% to 2.76% (2013: 1.4% to 3.1%) per
R¥EEHE - annum. The deposits with banks were denominated in RMB.
MR20145F12 A31 5 « #HEEITFR(20134F ¢ As at 31 December 2014, no deposits with banks (2013:
15,372,000 70) EVE BB ZHE 2 #H# - HK$15,372,000) have been pledged to secure bills payables.
R2014 12 A31 B + $R1717 5049 24,994,000 As at 31 December 2014, deposits with banks of
BIL(20134F « AT EEARITIEE 2K approximately HK$24,994,000 (2013: HK$Nil) have been
A (MH3E30) © pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note 30).
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RFEHR  REeFFRARSELBENLTE
B :

At the end of the reporting period, cash and cash equivalents
comprise of the followings:

REE /NG|
The Group The Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
TR TET TR TET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000

EHIRTTIE R Short-term bank deposits 513,169 318,969 - -
RITIBE N FBERE Cash at bank and on hand 229,262 62,940 21,288 613
742,431 381,909 21,288 613

RIBEBR - RERITERZEBRBAEB1.47
B (20134 : 2.37[&) : 25 TR 2 FHEHA
B DA =18 B (20134 : =f@A) »

B hERRCERRATESE

At the end of the reporting period, the effective interest rate on

short-term bank deposits was 1.47% (2013: 2.37%); these
deposits have an average maturity of less than three months
(2013: three months).

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following
currencies:

rEE NN
The Group The Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
FTET TR FRET THTT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

AR RMB 375,751 376,037 - -
BT HK$ 332,800 5,832 21,258 576
Hh Others 33,880 40 30 37

742,431 381,909 21,288 613

BUARBHEZRE LERRSEE EL S
BAS T EBUFEEAINEE SRR -

The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated in
RMB out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange control
restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.
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28. E5 RHMENKIA

28. Trade and Other Payables

rEH RAF
The Group The Company

2014 2013 2014 2013
FHET THETT FHET THET

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

B E 5508 Trade payables 135,831 69,197 - -
FERRIE Bills payables - 15,372 - -
TEWFIE Receipts in advance 45,368 79,487 - -

FEstEmE M EHMER  Accruals and other payables (note)
RIE (M5E) 130,266 45,726 2,047 1,481
311,465 209,782 2,047 1,481

Mt : R2014%F 12 A31 B Bt EREMEN K
BEERERERBAREIMES 2 ENRE
#964,984,000 7% 7T (18 & 7 A R % 52,000,000
7t) (20134 - T T) « WEME - BE KR
&5 2 FE 1 3 1E 49 12,653,000 7T (20134 ¢
2,237,000/ 7T ) bA & EAth 4 7 18 496,855,000
7T (20134F : 4,094,000/ 7T) ©

R2014F12 A31H - AEFENESHIEZ
BRI DI (REZEAHEY)) AT :

note: As at 31 December 2014, accruals and other payables
mainly comprised of consideration payable for acquisition of
additional interest of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$64,984,000 (equivalent to RMB52,000,000) (2013:
HK$ Nil), payable for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$12,653,000 (2013:
HK$2,237,000) and other tax payable of approximately of
HK$6,855,000 (2013: HK$4,094,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the ageing analysis of trade
payables of the Group presented based on the invoice date

was as follows:

2014 2013

FHET THT

HK$’000 HK$'000

30 B Within 30 days 72,395 41,518
31£60H 31 to 60 days 21,691 21,514
61290H 61 to 90 days 36,083 4,878
HiEo0 H Over 90 days 5,662 1,287
135,831 69,197

REEMR 2 FHEEEAH (20134 : 90
A) - AEBERBHHRBEERE - UER
FrE M RENMEERRNER -
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The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days
(2013: 90 days). The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within
the credit timeframe.
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29, BIBEREN

29. Financial Guarantee Contracts

RAF
The Company

2014 2013
Fi#5 FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FIRTTRE RS THBAF Guarantee given to certain subsidiaries for
REER banking facilities 81 85

I AREREZEREMAIE S (N2 48%8 - H
#)297,097,00078 7T (20134F : 114,050,000/ 7T)
EHIRITERABA -

This represents the aggregate amounts that could be required

to be paid if the guarantees were called upon in entirety, of
which approximately HK$297,097,000 (2013: HK$114,050,000)
has been utilised by the bank’s borrowers.

30. B E 30. Borrowings

2014 2013
FTHET FATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITERE Bank borrowings 403,673 301,076
Hib & E (H5EDb) Other borrowings (note b) 191,741 -
595,414 301,076

- Borrowings:
—F LR Within one year 303,696 301,076

—FLALETBBRAF More than one year but not exceeding

five years 182,520 -
BBRF More than five years 109,198 -
595,414 301,076
B PIERE B A2 FRIE Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities (303,696) (301,076)
291,718 -

- Borrowings:
B Secured 532,929 301,076
IR (MisEce) Unsecured (note ¢) 62,485 -
595,414 301,076
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BaE

@

R2014F12A31H RITEE B D B L
160,334,000/87T + 139,958,000/ T + 134,612,000
78 7T~ 491,689,000/% 7T & 24,994,000/% 7T (2013
F : 165,546,000/% It 146,815,000/ 7T *
141,323,000 JT * 515,314,000 T & T %
T ZAEBMYE « BB R - T ERE
WEYE - IR RRITF R o o
AAR—BEEMBITREEABRUER—
M B A &) 2 #956,237,00078 7T (2013 4F :
57,645,000 L) & & -

M20145F 12 A31H » #7323,673,000/% 7T
80,000,000/ 7T % 191,741,000 7T (2013 4F :
251,076,000 7 * 50,000,000 7T & Z# 7T )
ZHEEDBUARE  BERETITE B
201412 A 31 B2 EFEEEFI*= 55.32
[E (20134 : 6.26F) °

R2014F5 8 AEEHAFHK AR ([E
BE AR DI EREZH - REZERE
B BRESRARMARA R —HENEQRER S
25,000,000 7o ( #7191,741,0008 T ) 2 &
e RERIEHBRITRAEREMISEZF
MEFE  WIRERMIAMEBEHERBHE
2 BRemArEH 2 ZERUTIISIEE
BT ()RR RWEE 2 EER - R)EH#A
BERARGRAR([BE] - BIERER)#ES
2 KA 5] 344,868,000 A% A% 15 © tEAN 0 ARAF]
EERTBRBREONERE(BBREANTEY
) ABEBEERATAHRERARRZHE
BRE ARAIRAEEETETRY - BiF
(Eh B8 BEXinEE N2 a8 THBREL -

HZE2014F 12 A31H - AEEEKBEEELD
62,485,000 7T (20134 : T L) AR A)
VEFELR -

AEBEEZREABERATFENT

Borrowings

notes:

As at 31 December 2014, the borrowings were secured by
property, plant and equipment, land use rights, investment
properties, mining rights and deposits with banks of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$160,334,000,
HK$139,958,000, HK$134,612,000, HK$491,689,000 and
HK$24,994,000 (2013: HK$165,546,000, HK$146,815,000,
HK$141,323,000, HK$515,314,000 and HK$NIl) respectively.
In addition, a director of the Company provide personnel
guarantee to a bank for securing a borrowing of a subsidiary
amounting to approximately HK$56,237,000 (2013:
HK$57,645,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the borrowings amounting to
approximately HK$323,673,000, HK$80,000,000 and
HK$191,741,000 (2013: HK$251,076,000, HK$50,000,000
and HK$Nil) were denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$
respectively. The weighted average effective interest rate at 31
December 2014 was 5.32% (2013: 6.26%).

The Group entered into a loan arrangement with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC”) in May 2014. Pursuant to the loan
arrangement, IFC had granted a loan of US$25,000,000
(approximately HK$191,741,000) to a subsidiary of the
Company. The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% per
annum and the amounts due are based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan. The loan granted by IFC
was secured by (i) corporate guarantee given by the Company;
and (i) pledges of 344,868,000 shares in the Company, as
owned by Alpha Sino International Limited (“Alpha Sino”), the
controlling shareholder. In addition, Mr. Chi Wen Fu, a director
and controlling shareholder of the Company (through his
interest in Alpha Sino), has given an undertaking to IFC to
maintain a minimum level of shareholding in the Company. The
Company and the Group are complied with certain covenants,
including, among other things, certain financial covenants,
under the loan arrangement.

The unsecured borrowings of approximately HK$62,485,000
(2013: HK$ Nil) of the Group are guaranteed by the Company
as at 31 December 2014.

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s borrowings

are as follows:

fREE
Carrying amount

AV
Fair value
2014 2013
THT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

2014
FET
HK$’000

2013
TATL
HK$'000

595,414 301,076 595,414 301,076
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31. TRKRES
AR ES B BB 2 EEENT

R2013%F1 418 »
201312 A31H K

31. Convertible Bonds
The carrying values of the liability component of the convertible

bonds are as follows:

AR ES 1
Convertible

ARRES2
Convertible
Bonds 2
T
HK$'000

Bonds 1
FAT
HK$’'000

Total
i
HK$'000

As at 1 January 2013, 31 December
2013 and 1 January 2014

20141 818 - - -
BT E S (M sE) Issue of convertible bonds (notes) 110,664 167,861 278,525
EHREER B Imputed interest expense charged 9,181 13,976 23,157
BEATFLE Interest paid (2,652) (4,150) (6,802)
A2014F12831H As at 31 December 2014 117,193 177,687 294,880

Wi

U

N2014F6R27TH R AR ETASEAR
115,000,000 % 7T 2 A #2 f & % ([ AT IR AR (E 5
1) ABREIRE - JRREHFILLE5E 2 FF
KB BHEEIN K IBRBEFEEA
BRREIRE1208TH I RRESERA
ffn o Al ES 1 2 B M B A% T A HARRRT
m—EZ B

AR EF AR E B B AT E A T
e R MRES YRR DS A B - AR
AEmEREES -

RSB EF 1 EEmIERN - B EESD kEs
Bl - AEFOOERRBDEE  KAEEF
SRR AT IR - R B AN R R
EEDELEERD

BEBORIAHERE 2 EIRFH*E%515.66
o

BammnEn [ MRRESERRE] B2
5l e

notes:

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible bonds
(“Convertible Bonds 1”) with the principal amount of
HK$115,000,000 for cash. The convertible bonds bear an
interest of 4.5% per annum payable in arrear semi-annually.
The convertible bonds entitle the holder to convert to shares at
a conversion price of HK$1.20. The maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds 1 is the date faling 1 year from the date of
issue.

Conversion may occur at any time before maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds 1. The Company will redeem the convertible
bonds if the bonds have not been converted on maturity date.

The Convertible Bonds 1 contains two components: liability
component and equity component. The liability component is
classified as current liabilities and carried at amortised costs
using effective interest method. The residual value after
recognising the liability component is classified as equity
component.

The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 15.66% per annum.

The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds equity reserve”.
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160

BaE

(i)

R2014F6A27TH KRB BETAXECRER
180,000,000 /& 7T 2 AT R (E 5 ([ AT iR & 5
2 AMER € o AR EHRILISEZFF
KRB BEFIN—K - AJERBRESFFAA
BRREBRE1208THEATRRESERE
Bt - Al ES 2 2 BIH B B A R ES
2RATHHARRETNEE M2 B ([HAR]) - ATk
EH 218 AERS0HMAR AR Sk
EmEBEMNE - SR AHRERE —BRET
R—F -

AR E F 2R B I B AT E B T
e A MRESFTER R A RS - AR
ARERERES  IRARFREESFTA
Z AR R AGAF T R RS T AR

ABEER 2B HERD  STEEREER
o (MsE26) - TE SR AESD  BESD
KigmEbtn - AEMOHOBRIFERPAE - &
REBRMEEIR B AR - J2ATHEOEE
BOBRITESRERE - EREERDER/IT
EeRARE  BERVIRERE RAREHR
ER-AAREEERAGFEZATFESER
THEL - FRBEED B RERED - WES
(AR s a2 -

BEBONIRRERR 2 BRFRNER16.72
JE2

notes:

(i

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible bonds
(“Convertible Bonds 2”) with the principal amount of
HK$180,000,000 for cash. The convertible bonds bear an
interest of 4.5% per annum payable in arrear semi-annually.
The convertible bonds entitle the holder to convert to shares at
a conversion price of HK$1.20. The maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds 2 is two years commencing from the date
of issue of the Convertible Bonds 2 (the “Term”). The maturity
date shall, upon prior notice in writing by the holder(s) of the
Convertible Bonds 2 to the Company thirty days in advance,
be extended for another one year from the last day of the
Term.

Conversion may occur at any time before maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds 2. The Company will redeem the convertible
bonds if the bonds have not been converted on maturity date
or redeem when the Company exercises the redemption rights
as pursuant to the terms and conditions of the bond
instrument.

The Convertible Bonds 2 contains four components: derivative
financial assets component (Note 26), derivative financial liability
component, liability component and equity component. The
liability component is classified as non-current liabilities and
carried at amortised costs using effective interest method. The
early redemption option is classified as derivative financial
assets. The extension option is classified as derivative financial
liabilities and its fair value measured using Binomial Option
Pricing Model at initial recognition and at the end of the
reporting period were both equal to HK$NIl. The residual value
is classified as equity component and presented in equity
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve”.

The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 15.72% per annum.
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IEIE WA

32.

33.

BB A A BB R

Government grants received related to assets

32.

Deferred Revenue

2014 2013
THTT

HK$'000

FET
HK$’000

70,333 24,980

RiEEeBEECER  AUTRLSBERE

EERRRN2012F R E BT RIS — 10

RS AT

EHBFRERAILTRER

CEBEBEEERARRENBER (TEB])IA
RERLEMBELREUE  BELRRBHE

4k
ge °©

HZE2014F 12 A1 BIEFE » ANEBEUELES
17 & B) #) /546,387,000 7T (HHE R AR
36,780,000 7T ) (2013 4F : 24,980,000 7t (48

BN AREE19,500,0007T)) ©

P A BY SRR A FE MR TR - ¥ 5 e R AR S UL

ARBEBRABITE LAY » #&
Er BFMNBERRER -

ESERLH

%78

TIHEE

FARGEBBIRRER ZETEHIRERD

AR REEBNT :

33.

In order to encourage the development of magnesium
industry, Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources Co.,
Limited entered into an agreement with the local government
in 2012. Pursuant to the agreement, the local government
agree to provide financial assistance (the “Assistance”) to
Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources Company Limited
to improve their production technology and enhance the
capacity of the property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
received part of the Assistance of HK$46,387,000 (equivalent
to RMB36,780,000) (2013: approximately HK$24,980,000
(equivalent to RMB19,500,000)).

The Assistance received or which becomes receivables is
initially recognised as deferred revenue and subsequently
recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable asset
by way of as a reduced depreciation charge expense.

Deferred Taxation
The components of deferred tax balances recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

BLEREEE Deferred Tax Liabilities
e TibERE % BEREE &3t
Property, plant
Mining rights Land use rights and equipment Total
2014 2014 2014 2014
TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MA1E Asat 1 January 112,873 112,018 17,624 17,504 955 1,199 131,452 130,721
FAGEERR Credited to the consolidated
B2 ENER statement of proft or loss and
other comprehensive income (2,439) (2,438) (397) (394) (397) (274) (3,233) (3,106)
B A% Exchange alignment (2,735) 3293 (427) 514 (20) 30 (3,182) 33837
#2A318 Asat 31 December 107,699 12873 16,800 17,624 538 955 125,037 131,452
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34. kA&

162

ERE -
M2013F1 818 -

2013412 A318 -
2014F1 A1H M
201412 531 H

Authorised:
As at 1 January 2013,
31 December 2013,
1 January 2014 and
31 December 2014:

34. Share Capital

ROEE
Number of

[}
Share
capital
AT
HK$'000

shares
T
000

SRREEO.02/E T2 Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
T ([t 1) (the “Shares”) 5,000,000 100,000
EETRAR: Issued and fully paid:
®2013%F1A1H As at 1 January 2013 2,544,343 60,683
AR BET &I 1T 2 D Issue of shares upon scrip dividend
scheme 36,273 726
TR T 2 B R Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of
share options 20,055 401
R20183F 12 A31 H X As at 31 December 2013 and
201441 H1H 1 January 2014 2,600,671 61,810
fid 2% - E AR Allotment of ordinary shares (@) 155,077 3,102
AR BET &I 1T 2 Issue of shares upon scrip dividend
scheme (b) 63,546 1,271
TEEREREIT LR Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of
share options © 86,345 1,727
A2014F12H31H As at 31 December 2014 2,905,639 67,910

B sE -
(@)

2014518280 » ARAIEHBEERESREIA R
I RERE (RERE)  c BERBEEDR
20142 A24 A5ERk - RIBERBEHZE - A4
Al LLEROTSE T2 B EITAEH
155,077,000 A% E1E 0.02 # JT 2 iR A% ©

ARBRIER 201495 A28 B A 2 AR
BEHE - B TIRE2013ERBE T LR
LR S - FER201446 A27 B LAEHRO0.7
7 T3 1T I 9 BiL 63,545,669 IR A% 19 o # Ak 15
HEBETZROZERSEN - FEB2HAE
NEIR2014F 5 A 23 B3 2K -

REZE2014F12 A31 BILFER » AR A%
MEFETEESRO4BTEITRIEA
386,345,000 (&% - FIBELEMIFEST -

notes:

(@)

On 28 January 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the Subscription Agreement) with IFC. On 24
February 2014, the subscription was completed. Pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement, the Company issued at a total of
155,077,000 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.02 each
at a price of HK$0.75 each.

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued and allotted
63,545,669 shares at HK$0.7 per share to the shareholders
who elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu of cash
for the 2013 final dividends pursuant to the scrip dividend
scheme announced by the Company on 23 May 2014. The
new shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares. For more detail, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 23 May 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
issued and allotted an aggregate of 86,345,000 shares at a
weighted average exercise price HK$0.54 per share. For more
details, please refer to Note 37.
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35. f#E
REH

AEERAEREMBEFREZFESERED

ERGAEREEHRES -

35. Reserves
The Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

2014 FF |
L REPORT 2014

b /N The Company
- 2] TERES
RARE 1] e BRERE
Capital  Convertible Share
Share  redemption bond option Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve eamings
S T BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2013E1 A1H Asat 1 January 2013 60,683 733,752 3499 - 1819 4,290 804,043
EREF Proft for the year - - - - - 40,716 40,716
EmEp2ERA Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - _
FAZARNES Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 40716 40716
BERFERE Final dividend paid 726 4,589) - - - - (8,863
TEBREERTZEER  Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of
share options 401 10,069 - - (443) - 10,027
RELERDAT RS Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - 4760 - 4760
R2013E12A310K As at 31 December 2013 and
201451518 1 January 2014 61,810 739,232 3,499 - 6,136 45,006 855,683
EREF Proft for the year - - - - - 3461 3461
FREMZARA Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - _ _
FRZARNES Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 3461 3461
REEEh Allotment of ordinary shares 3,102 113,206 - - - - 116,308
REE Share option lapsed - - - - (50) 50 -
BT AR ES Issue of convertible bonds - - - 16,779 - - 16,779
BERFERE Final dividend paid 1,271 (12,990) - - - - (11,719
ITEBREERTZEER  Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of
share options 1,727 47,74 - - (2,516) - 46952
REEERAAF RS Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - 2,082 - 2,082
R2014E12531A As at 31 December 2014 67,910 887,189 3,499 16,779 5,652 48,517 1,029,546
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RRFHEE ABEFREF

36.

37.

164

H E2014F12A31B EFE KR A&
B A JE (5% F 49 53,461,000 7T (2013 4 -
40,716,000 7C) * ERAR A BHREERIE

B

2008 12 A3 H + AR A IR B A g I i
&I ([52581)) - BIFZETE - RAF AR
BRETASEESSIREE - AEEMER
BN DI DB - HER - REHE
BmoRE - BEPREBBH(IAERKZ2 R
H) - URBARRRD -

BEETZEFIRNBETNRE  1TExX
HAth 77 E AR ARAF R - A B RSN 2
e 7R S EZ At B O A (A] EL A 6 SR B IR 1 AR AT —
B o

RBETSERUATHRSE  (VRHRBIE
2 HMRB RS A RERMIINETR U
mfE (i) RORBZERERS AR RER
HERBIMAEARERMINEETRFH
(& R iii) Befp 2 EI{E » ANER B EATE St
BENR BRI ERNBEE -

BREENAER2EZEAERERHANE
HE TR RN AR BRI 7 /AT

36.

37.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners
of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$3,461,000 (2013: HK$40,716,000).

Share Options

On 3 December 2008, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under
the Scheme, the Company may grant options to the directors
or employees of the Group, consultant or adviser, distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer and
business partner of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

Options may be granted on such terms and conditions in
relation to their vesting, exercise or otherwise as the directors
may determine in its absolute discretion, provided that such
terms and conditions shall not be inconsistent with any other
terms conditions of the Scheme.

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares on Main Boards stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
option; (i) the average prices of the shares on Main Board as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option; and (jii) the nominal value of the shares. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

The share options are exercisable only if the Eligible
Participants remain in the service of the Group from the grant
date of the share options up to the designated exercise date.
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HA2014E12 A31H @ STEIE N YRITEZE
RS HE & £ 7 22 151,100,000 B A% 17 ([ B B

As at 31 December 2014, options to subscribe for a total of
151,100,000 Shares (the “Share Options”) were outstanding

D) o under the Scheme.
20135
#20135 12A318R R2014%
151A FRRI FRTR 12014 FRRI ERTE EREN 124318
] ZBRE ZBRE 1A18%8 ZBRE ZBRE ZBRE B
Held at
Options Options 31 December Options Options Options
Held at granted exercised 2013 and granted exercised lapsed Held at
1 January during during 1 January during during during 31 December Exercise
2013 the year the year 2014 the year the year the year 2014 price
BT
HK$
w E8
Employees 150,500,000 - (15,055,000 135,445,000 - (67,745,000) - 617,700,000 05 (@
- 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 - (12,600,000) - 27,400,000 08
B) EZ
Directors
HXE 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 05 (@
Chi Wen Fu
g 15,000,000 - (3,000,000) 12,000,000 - (8,000,000) - 9,000,000 05 (@
Shum Sai Chit
HEF 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 05 (@
ChiBiFen
PEE 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - (2,000,000) - 3,000,000 05 (@
Guo Mengyong
B 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 05 (@
Kwong Ping Man
B 5,000,000 - (2,000,000) 3,000,000 - - (8,000,000) - 05 (@
Liu Hoi Keung
Bt 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - (1,000,000) - 4,000,000 05 (@
Sheng Hong
220,500,000 - (20,085,000 200,445,000 - (73,745,000) (3,000,000 128,700,000 05 (@
- 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 - (12,600,000) - 21,400,000 08 [
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R|MERAR HRITEEREFUATERAR Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period
B~ ITEHA R AT(E(E - have the following expiry date, exercise period and exercise
prices.
B AR R & B A 1 BRITEE BIREHE
Exercise
Type of Share prices Number of
Options Expiry date Exercise period per Share Share Options
2014 2013
BT T 1%
HK$ 000 '000
FE 2014410 A 31 H B2012F 11 A1 HEZE 0.5 - 51,000
201410 A31 H
Type A 31 October 2014 From 1 November 2012 to

31 October 2014

738 2015410 A31H  B20124 11 A1 ARRE 05 26,000 31,000
2015410 A 31 H
Type B 31 October 2015 From 1 November 2012 to

31 October 2015

A%E 2017912 A30H H2012F 11 A1 BEE 05 91,700 112,445
2017% 12 A30H
Type C 30 December 2017 From 1 November 2012 to
30 December 2017
2017412 A30H B20164F11 A1 H#ER 0.5 6,000 6,000
201712 A30H
30 December 2017 From 1 November 2016 to
30 December 2017
= 2015 10 431 H B2013% 11 A1 HRRE 0.8 15,000 25,000
20154910 431 H
Type D 31 October 2015 From 1 November 2013 to

31 October 2015

A8 2018 12 A31H H2013F 11 A1 BEE 0.8 12,400 15,000
2018412 A31 H
Type E 31 December 2018  From 1 November 2013 to

31 December 2018

151,100 240,445
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RN — FRTHETERXET -8
AZEEERANEEHEAZARE L BB
RE0217HET(ERBO D IFAIFEIEL T
) LlTEE BHRERDRESERZ
39.20% £66.37% * FEEREFF0.33% =
1.08% ~ #91 E6F TRt FERIEF B 1.43% K
BE - ARBHIREERVIZERZM 20K
8 - J9RIE R 200647 A 31 HE 2011412 A
STHNEBHRENFASMAESL - HZE
201412 A31 8 It & &+ #)596,000% 7T
(20134F : 1,047,000 L) BEFF A& Bam &
Hib2EmEmERA -

HZE2013F 12 A31 HIEFE © B OERE
AEEFEABNR — FRMBAETERXE
T #)74%5,830,000 % 7T © ) A Z (i ER
SEHERXANE L BHNRE0.80EL(E
BRBRODAOFOZEELAR) - LlITEE -
TEHIR 18T 42.05% £52.22% - FEERK
FEOI11%ZE0.58% * #91.6 E52F AR
EFHR2.47%IRER o IETEARE R R AIZ
EREMTERLE - HIREH2007F9 A
25HZE2013F3 19BN T HBRENHT D
MetEBE - HE2014F 1231 BILEFE
491,486,000 7T (20134 : 3,713,000/% T )
BifAGEEEREMEEKERA -

B E2014F12A31H It F E BHHE 8
2,082,000 % 7T, (2013 4F : 4,760,000 4 7T.) LA R
MARE 2 BT A RE B M2k
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The options granted during the year ended 31 December

2011 determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model.

The significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.217, at the grant date and adjusted for the effect of the
share subdivision, exercise price shown above, standard

deviation of expected share price return of 39.20% to 66.37%,

annual risk-free interest rate of 0.33% to 1.08%, expected life

of options of approximately 1 to 6 years and dividend payout

ratio of 1.43%. The volatility measured at the standard

deviation of expected share price returns is based on

statistical analysis of daily share prices from 31 July 2006 to

31 December 2011. During the year ended 31 December
2014, approximately HK$596,000 (2013: HK$1,047,000)
were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of options granted during the year ended 31

December 2013 determined using the Black-Scholes

valuation model was approximately HK$5,830,000. The

significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$0.80,

at the grant date and adjusted for the effect of the share

subdivision, exercise price shown above, expected volatility

ranged from 42.05% to 52.22%, annual risk-free interest rate

of 0.11% to 0.58%, expected life of options of approximately
1.6 to 5.2 years and dividend payout ratio of 2.47%. The
volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share

price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share
prices from 25 September 2007 to 19 March 2013. During
the year ended 31 December 2014, approximately
HK$1,486,000 (2013: HK$3,713,000) were charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the share-based
payments of approximately HK$2,082,000 (2013:
HK$4,760,000) were charged to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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38. &if
(a) BEAEE

168

(b)

38. Commitments

(a)

Capital Commitments

AT
The Company
2014 2013
THET THETT
HK$’000 HK$’000

#EE
The Group
2014
THET
HK$’000

2013
FHT
HK$'000

EHEEIDENS Capital expenditure in
bRE B SRR respect of the acquisition of
BiE B BIRE property, plant and
M WENRE equipment contracted for
BRI but not provided in the
consolidated financial
statements 88,894 109,990 - -
REFRNRIE (b) Operating Lease Commitments
AEBEREHAA The Group as Lessee

40 B AR 6T AT B TR TR 5
BEEREE - REREZHY  BE
% 2 R R IR A R -

RB|ERR > ARERARAARIER
BRI A Z AN T 5 M2 H e
NEREBESEFEENAT -

The Group leases various office premises and
warehouses under non-cancellable lease agreements.
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

fall due as follows:

rEE b NN
The Group The Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

FET FAT FET FAT

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

—FR Within one year 2,937 2,719 - -
FEFEERF In the second to fifth years

(BIEEREME) inclusive 2,459 3,623 - -

B AF Over five years 2,955 3,442 - -

8,351 9,784 - -
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AEEERLEA
MAERHARANERRR=FERE
BHS

RB|ERR AKRBECH T BRRE
BAONRERPET -

The Group as Lessor
All of the investment properties held have committed
tenants for the next three year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

REE RAF
The Group The Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

FHT FATT FHT FATT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

—&FR Within one year 2,887 3,554 - -
E_FEERF In the second to fifth years

(BIEEEMSF) inclusive 1,203 4,193 - -

4,090 7,747 - -

39. EXBEALRS 39. Material Related Party Transactions
BRIFETBHRERSEEFZI  FALKED# Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial

TATEEMBEALRS :

(a) EEEEAEMS

statements, the Group entered into the following significant
related party transactions during the year.

(a) Key Management Compensation

2014 2013

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

£ E (MIzE13) Directors (Note 13) 3,906 3,228
HEthFZEEAS : Other key management personnel:

FehEMmEHEERT Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 1,877 1,792
5,783 5,020

(b) ‘tXExRLECFBERESRARIELAGH
AR R B A REKFERE
ERFmFIE2 AMES0 -

(b) Mr. Chi Wen Fu has given an undertaking to IFC to
maintain a minimum level of shareholding in the
Company as collateral of the borrowings as detailed in
Note 30.
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40.

41.

170

RERS

RRQFRER 201465 523 B A 2 AR
BitEl R2014F6 827 HULER0.708 T
17 &5 i 63,545,669 IR FF AR FEE0.02/5 L2
BRI - 48 T H2013F R BB IZN
BB ZIRE - FTEBRERNAFIBGLEBR
EEITEZEREET - FBFEL2HARER
201445 A 23 HEH 2 MK

MEAREEEREDR 22E

REZE2014F12A31BIEFER - NREER
BB ZWBARMBEANZHE R RS RIUiEE
ERSHEEHERAR RIREERMERESR
R A A2 100% K2 8.696% MR ANAE2E o A il
R AEEHIFNBARMDIEZRER
#4927,227,0007% T O D K fh & E O
102,305,000 7T °

HE20IBF12A31ALLFE AEEBBRE
BHB AR EEREGRDEIE MR B E
BRI B R A Al A £21.6% 2 & AR A 4
e BN ERS  AEES RIERE D IEE
% 7 3 #9.31,812,000 7% 7T 4% 1N H = 5 49
53,383,000/8 7T °

40.

41.

Non-Cash Transactions

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued and allotted
63,545,669 new fully paid shares of HK$0.02 each in the
Company at HK$0.70 to the shareholders who elected to
receive shares in the Company in lieu of cash for the 2013
final dividends pursuant to the scrip dividend schemes
announced by the Company on 23 May 2014. The new
ordinary shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company. For more details, please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 23 May 2014.

Change in Ownership Interest in
Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s Hong
Kong subsidiary and PRC subsidiary has acquired 100% and
8.696% of the equity interests in & E & 4% AL LA IR A 7
and Jiangsu Azureblue Technology Development Company
Limited respectively. As a result of the above transactions, the
Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests and
decrease in other reserve of approximately HK$27,227,000
and HK$102,305,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group,
through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Capital Idea Investments
Limited, increased in aggregate of 21.6% effective equity
interest in China Rare Earth Magnesium Technology Holdings
Limited. As a result of the above transactions, the Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests and
increase in other reserve of approximately HK$31,812,000
and HK$53,383,000 respectively.
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42.

43.

RAAEGAEE

SERRNR014F100B 2 EHHEE R
BERAR(EE]) 2REFL - RAMBKR
KAH BAQARAANE  BEFLANENS
MR REEE - IEFRIZ AR,
R ERENSIOEEE R R E T
NEITE - BERERA AR TEHAEHE
RER  EERVBERERNERNTREE -

HEHRER

@@ F2014F128198  ZAEB2EK B
A A Ming Xin Developments Limited 5] 37
T—HEERZEER—HRBERE - A
BRRAEES(ER)ARARTRNER
5% 1 601) ([ # % J) 500,000,000 % 35 &
A& 17 & 239,532,000 e ¥ % (5 + RIB D B
#%229,600,000 7% 7T } 76,650,000 7T, ©
ZERSHER2015F2 A26 B ©
RAREER TR IEESEE 2 51.46% 1%
BetEss  MAEENR20156F3 A58
e H M2 UREE - TEERE R 20156 3
F26B5EMK - B — S EFELHA
A B R BT AR A48 1) 8% 2 FE RS
NE R o

REBBMHHRELERFIREBAH
ZEZXHANRINERB A - BEHRAE
MBmERBAHYL  AEEEFDEET
BB EEFEZATVERZERSZ
MR

AEEYEAZER S MLV FEE R
BmAFHEMARE -

42, Litigations and Contingent Liabilities

Reference was made to the announcement of the Company
dated 9 October 2014 regarding a civil claim against Capital
Idea Investments Limited (“Capital Idea”). As of the date of the
consolidated financial statement, to the best knowledge of the
Company, the writ of summons of the litigation has not yet
been served on Capital Idea. Upon receiving this legal
document, Capital Idea will seek legal advice in relation to the
claim and the necessary actions to be taken in this respect
and will vigorously defend against the claim. The Board of the
Company is of the view that this claim will not have a material
adverse impact on the business, operation and financial
position of the Group.

43. Events after the Reporting Period

(@ On 19 December 2014, Ming Xin Developments
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement and a
subscription agreement for the acquisition of
500,000,000 existing shares and the subscription of
239,532,000 new shares of Group Sense (International)
Limited (Stock Code: 601) (“Group Senses”) at the
consideration of HK$229,600,000 and HK$76,650,000
respectively. The transactions were completed on 26
February 2015. As the Group gained 51.46% controlling
interest in Group Senses after the completion,
mandatory general offer were made by the Group on 5
March 2015 and expected to complete on 26 March
2015. For further details, please refer to the relevant
announcements and circulars of the Company as
posted on the websites of the HKEx and the Company.

The transactions is to be accounted for as a business
combination in accordance with HKFRS 3, Business
Combination. Up to the date of the consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Group are still
in process of determining the fair value of the net
identifiable assets and the relevant disclosures of the
transactions.

No adjustment have been made to these consolidated
financial statements as a result of the transactions.
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R2015F 2R 48 A AR H—BE
=H(ERFDREBRERWEE A
ZHEBEEAR(BRERAIL) Z100%
Bt AT T EEEORNDZERHE
([ZHEED - BEERARXELERE
BEURE BRENEE « BIREER -
REXWERBA 2 FE  BH2HAAQF
R2015F2 A4 B2 A% o

44. L REF
EFUBSECIEETNHE  WEAAEEY
255 o

45. RETAREESMHHRE

BEESMN2015F3 A 18 A#it/fE M IFHE T3
AP HRE -

172

(o)  On 4 February 2015, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding framework agreement with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) in relation to the
proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in
operating project companies (the “Subject Companies”)
as owned by the Vendor (the “Proposed Acquisition”).
The Subject Companies mainly engage in magnesium
business and its ancillary businesses including power
generation and semi-coke.

44. Comparatives
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.

45. Authorisation for Issue of Consolidated
Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March
2015.
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